1	PHILA	DELPHIA CITY COMMISSIONERS	Page 1
2		RETURN BOARD	
3			
4			
5			
6			
7	IN RE:	Return Board Meeting and	
8		Provisional Ballot Hearing	
9			
10	DATE:	Friday, November 15, 2024	
11	LOCATION:	Philadelphia, Pennsylvania	
12			
13	Reported by:	Ayanna Bethea Thorpe	
14			
15			
16			
17			
18			
19			
20			
21			
22			
23			
24	Job No.: 4766	4	

1	ATTENDANCE	Page 2
2	OMAR SABIR, BOARD CHAIR	
3	LISA DEELEY, VICE CHAIR	
4	SETH BLUESTEIN, COMMISSIONER	
5	KHALIF CHESTNUT, DEPUTY TO THE CHAIR	
6	NICHOLAS CUSTODIO, DEPUTY TO VICE-CHAIR	
7	ERIC KAPENSTEIN, DEPUTY	
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	ALSO PRESENT: JOSEPH LYNCH, DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS STEPHANIE REED, DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIONS DANA ECKROADE, DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF COMPLIANCE LINDA KERNS, ESQ. KEVIN RICHARDSON, ESQ. ADAM BONIN, ESQ. MARNI JO SNYDER, ESQ. ALISON STOHR CHRIS HOGGER	
<u>24</u>		

1		Page 3
2	PROCEEDINGS	
3		
4	CHAIR SABIR: Good afternoon.	
5	MR. BLUESTEIN: Good afternoon.	
6	MR. RICHARDSON: Good afternoon.	
7	MS. DEELEY: Good afternoon.	
8	CHAIR SABIR: I'm going to call to	
9	order the meeting of the Philadelphia City	
10	Commissioner's Return Board for Friday,	
11	November the 15th, 2024. This meeting is in	
12	compliance with the Pennsylvania Sunshine	
13	Act. Philadelphia City Commissioners, our	
14	three-member bipartisan board of elected	
15	officials in charge of elections and voter	
16	registration for the City of Philadelphia.	
17	Each Commissioner is elected to	
18	serve a four-year term that coincides with	
19	the municipal election cycle for mayor and	
20	city council. The Commissioner set and	
21	enforced departmental policies to administer	
22	voter registration and conduct elections in	
23	accordance with federal and state border	
24	registration election laws.	

1	The city commissioners were created	Page 4
2	by the Pennsylvania Assembly in 1711 with a	
3	focus on taxation and held various regulatory	
4	powers throughout the centuries. The	
5	commissioner started maintaining voter lists	
6	in 1799 and took on more election related	
7	responsibilities but didn't emerge into its	
8	current form until the adoption of the	
9	Philadelphia Home Rule Charter in 1951.	
10	We will start off with public	
11	comments. Before beginning their comments,	
12	commenters should state where they live or if	
13	they are not a resident of Philadelphia and	
14	that they are a Philadelphia taxpayer.	
15	Public comment is not an opportunity for	
16	dialogue or Q&A. It is public comment, a	
17	chance for you to tell us what you think.	
18	Each speaker will have two minutes to speak.	
19	However, I may extend the time at my	
20	discretion. Public comment must concern	
21	matters on today's meeting agenda.	
22	Finally, it is my responsibility to	
23	preserve the order and decorum of the	
24	meetings. As such, profane and slanderous,	

Page 5 1 discriminatory, or personal attacks will not be tolerated. If you wish to make a public 2 objection to a perceived Sunshine Act 3 violation, please raise your hand and I will recognize you. Outbursts will not be tolerated. 6 For today, public comments are 8 welcome on any agenda item except provisional 9 ballot challenges. We will discuss all 10 challenges during the provisional ballot challenge hearing portion of today's meeting. 11 12 Anyone wishing to offer a public comment on 13 our mail or provisional ballot sufficiency 14 determinations, please step forward. 15 MS. KERNS: Here. 16 CHAIR SABIR: You want to step over 17 there. 18 MS. KERNS: My name is Linda Kerns, K-E-R-N-S. I reside --19 20 CHAIR SABIR: You want to have a 21 seat? Sit on the microphone. 22 MS. KERNS: My name is Linda Kerns, 23 K-E-R-N-S. I reside in Philadelphia and I'm 24 registered to vote in Philadelphia. I'm also

Page 6 here on behalf of the McCormick campaign, the 1 2 Republican National Committee, and the Pennsylvania Republican Party. With regard 3 to the provisional ballot sufficiency 4 determinations, I understand there's a 6 universe of approximately 7,329 provisional ballots that were set aside during the canvass process. Over the last few days, by the initiative of the workers and the Board of 10 Elections who were reviewing the envelope, 11 12 our position is that these should be subject 13 to the formal hearing procedure under 25 P.S. 14 3050 so that the parties have a right to 15 voice objections, make argument, and preserve 16 their positions as to each category prior to 17 the board vote. 18 To the extent that the board will not hold hearings on this universe of ballots 19 20 and will not allow opportunity for parties to be heard before voting, I am noting our 21 22 objection to that procedure and I am 23 preserving our objection under the relevant 24 Pennsylvania statutes and case law, including

- 1 25 P.S. 3050. Regarding the provisional
- 2 ballots at issue, I am also preserving any
- 3 and all objections under the Pennsylvania
- 4 Election Code, the relevant and case law,
- 5 including under 25 P.S. 3050 and 25 PA C.S.A.
- 6 1904 and 1905.
- 7 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. Is there
- 8 anyone else? Okay. We will now move to a
- 9 report from our secretary for email public
- 10 comments. Commissioner Bluestein, are there
- 11 any email public comments?
- MR. BLUESTEIN: Thank you,
- 13 Chairman. We did receive a number of email
- 14 public comments related to the mail ballot
- 15 sufficiency determinations. They include
- 16 emails from Garrett Hughes, Janice Ann, Dana
- 17 Shephard, Sharon Frankinfield, Kimberly Long,
- 18 Mahalia Homna, Tarae Esha, Harry Segal,
- 19 Samuel Nesmith, Dwayne Felton, Nuelia
- 20 Rodriguez, Yvonne Prester, Deborah Thomas,
- 21 Linda Todd, Nelly Lewis, Demetrius Richards
- 22 Wishop, Gerrraline Marshall, Eva Rivken,
- 23 Matrice Linder, Ramone Napoleon, Devin Lane,
- 24 Demetrius Walley, Marlon Sharper, Daniel

- 1 Alfonzon, Jerry Peck, Joshua Corridine,
- 2 Enrique Shistermen, Ashley Green, and Amy
- 3 Carson. These emails were shared with the
- 4 other commissioners and deputies as soon as
- 5 possible before this meeting. And I've
- 6 reviewed them and asked that they be moved
- 7 into the record.
- 8 CHAIR SABIR: I too have reviewed
- 9 them and I move that they be moved into the
- 10 public records.
- 11 MS. DEELEY: I also have reviewed
- 12 them and see that they be moved into the
- 13 public record.
- 14 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you very much,
- 15 Secretary. Before we proceed to new
- 16 business, I understand this will be a long
- 17 hearing. So at about 1 o'clock, we'll take
- 18 about a 15, 20-minute recess. If there's
- 19 anything, Stenographer, if you need a break,
- 20 just let us know before that. We will now
- 21 proceed to new business.
- We will begin by considering the
- 23 first agenda item under new business, mail
- 24 ballot sufficiency determinations. We will

1	gall up the deputy executive director of	Page 9
1	call up the deputy executive director of	
2	compliance and vote by mail, Dana Eckroade.	
3	MS. ECKROADE: Good afternoon,	
4	Commissioners.	
5	MR. BLUESTEIN: Good afternoon.	
6	CHAIR SABIR: Good afternoon, Dana.	
7	MS. ECKROADE: So we have to	
8	CHAIR SABIR: Can you please read	
9	the category and number of votes?	
10	MS. ECKROADE: Sure. It is number	
11	16, ID verification, ID doesn't match your	
12	file. We have three voters.	
13	CHAIR SABIR: Okay. I move that	
14	this board does not count ballots with an ID	
15	that doesn't match the SURE files there.	
16	Second?	
17	MS. DEELEY: Second.	
18	CHAIR SABIR: Does any	
19	commissioners have any comments before we	
20	proceed to vote?	
21	MS. DEELEY: I have none.	
22	MR. BLUESTEIN: I Have none.	
23	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein,	
24	please call the roll.	

1	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	Page 10
2	MS. DEELEY: I vote aye.	
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
4	Chairman Sabir.	
5	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Thank you,	
6	Dana.	
7	MS. ECKROADE: Thank you.	
8	CHAIR SABIR: We will now move to	
9	the next item under new business, provisional	
10	ballot sufficiency determinations. These	
11	categories will be presented by our voter	
12	registration administrator, Kevin Richardson.	
13	Good afternoon, Kevin.	
14	MR. RICHARDSON: Good afternoon,	
15	Commissioners.	
16	CHAIR SABIR: Can you please read	
17	the first category and number of votes?	
18	MR. RICHARDSON: Yes. The first	
19	category is a not in SURE system. We had	
20	3,007 ballots.	
21	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	
22	board does not count provisional ballots in	
23	category not in SURE. Is there a second?	
24	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	

1	Page 11
	CHAIR SABIR: Does anyone want to
2	make a comment before we proceed to vote?
3	MR. BONIN: Mr. Chairman, is this
4	an opportunity for advocates to make
5	arguments before the board as per category?
6	MS. STOHR: We ask that they make
7	public comments during the public comment
8	period or just
9	MR. BONIN: I had understood your
10	instructions as to provisional ballot
11	questions are heard during the provisional
12	ballot hearing to delay such comments until
13	now.
14	MS. STOHR: Provisional challenges.
15	CHAIR SABIR: Provisional
16	challenges. Okay.
17	MS. STOHR: You want to
18	CHAIR SABIR: Yeah, go ahead. Can
19	we keep this can we stick on the two
20	minutes?
21	MR. BONIN: Absolutely, Mr.
22	Chairman. And the comments
23	CHAIR SABIR: And I'm just saying
24	if it gets to where as though everybody's
	_

Page 12 1 making comments, it may even go down a little bit less than that. 2 MR. BONIN: Of course. 3 CHAIR SABIR: Fair enough? 4 MR. BONIN: Absolutely. And these comments are ones which I submitted in 6 writing to the commissioners about an hour And so I will try to summarize them and 9 be brief. As to the inability to find 10 certain voters in the SURE system, we will 11 note that the SURE system can be challenging 12 and it is not always easy to confirm voters 13 in that system and that we've seen in other 14 counties that voters who have been rejected 15 as not registered are in fact in the system, 16 as many as 13 percent in York. 17 We have submitted through email 18 Exhibit A to the letter that I sent about an 19 hour ago approximately 1,000 voters who had 20 been identified as not recognized within the SURE system. As to whom we have located, we 21 22 believe there are SURE records in the voter 23 file. And what we would ask is that the commissioners and the staff rereview these 24

Page 13 voter records individually to determine 1 2 whether they are registered before they are rejected. I want to understand, before I go 3 any further here because I might be able to 4 stop here, does this category also include voters who are located in SURE but registered 6 in other counties? (No verbal response.) Then I will MR. BONIN: Okay. 10 reserve my comments on that until the board 11 gets to that category. 12 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. 13 MR. BONIN: Thank you, Mr. 14 Chairman. Thank you, Commissioner. 15 CHAIR SABIR: Sure. 16 MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, may I 17 ask you a question before we proceed? 18 we're going to continue allowing comment for 19 each category for the sufficiency determination, do we just want to make that a 20 21 note for Ms. Kerns's original objection 22 during the public comment section so that 23 both sides are making argument if that's the 24 way we're going to proceed?

1	Page 14 MS. KERNS: So I can make a comment
2	now?
3	CHAIR SABIR: Sure.
4	MS. KERNS: With regard to this
5	category, my understanding is that the staff
6	took two steps in the SURE system to verify
7	that these voters are not in the SURE system.
8	And it's clear under 25 P.S. 3050(a.4) that
9	if the person is not a registered voter,
10	their provisional ballot should not be
11	counted.
12	Additionally, our election code has
13	a specific procedure with regard to
14	registered voters. If their registrations
15	where canceled, registered voters who were
16	canceled do have the opportunity to fix that.
17	That's under 25 PA C.S.A. 1904 and 1905. The
18	voter would have had to file a petition by
19	the tenth day preceding an election. So any
20	of these would be out of time anyway, so
21	these votes should not be counted under the
22	code.
23	CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. When the
24	motion was made, it was seconded. Secretary

1		Page 15
2	MS. DEELEY: Mr. Chairman, if I	
3	may.	
4	CHAIR SABIR: Yes, you may.	
5	MS. DEELEY: I don't think that	
6	even if we vote to not count NIS, if there	
7	are new information for the staff, they can	
8	go back they should be able to go back and	
9	look at it.	
10	MR. BLUESTEIN: Yeah. Mr.	
11	Chairman, I don't have any objection to that.	
12	If before computation we determine that a	
13	ballot was inappropriately labeled as not in	
14	system and the staff determined that it	
15	actually should have been counted, I don't	
16	see how voting to not count ballots that are	
17	not in the SURE system would preclude that	
18	from happening.	
19	MS. KERNS: I would say there	
20	should be another public hearing on this.	
21	CHAIR SABIR: Noted. All right.	
22	Please call the roll.	
23	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
24	MS. DEELEY: Well, your observers	

-		Page 16
1	will be able to watch them do it just like	
2	they have been watching. I vote aye.	
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
4	Chairman Sabir.	
5	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Commission	
6	passes. Please proceed.	
7	MR. RICHARDSON: Commissioners, the	
8	next category is canceled registrations. We	
9	had 841.	
10	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	
11	board does not count provisional ballots and	
12	category canceled registration. Is there a	
13	second?	
14	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	
15	MS. DEELEY: Second.	
16	CHAIR SABIR: Does any	
17	commissioners want to make any comments?	
18	MS. DEELEY: I have none.	
19	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have none.	
20	CHAIR SABIR: Please call the roll.	
21	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
22	MS. DEELEY: I vote aye.	
23	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
24	Chairman Sabir.	

Page 17 1 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed. 2 MR. RICHARDSON: The next category 3 is registered in another county. We had 1,084. 4 CHAIR SABIR: I move that this 6 board does not count provisional ballots in category registered in another county. there a second? 9 MR. BLUESTEIN: Second. 10 MR. BONIN: Mr. Chairman, may I be 11 heard on this topic? 12 CHAIR SABIR: Sure. 13 MR. BONIN: Adam Bonin again, on 14 behalf of Bob Casey for Senate. Given the State Supreme Court's ruling in in re canvass 15 16 of provisional ballots in the 2024 primary at 2024 decision, we would ask the board to 17 18 reassess these ballots. Based on the new 19 rulings which say that a -- well, it is all 20 set forth in the letter, but based on DOS 21 quidance with regards to voters who have 22 moved recently and given what the Supreme 23 Court has observed about PennDOT changes in 24 voter registration, which the court said may

Page 18 1 be of questionable validity where no party has identified a vet-- maybe it's been of 2 questionable validity. 3 We believe the board must do a certain level of checking before striking a 6 ballot for a voter marked as out of county, number 1, to check if the voter was a registered voter in Philadelphia, number 2, to check when the voter had their 10 registration switched to another county, 11 number 3, as to whether the voter was 12 automatically reassigned via PennDOT, and 13 number 4, whether the voter has voted in an 14 election since the reassignment. 15 We believe that the vote should 16 count, A, if the voter was a registered 17 Philadelphia voter and moved less than 30 18 days before election day, or two, the voter 19 was a registered Philadelphia voter, was 20 administratively reassigned by PennDOT, and 21 has not voted in another election since that 22 reassignment. And we would urge the board 23 not to strike these ballots until that review

consistent with the State Supreme Court's

24

1	recent ruling has been performed.	Page 19
2	CHAIR SABIR: Thank you, Adam.	
3	MR. BONIN: Thank you.	
4	MS. DEELEY: Mr. Chairman, may I	
5	ask a question?	
6	CHAIR SABIR: Yes, you may.	
7	MS. DEELEY: Counselor, if you	
8	mind. Is there any evidence of an out-of-	
9	county voter having any experience similar to	
10	in re canvass of provisional ballots 2024	
11	primary election?	
12	MR. BONIN: Quite frankly,	
13	Commissioner, given how late we received the	
14	list of the voters in all the categories,	
15	which was Wednesday afternoon at about 4:00	
16	p.m., we have been scrambling to reach all of	
17	these voters to learn of their experiences,	
18	but it really is not a lot of time to gather	
19	that sort of evidence. What we know though -	
20	_	
21	CHAIR SABIR: So Counselor, so just	
22	to answer the vice chair's question, so stick	
23	to your acknowledge, I believe.	
24	MR. BONIN: Excuse me.	

1	CHAIR SABIR: She said to your	Page 20
2	knowledge. Right?	
3	MR. BONIN: To my knowledge, I do	
4	not have that evidence to prepare and I don't	
5	know what voters have submitted any written	
6	comments regarding that situation.	
7	CHAIR SABIR: So the answer is no?	
8	MR. BONIN: That answer is no.	
9	MS. DEELEY: Thank you.	
10	CHAIR SABIR: Thank you.	
11	MR. BONIN: Thank you.	
12	MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman,	
13	before the next commenter speaks, may I just	
14	comment on what we just heard?	
15	CHAIR SABIR: Sure.	
16	MR. BLUESTEIN: I would just add	
17	that the list was produced on Wednesday to	
18	parties to both sides, but both the	
19	Republican party and Democratic party had	
20	observers present the entire time. So they	
21	had many days' worth of opportunity to see	
22	how determinations were being made and to	
23	reach out to individual voters if they had	
24	concerns about those categories. Thank you.	

	Page 21
1	MS. KERNS: Linda Kerns, on behalf
2	of the Dave McCormick campaign. The
3	arguments of the Casey campaign are more
4	suited to the General Assembly to change the
5	laws. We cannot change the rules and
6	procedures now that we're at the end of this
7	game. That is not what this board should do.
8	In addition, I believe counsel
9	misquotes in re canvass of provisional
10	ballots in the 2024 primary election that
11	dealt with one voter who established a new
12	residence. So you cannot extrapolate that
13	out to the 1,084 voters and just speculate
14	that they may have gotten a new residence.
15	So on behalf of the David McCormick
16	campaign, we ask that these not be counted
17	and that the 25 P.S. 3050 be followed, in
18	that, if it's determined that the individual
19	was not registered at that election district,
20	their vote should not count.
21	CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. Secretary
22	Bluestein, please call the roll.
23	
	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
24	MS. DEELEY: Aye.

1	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	Page 22
2	Chairman Sabir.	
3	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.	
4	MR. RICHARDSON: The next category	
5		
	is voted in person. There is 68.	
6	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	
7	board does not count provisional ballots in	
8	category voted in person. Is there a second?	
9	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	
10	CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioners	
11	want to make any comments?	
12	MS. DEELEY: None.	
13	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have none.	
14	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein,	
15	please call the roll.	
16	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
17	MS. DEELEY: I vote aye.	
18	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
19	Chairman Sabir.	
20	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.	
21	MR. RICHARDSON: The next category	
22	is return mail-in or absentee ballot that was	
23	counted. There were 428.	
24	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	

1	Page 23 board does not count provisional ballots in
2	category return mail-in or absentee ballot
3	that was counted. Is there a second?
4	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.
5	MS. DEELEY: Second.
6	CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioners
7	have any comments?
8	MS. DEELEY: I have none.
9	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have none.
10	CHAIR SABIR: Please call the roll.
11	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
12	MS. DEELEY: I vote aye.
13	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.
14	Chairman Sabir.
15	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.
16	MR. RICHARDSON: The next category
17	is not enclosed in a secrecy envelope. We
18	had 743.
19	CHAIR SABIR: I move
20	MS. DEELEY: Mr. Chair
21	CHAIR SABIR: Let me put my motion
22	first and then you can make your comment.
23	MS. DEELEY: Mr. Chairman, I have a
24	question for Kevin on this category, please.

1	Page 24 CHAIR SABIR: On this category?
2	Proceed.
3	MS. DEELEY: Kevin, were these
4	voters determined to be registered voters?
5	MR. RICHARDSON: Yes.
6	MS. DEELEY: These voters signed
7	the affidavit. Correct?
8	MR. RICHARDSON: Correct.
9	MS. DEELEY: So the only thing
10	wrong with these ballots is that it was not
11	inside a secrecy envelope. Correct?
12	MR. RICHARDSON: That is correct.
13	MS. DEELEY: Thank you. Thank you,
14	Mr. Chairman.
15	CHAIR SABIR: Sure. Are you making
16	a comment after we make the motion? Just
17	MR. BONIN: It's a very brief
18	comment, Mr. Chairman. And that's under
19	Section 3053, sub (a.4), sub psi and then
20	double I. The statute does not require that
21	the provisional ballot be contained inside a
22	secrecy envelope. What the statute says is
23	that a provisional ballot shall not be
24	counted if a provisional ballot envelope does

Page 25 1 not contain a secrecy envelope. In other words, according to the 2 General Assembly, as long as that envelope is 3 4 in the package, the ballot counts. not the same as mail-in ballots. For mail-in 6 ballots, the General Assembly has spoken otherwise, much as I wish they hadn't. that rule has been set forth. It is not the same rule as it is for mail-in ballots as it 9 10 is for provisional ballots, and I would urge 11 the commissioners not to apply the same rule 12 because that's not what the General Assembly 13 asked for. 14 The only question is whether the 15 secrecy envelope was inside the provisional 16 ballot. And it's only on that factual basis 17 that any of these ballots can be excluded. 18 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you, Adam. 19 MR. BONIN: Thank you. 20 CHAIR SABIR: I move that this board does not count provisional --21 22 MS. KERNS: Oh, I was going to make 23 a comment also.

I'm sorry. Yes.

CHAIR SABIR:

24

1	MG KEDNG. Ob The second	Page 26
1	MS. KERNS: Oh, I'm sorry.	
2	CHAIR SABIR: Do you have to make a	
3	comment every time he make a comment? I just	
4	what I know. I'm just trying to be prepared.	
5	MS. KERNS: It depends on his	
6	comment. So yes, on this one, it would be a	
7	yes.	
8	CHAIR SABIR: Sure.	
9	MS. KERNS: On behalf of the	
10	McCormick campaign, Linda Kerns. With regard	
11	to this category, 3050(a.4)(5)(ii)(c) is	
12	clear that these ballots should not be	
13	counted if the envelope does not contain a	
14	secrecy envelope. And that should be read in	
15	conjunction with the part of the statute	
16	3050(a.4)(3), which says, "After the	
17	provisional ballot has been cast, the	
18	individual shall place it in a secrecy	
19	envelope." And the General Assembly	
20	specifically included the word shall, which	
21	means it's required.	
22	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	
23	board does not count provisional ballots in	
24	category not included in the secrecy	
	-	

1	envelope. Is there a second?	Page 27
2	MS. DEELEY: Mr. Chairman.	
3	CHAIR SABIR: Is there a second?	
4	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	
5	CHAIR SABIR: Proceed, Vice Chair.	
6	MS. DEELEY: I believe whether or	
7	not a ballot is in a secrecy envelope is not	
8	material in determining whether or not such	
9	individual is qualified under state law to	
10	vote in such election. But unlike the mail	
11	ballots where the voters are filling them out	
12	on their kitchen table, these voters are	
13	doing this process in a polling place. The	
14	judge of elections should be instructing them	
15	to place their ballot in the secrecy	
16	envelope. So this is a poll worker error	
17	that we should not be punishing the voter	
18	for.	
19	Furthermore, the difference here is	
20	the provisional ballots are outlined in	
21	federal law, the Help America Vote Act, and	
22	this is a federal election. State law	
23	determines if someone is eligible to vote.	
24	If we determine these voters to be registered	

- 1 and that they sign the affidavit and that
- 2 they have not already voted in another way,
- 3 then we must count them.
- 4 PA law has extra hurdles, but
- 5 putting a ballot in a secrecy envelope has no
- 6 bearing on whether or not someone is
- 7 qualified to vote. I believe that PA law is
- 8 in conflict with the Help America Vote Act.
- 9 This has not been subject of recent court
- 10 challenges, and therefore, I believe that
- 11 these ballots should count.
- 12 MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, I
- 13 would just add my long-term position that
- 14 secrecy envelopes should not be a reason for
- 15 not counting ballots, whether it's
- 16 provisional ballots or mail ballots in the
- 17 general sense. But we need to follow the law
- 18 as we best understand it. So unfortunately,
- 19 until the legislature or the courts instruct
- 20 us otherwise, I think we cannot count these
- 21 ballots.
- 22 CHAIR SABIR: Can you call the
- 23 roll, Secretary?
- 24 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.

1	MS. KERNS: No.	Page 29
2	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
3	Chairman Sabir.	
4	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.	
5	MR. RICHARDSON: The next category	
6	is the ballot was not signed by the voter.	
7	We have 61.	
8	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	
9	board does not count provisional ballots in	
10	the category not signed by voter.	
11	MS. DEELEY: Second.	
12	CHAIR SABIR: Anyone want to make a	
13	comment for this? Any commissioners?	
14	MS. DEELEY: I have none.	
15	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have none.	
16	CHAIR SABIR: Please call the roll.	
17	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
18	MS. DEELEY: I vote aye.	
19	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
20	Chairman Sabir.	
21	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.	
22	MR. RICHARDSON: The next category	
23	is only one signature by the voter. We have	
24	1,270.	

1	Page 30 MS. DEELEY: Mr. Chairman, I have
2	questions for Kevin on this category, please.
3	CHAIR SABIR: Sure.
4	MS. DEELEY: Kevin, was there a
5	signature on the envelope?
	_
6	MR. RICHARDSON: Yes, there was.
7	MS. DEELEY: Was the staff able to
8	compare that signature to the registered
9	voter in the SURE system?
10	MR. RICHARDSON: Yes.
11	MS. DEELEY: In all cases, the
12	signature was determined to be genuine?
13	MR. RICHARDSON: Yes.
14	MS. DEELEY: Thank you.
15	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary.
16	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have no
17	questions.
18	MR. BONIN: Mr. Chairman, may I be
19	heard on this issue?
20	CHAIR SABIR: Sure.
21	MR. BONIN: The Department of State
22	has made clear that it is poll workers'
23	responsibility to ensure that voters sign
24	these fields. All the guidance says the

- 1 voter must sign. The language literally says
- 2 poll workers must ensure that the voter signs
- 3 their name in the presence both of the judge
- 4 of elections and the minority inspector.
- 5 Poll workers must ensure that both the judge
- 6 of elections and minority inspector sign the
- 7 affidavit.
- 8 This is a process which is curated
- 9 by the poll workers. This is not something
- 10 that voters are expected to do on their own.
- 11 And unfortunately, what we have seen in this
- 12 election, despite the best efforts of the
- 13 commissioners in many cases to train poll
- 14 workers, are clusters and patterns of errors.
- 15 I prepared a chart which, thanks to the
- 16 camera, you can actually see on screen, but
- 17 I've emailed it to all the commissioners, of
- 18 where voter signatures are missing.
- 19 And you can see that there are
- 20 clusters of polling places. I mean, in 4912,
- 21 there are 28 different voters whose ballot
- 22 only has one signature on it, 1813, 22, 3312,
- 23 20, 5707, 21. That's not because all these
- voters happen to not understand the law.

- 1 It's because it wasn't their job to
- 2 understand the law. It was the poll workers
- 3 job to instruct them. These voters should
- 4 not be disenfranchised because of poll worker
- 5 error.
- 6 And quite frankly, and we get into
- 7 this a little bit in the letter, when the
- 8 Supreme Court ruled on a similar category of
- 9 ballots earlier this year, they were only
- 10 looking at one voter who made the error.
- 11 They did not understand that these errors
- 12 occur in clusters, number 1. And number 2,
- 13 the court did not understand and none of the
- 14 parties briefing this matter explained it to
- 15 them that the second signature, the affidavit
- 16 that they are looking at, is on that same
- 17 ballot envelope as the second signature that
- 18 they are looking for.
- 19 This isn't a question of cross
- 20 checking between three places. Both
- 21 signatures are supposed to be on the same
- 22 envelope. The alleged purpose that they --
- 23 CHAIR SABIR: Counselor, that's it.
- MR. BONIN: Thank you, Mr.

- 1 Chairman.
- 2 MS. KERNS: I should have gotten a
- 3 closer seat. The position of the McCormick
- 4 campaign is that the statute is clear and we
- 5 are bound by the statute. Not only does it
- 6 say that these ballots should not be counted
- 7 if they're not signed, 3050 has specific
- 8 procedures that the voter is required to sign
- 9 an affidavit and is also required to sign the
- 10 front of the provisional envelope. The
- 11 General Assembly was clear on this.
- We cannot sit here and presuppose
- 13 what the Supreme Court thought or didn't
- 14 thought in other cases. That's pure
- 15 speculation. The law is clear here and it
- 16 should be followed.
- 17 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. I move
- 18 that this board does not count provisional
- 19 ballots in category only one voter signature.
- 20 Oh, I'm sorry. Excuse -- you want to make a
- 21 comment, sir? Yes. Come on. You come up,
- 22 sir. Sorry, sir. I didn't see you. I'm
- 23 sorry. I look at them -- you will say your
- 24 name for the record.

Page 34 1 MR. HOGGER: Chris Hogger. Thanks for coming up. 2 CHAIR SABIR: Go ahead, please. 3 MR. HOGGER: I arrived at my 4 5 polling place at 7:05. Mysteriously, the 6 whole box didn't show up, something I've been seeing happen since Catch Street election in 8 this city. So I was given a provisional 9 ballot as my only option, and it was actually 10 from the election judge that was there. was the one handing them out. She had said 11 12 she had never seen anything like it in terms 13 of the chaos that was going on at that poll. 14 She was the only one I dealt with dealing 15 with that ballot. 16 To me, the term one-voter signature 17 would be exactly how many you would need. 18 was not instructed to sign anything. I did 19 not have it reviewed. I handed it back to 20 her, and she dropped it on the floor next to 21 her foot. Not in a box, just on the floor. 22 I asked specifically if I could just come 23 back if the machines were up later and put a 24 vote in then and then you would have the

- 1 ability to just say, "Hey, no, they already
- 2 voted." And I was told absolutely, I cannot
- 3 do that.
- 4 But it sounds like there was about
- 5 67 people who did. You just threw their
- 6 votes out because they vote it in person
- 7 through a machine when I was told I couldn't
- 8 do that. So I'm here saying what the hell I
- 9 got to do to get my vote to count? Right?
- 10 You're getting ready to throw them out.
- 11 1,200 other people, you're getting ready to
- 12 just throw them out. Right? What more do I
- 13 have to do?
- 14 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you, sir.
- 15 Thank you. Does any commissioner want to
- 16 make any comments?
- MS. DEELEY: Yes.
- 18 CHAIR SABIR: The floor's yours,
- 19 Vice Chair.
- 20 MS. DEELEY: Just to assist in
- 21 showing everyone what we are talking about
- 22 here, I would like to display a blank
- 23 provisional deck envelope because I think
- 24 that the core of this issue is the lack of

1	understanding that we are asking voters to
2	sign the same envelope twice. The signature
3	boxes are within inches of each other. When
4	reading in re canvass of provisional ballots
5	in the 2024 primary election, I believe that
6	the court erred because this fact was not
7	plain to them.
8	To start, they referred to one
9	signature ballot as "unsigned". Quoting from
10	the majority opinion, "Walsh additionally
11	emphasizes Wagner provided a fully executed
12	affidavit attesting that the ballot was the
13	only one he submitted in that election. As
14	such, Walsh characterizes the envelope
15	signature requirement as unnecessary and
16	superfluous." That affidavit that they are
17	talking about is not on some other piece of
18	paper. It is the signature line on the left
19	side of the envelope that you see on the
20	screen.
21	The decision further spends several
22	pages diving into the meaning of the word
23	shall in the sentence, "shall place his

signature on the front of the provisional

24

	- ^-
1	ballot envelope". In the election code, this
2	sentence refers to the right-side signature
3	box, but nowhere does it mention that the
4	voter had already placed their signature on
5	the front of the provisional envelope on the
6	left side.
7	It then goes on to affirm that the
8	staff must compare the signature on the
9	envelope with the one on the voter SURE
10	record to assess whether it is genuine and
11	executed by the same person who signed the
12	affidavit. I will note that all of this
13	activity of signing provisional ballots is
14	happening in the polling place in front of
15	the election board workers. So I am not sure
16	which situation is occurring where the person
17	signing the left side would be different from
18	the person signing the right side. It seems
19	to me the judge of elections would have put a
20	stop to that if two different people were
21	filling out provisional envelopes.
22	As we heard from Kevin, our staff
23	only needs one of the two signatures to
24	compare it to the SURE system and determine

- 1 if it is genuine. I am aware of what 25 P.S.
- 2 3050 says about the need for both signatures,
- 3 but it would not be the first thing in the
- 4 election code to be thrown out because it
- 5 unfairly disenfranchises voters.
- 6 In conclusion, I believe that the
- 7 court erred in its decision in re canvass of
- 8 provisional ballots in the 2024 primary
- 9 election. I think that if presented the full
- 10 picture, and I have faith in our law
- 11 department's ability to do that, they would
- 12 find, using the buzzwords of the day, that
- 13 there is no compelling government interest in
- 14 making voters sign the same piece of paper
- 15 twice when we only need one to complete our
- 16 check.
- I will also note that this decision
- 18 came out late in the cycle. Our poll worker
- 19 training had already begun and we were unable
- 20 to fully communicate the newfound importance
- 21 on signing both sides. Furthermore, in
- 22 Luzerne County, where this case originated,
- 23 their envelopes actually have boxes on both
- 24 the left and right sides where the voter

- 1 needs to sign, while we only have it on the
- 2 right side. This makes it much harder for
- 3 the voter to notice the two places that they
- 4 need to sign. Thank you.
- 5 CHAIR SABIR: Sure. Secretary.
- 6 MR. BLUESTEIN: Thank you, Mr.
- 7 Chairman. I just want to thank Chris for
- 8 coming out and telling us your story about
- 9 your experience on Election Day. I also want
- 10 to say I agree with the Vice Chair in
- 11 principle that there is no compelling
- 12 interest that we should require two
- 13 signatures when one should suffice. But we
- 14 are bound by what the statute says and the
- 15 recent Supreme Court ruling. And if we are
- 16 appealed and the Supreme Court decides
- 17 differently, then they have every right to do
- 18 that, but absent further action by the court,
- 19 I think we're bound to follow what was
- 20 instructed to us by them.
- 21 CHAIR SABIR: I move that this
- 22 board does not count provisional ballots in
- 23 category only one voter signature. Is there
- 24 a second?

1	Page 40
1	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.
2	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein,
3	please call the roll.
4	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
5	MS. DEELEY: Nay.
6	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.
7	Chairman Sabir.
8	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.
9	MR. RICHARDSON: The next category
10	is the signature does not match what we have
11	in SURE, and there was one.
12	MR. BLUESTEIN: Kevin, do you have
13	it
14	CHAIR SABIR: You want to put on
15	the screen?
16	MR. RICHARDSON: No, I don't have
17	it with me.
18	MS. DEELEY: We can come back to
19	it.
20	MR. RICHARDSON: Sure. Yeah. So
21	the next
22	CHAIR SABIR: So we'll come back to
23	category 9. Okay. Please proceed to the
24	

Page 41 1 MR. RICHARDSON: The next category 2 was not signed by board workers. There was 564. 3 MR. BONIN: Mr. Chairman, I can be 4 pretty brief on this. In addition to all of 5 6 the arguments stated before as to -- this is a process curated by poll workers, and voters should not be disenfranchised for their 9 errors. I only need to note that the statute 10 itself in 3050, where it lists the reasons 11 why a provisional ballot shall not be counted under (a.4), subsection 5, subsection II, I 12 have this on the screen here, it lists five 13 14 categories. "Wasn't signed by the poll 15 worker" is not listed among them. 16 And the Supreme Court has been 17 clear, where the statute lists consequences 18 for certain actions, they have to be 19 followed. But where it lists some and 20 excludes it for others, that means that it's 21 not a reason to throw out a ballot. The 22 General Assembly was clear on the reasons why 23 provisional ballots shall not be counted. 24 This is not among those enumerated reasons

Page 42 all these ballots should be counted. 1 2 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. 3 Counselor. MS. KERNS: With regard to this 4 5 category, the statute is clear that the election board workers must sign these 6 affidavits. And that is in place to prevent fraud and to make sure that the election 9 board workers see these provisional ballots and are seeing that the actual voter is 10 11 signing them. 12 We can't guess what is happening or 13 whether or not the judge of elections and the 14 other board workers saw this. The reason we 15 don't have to guess is because the General 16 Assembly put this in the statute. election board workers didn't follow the 17 18 statute, that's an entirely different 19 proceeding. It has nothing to do with these 20 specific ballots. It has to do with whether 21 or not the election board workers did their 22 job. 23 And with regard to the training, if 24 it was not in the training, well, it was

Page 43 1 always in the statute. So it should have been in the training whether or not the in re 2 canvassing case came out from the primary 3 election. So we're asking that these ballots not be counted. 6 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, may I ask Kevin a question? 8 9 CHAIR SABIR: Sure. 10 MR. BLUESTEIN: Kevin, do we have any reason to believe that these ballots did 11 12 not follow the proper chain of custody and 13 weren't returned to us on election night? 14 MR. RICHARDSON: No. 15 MR. BLUESTEIN: Thank you. 16 CHAIR SABIR: Vice Chair, do you 17 have any questions? 18 MS. DEELEY: I have none. 19 CHAIR SABIR: I move that the board 20 counts provisional ballots in the category of 21 not signed by board workers. Is there a 22 second? 23 MS. DEELEY: Second. 24 Secretary Bluestein, CHAIR SABIR:

1	please call the roll.	Page 44
2	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
3	MS. DEELEY: Aye.	
4	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
5	Chairman Sabir. CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please	
6	proceed.	
7	MR. RICHARDSON: The next category	
8	is no ward division on the declaration	
9	envelope. There's 59.	
10	CHAIR SABIR: 59	
11	MR. BONIN: Mr. Chairman, I could	
12	view this for standing. This isn't a	
13	requirement in the statute. It's not listed	
14	as a reason in the election code as a reason	
15	to exclude a ballot. These ballots should be	
16	counted.	
17	MS. KERNS: No, case by case basis.	
18	I'm not going to say anything on this one.	
19	CHAIR SABIR: I move that the board	
20	counts provisional ballots in the category of	
21	no ward division on envelope. Is there a	
22	second?	
23	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	
24	MS. DEELEY: Second. And then, if	
	iio. Billill Become. Intercritically if	

1	I may.	Page 45
2	CHAIR SABIR: Go ahead.	
3	MS. DEELEY: Simply put, the voters	
4	should not be disenfranchised for mistakes by	
5	election board workers. The warden division	
6	information is Located on the section of the	
7	provisional ballot envelope that is to be	
8	filled out by the election board worker, not	
9	the voter. The voter should not be penalized	
10	for mistakes by the election board workers.	
11	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary, do you	
12	have any comment?	
13	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have no comment	
14	to add. Thank you.	
15	CHAIR SABIR: Please proceed to	
16	vote.	
17	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
18	MS. DEELEY: Aye.	
19	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
20	Chairman Sabir.	
21	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.	
22	MR. RICHARDSON: The next category	
23	is other. I have none.	
24	CHAIR SABIR: So we're going to go	

Page 46 1 back to the category of the signature does 2 not match for that category. It's category number 9 on the agenda. 3 MS. STOHR: So you can see on the 4 5 screen -- sorry. Alison Stohr. You can see 6 on the screen the provisional ballot, and it lists the names Jameal Maddox. And one of our staff has written in Jameal Stevens. 9 you can see the signatures here and here. 10 And Kevin is going to pull up the SURE file for this voter. 11 12 MS. DEELEY: Can you put that on 13 the screen? The SURE --14 MS. STOHR: Oh, which is on the 15 Commissioners' screens. Thank you, Nick. 16 MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, may I 17 ask Kevin a question? 18 CHAIR SABIR: Yes, you may. 19 MR. BLUESTEIN: Kevin, is there no 20 Jameal Maddox registered? The staff determined that this person, Jameal Stevens, 21 22 is Jameal Maddox? 23 MR. RICHARDSON: Yes, Commissioner. 24 If you look, his former name was Jameal

1	Stevens Maddox and he changed his name	Page 47
2	without notifying us.	
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: Understood. Thank	
4	you.	
5	MR. RICHARDSON: So he wrote Jameal	
6	Maddox on this thing, but he's called Jameal	
7	Stevens.	
8	CHAIR SABIR: So Kevin, you spoke	
9	to that you spoke to him? Did y'all	
10	communicate with this	
11	MR. RICHARDSON: I'm sorry,	
12	Commissioner. I didn't hear you.	
13	CHAIR SABIR: Did you communicate	
14	with Jameal?	
15	MR. RICHARDSON: I have not.	
16	MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, may I	
17	make comment? From my visualization, even	
18	though the last name is different, Jameal is	
19	signed similarly enough that I don't see it	
20	being a mismatched signature from that	
21	perspective.	
22	MS. DEELEY: Yeah. Mr. Chairman,	
23	if I may.	
24	CHAIR SABIR: Sure.	

	Page 48
1	MS. DEELEY: I think that the J is
2	pretty distinctive. And the first name, the
3	signature looks the same.
4	CHAIR SABIR: Okay. So I move that
5	this board counts the provisional ballots
6	with signature does in a category
7	signatures does not match. Is there a
8	second?
9	MS. DEELEY: Second.
10	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein,
11	please call the roll.
12	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
13	MS. DEELEY: Aye.
14	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.
15	Chairman Sabir.
16	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. So that's all
17	the forms. Is it?
18	MR. RICHARDSON: That concludes
19	categories, Mr. Chairman.
20	CHAIR SABIR: Huh?
21	CHAIR SABIR: That concludes the
22	categories, Mr. Chairman.
23	CHAIR SABIR: Thank you, Kevin. I
24	appreciate you. You got to that pretty good.

- 1 Okay. It's getting close to 1 o'clock. I
- 2 know I said around 1 o'clock, but let's just
- 3 -- hold on. Slow down. I heard you. Just
- 4 hold on. I said we're going to take a 10-
- 5 minute recess as we transition into the
- 6 challenges.
- 7 MS. STOHR: Can I?
- 8 CHAIR SABIR: Yeah.
- 9 MS. STOHR: The attorneys actually
- 10 have a call at 1 p.m., Chairman. So I wonder
- 11 if maybe I can give an overview of the
- 12 process and then when we come back, we can
- 13 just begin the challenge hearings.
- 14 CHAIR SABIR: Sure also. Okay,
- 15 everybody. I'm just --
- 16 MS. STOHR: Just for the record, my
- 17 name is Alison Stohr, A-L-I-S-O-N S-T-O-H-R,
- 18 deputy city solicitor for the Philadelphia
- 19 Law Department and counselor to the Board of
- 20 Elections. So the provisional challenge
- 21 hearing process is going to follow these
- 22 steps. I will read up -- I will present the
- 23 category that a challenge falls into, and I
- 24 will read the number of provisional ballots

Page 50 1 that fall into that category. I'll give a 2 short explanation of what that category is and a summary of the staff determinations in 3 each category. Then any challenged voters 4 who are here at the public hearing are welcome to provide comments. 6 I will then read into the transcript any emails we received from voters 8 9 in that category who submitted testimony. 10 Then we will allow any challengers or 11 attorneys representing challengers in that 12 category to speak, followed by attorneys 13 representing voters whose ballots were 14 challenged or anyone opposing the challenge 15 to speak. Then voters will have the ability 16 to respond if they would like to respond to 17 anything that those folks have said. 18 the commissioners will take a vote on that 19 category of challenged provisional ballots. 20 Any questions? Okay. Can't wait to have a 21 challenge hearing. 22 (Off the record.) 23 CHAIR SABIR: Good afternoon. We 24 now resume for our hearings. We'll call on

- 1 Alison.
- MS. STOHR: Good afternoon,
- 3 commissioners. The first category for our
- 4 challenge provisional ballots are blank
- 5 forms. We have four blank forms, and the
- 6 staff has determined that two of them should
- 7 be a full count and two of them should be not
- 8 counted because they only had one voter
- 9 signature. I'll show you each of the forms
- 10 and you'll see that there is no reason --
- 11 well, I got to zoom in. You will see that
- 12 there is no reason on each of the forms.
- 13 Those are the four blank challenges.
- I'll now invite any voters who are
- 15 here to speak on this category to come up.
- 16 We received no emailed voter comments. Would
- 17 anyone from the challengers want to speak on
- 18 this? Anyone representing the voters being
- 19 challenged want to speak on this? You have
- 20 to come talk into the microphone.
- MR. BONIN: Sure. One sentence,
- 22 Mr. Chairman. Adam Bonin, on behalf of Casey
- 23 for Senate. If there's no reason provided,
- 24 the voter has no notice as to the basis for

Page 52 1 the challenge, and we believe that the 2 challenge should just be summarily rejected. MS. STOHR: That concludes all 3 4 testimony for this category. I move that this CHAIR SABIR: 6 board rejects challenges as an invalid and follow staff determination. Is there a second? MR. BLUESTEIN: Second. 10 CHAIR SABIR: Does any commissioner 11 want to make any comments? Hearing none, 12 we'll proceed to vote. Secretary Bluestein, 13 please call the roll. 14 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. 15 MS. DEELEY: Nay. 16 MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote Aye. 17 Chairman Sabir. 18 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed. 19 MS. STOHR: The next category of 20 provisional challenges is no provisional reason selected. So if you look at the 21 22 provisional ballot, there is this area here 23 where a poll worker can check the reason that 24 the provisional ballot is being provided.

- 1 this category, we have 229 provisional Staff had determined that 163 of 2 ballots. them should be a full count. 59 of them should be -- am I looking at the right 4 category? Sorry. Yeah, 59 of them should be 6 a partial count and seven of them should be
- not counted, two because they had a canceled
- record and five because the ballot only had
- 9 one voter signature.
- Are any voters represented in this 10 11 category here who would like to speak? 12 did receive several emails in this category 13 that I'll read into the record. The first one is from Pete Campion, who wrote, "I was 14 15 working as a clerk on election day so I could 16 not go to my voting center." The second is 17 from Ann Rollins Bonay, who wrote, "I just 18
- located a Philadelphia website with a list of
- 19 provisional ballot challenges and see that my
- 20 name is included on that list. I remain very
- concerned that the Philadelphia hotline 21
- 22 worker I spoke with told me that there was no
- 23 action needed.
- Here is additional information 24

- 1 about my provisional ballot. On the day
- 2 before the election, I learned that the City
- 3 had improperly canceled my registration. I
- 4 called the PA voter hotline and was
- 5 transferred several times, ultimately to a
- 6 satellite office in Philadelphia. The
- 7 election worker I spoke with at the satellite
- 8 office confirmed this was an error on the
- 9 city's part. I had previously completed a
- 10 form to cancel my mail ballot request so that
- 11 I could vote in person on election day.
- 12 The election worker I spoke with
- 13 confirmed that, instead, the office had
- 14 improperly canceled my registration. The
- 15 election worker corrected the issue
- 16 immediately so that I was again properly
- 17 registered to vote, but it was not completed
- in time for my name to appear in the poll
- 19 book.
- 20 On election day, I completed a
- 21 provisional ballot. The reason listed for
- 22 the challenge to my ballot is reason for
- 23 provisional ballot not checked, but I very
- 24 distinctly remember the judge of election

- 1 saying that she was selecting the reason that
- 2 my name was not in the poll book. My full
- 3 name is Ann Rollins Bonay, " and then she
- 4 provides contact information.
- 5 The next email is from Ariadnay
- 6 Duboy, and she says, "I, Ariadnay Duboy,
- 7 submitted a provisional ballot after
- 8 receiving a mail-in ballot which was
- 9 misplaced but not submitted." And finally,
- 10 Amir Osani wrote, "Whatever I selected Bob
- 11 Casey on a split ticket with Trump and Trump
- 12 already beat Kamala, this only hurts Bob
- 13 Casey and so therefore don't count my ballot
- 14 for this stupid reason."
- Those are all of the emailed
- 16 comments from voters in this category. We
- 17 will now proceed to the challengers in this
- 18 category if they would like to speak.
- 19 MS. KERNS: Linda Kerns, on behalf
- 20 of the McCormick campaign. First, can we
- 21 make that an exhibit that's part of the
- 22 transcript, that chart that's on the -- can I
- 23 ask that so that the transcript is a little
- 24 bit clearer?

Page 56 1 MS. STOHR: Yes. 2 MS. KERNS: So just so I'm clear, 3 some of these were not counted under other 4 categories, Ms. Stohr? MS. STOHR: Yes, that is correct. 6 They were challenged and then reviewed. upon review, the final staff determination is 7 listed in this chart. 8 9 MS. KERNS: So with regard to these 10 challenges, we ask that they not be counted 11 because under the statute, it's required that 12 the voter signs the affidavit and also check 13 off the reason for casting the provisional ballots. So that is clearly required by the 14 15 statute, and we should follow the law as 16 enacted by the General Assembly. 17 MS. STOHR: Anyone else from the 18 challengers who wishes to speak? We'll now 19 hear from people representing voters whose 20 ballots were challenged. 21 MR. BONIN: Thank you. And I 22 actually want to put the sample ballot back 23 on the screen. Oh, here's where the camera 24 It's actually very clear when you look is.

1	at the ballot envelope that the reason for	Pagi
2	the ballot, contrary to what my learned	
3	colleague said, the reason for ballot is for	
4	election officials only to provide. It is	
5	not a thing for the voters to provide at all.	
6	Therefore, number 1 is subsumed	
7	within our previous arguments about poll	
8	worker not disenfranchising voters, nor am I	
9	actually aware of any place within the	
10	election code that this information is	
11	required. It is certainly not enumerated on	
12	the list of reasons to exclude a ballot.	
13	Beyond that, I'm just going to say right now,	
14	everything that I said in the prior hearing	

with regards to missing signatures, the board

- MS. STOHR: Is there anyone else
 who would like to speak on this category?
 That concludes testimony for this category.
 MS. DEELEY: Mr. Chairman.
- 24 CHAIR SABIR: Yes.

it again, but thank you.

15

19

		Page 58
1	MS. DEELEY: If I may.	J
2	CHAIR SABIR: Yes, you may.	
3	MS. DEELEY: I would ask that we	
4	should be counting the votes we should be	
5	counting the ones that have one voter	
6	signature, and I ask that if we can have two	
7	votes and separate out the one voter	
8	signature.	
9	CHAIR SABIR: Are you making a	
10	motion?	
11	MS. DEELEY: I'm making a request	
12	before the motion is voted on.	
13	CHAIR SABIR: Are you making it?	
14	You're asking for an additional vote. Is	
15	that correct?	
16	MS. DEELEY: Yes, I'm asking that	
17	the one signature be pulled out and we vote	
18	on them separately.	
19	CHAIR SABIR: That sounds like a	
20	motion. Is there a second? Hearing no	
21	second, we will proceed. I move that this	
22	board rejects challenges and follows staff	
23	determination. Is there a second?	
24	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	

1	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein,	Page 59
2	please call the roll.	
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
4	MS. DEELEY: Aye.	
5	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
6	Chairman Sabir?	
7	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.	
8	MS. STOHR: The next category is	
9	missing board worker signature. So this	
10	category involves provisional ballot	
11	declaration envelopes where either one or	
12	both of these signatures before the judge of	
13	elections or the minority inspector were	
14	missing from the provisional ballot. In this	
15	category, we had 99 ballots. The staff	
16	determined that 68 of them should be full	
17	counts, 28 of them should be partial counts,	
18	and three of them should be not counted, one	
19	because or two because they were missing	
20	one voter signature and one because the voter	
21	voted in person.	
22	Are there any voters who fall into	
23	this category who would like to provide	
24	testimony? We did receive several emailed	

- 1 comments in this category. The first is from
- 2 Mckensy Shaffer. "Hello. My name is Mckensy
- 3 Shaffer, and I received an email that stated
- 4 my provisional ballot has been challenged due
- 5 to a missing board worker signature. I spoke
- 6 to someone on the phone today and let them
- 7 know I am unable to come to the hearing
- 8 tomorrow afternoon and they directed me to
- 9 send all my information to this email. My
- 10 voter registration number, address, and full
- 11 name is below. Please let me know if you
- 12 need more information." And then she lists
- 13 her contact information.
- 14 The next email is from Amber Eric.
- 15 "Hello. I received an email this morning
- 16 saying that my provisional ballot has been
- 17 challenged because the board worker did not
- 18 sign it. Is there a way to remedy this so my
- 19 ballot can be counted?" And she lists her
- 20 voter registration number.
- The next email is from Megan
- 22 Claiborn, who says, "Good afternoon. I can
- 23 see that my provisional ballot is being
- 24 challenged for lack of an election official

- 1 signature. I am unable to make the hearing
- 2 tomorrow as I am out of town. However, I can
- 3 confirm that I submitted a provisional ballot
- 4 after I misplaced placed my mail-in ballot
- 5 and I personally watched the election
- 6 official sign the envelope on at least one
- 7 place. Respectfully, I hope my vote is
- 8 counted in this very important and close
- 9 election. Thank you."
- 10 The final email is from Cherry
- 11 Chadwick, who writes, "Hello, County Board of
- 12 Elections. There were judges and election
- 13 officials there. Please let me know how to
- 14 move forward. Not sure what the confusion
- 15 is. Please advise. Thank you for contacting
- 16 me, your time, and attention to this matter."
- 17 Those were all the emailed comments in this
- 18 category. Would someone representing the
- 19 challengers like to speak?
- 20 MS. KERNS: Yes. This is Linda
- 21 Kerns on behalf of --
- MS. STOHR: Make sure your
- 23 microphone is on, Linda.
- 24 MS. KERNS: Linda Kerns on behalf

Page 62 of the David McCormick campaign. 1 And because 25 P.S. 3050(a.4)(2) requires that the 2 affidavit be signed by both the judge of 3 4 elections and minority inspector, we would like these challenges upheld and these ballots not to be counted because the 6 election code requires that the judge of elections and the minority inspector sign 9 these provisional ballot envelopes. MS. STOHR: 10 Would anyone else from 11 the challengers like to speak? 12 representing ballots being challenged or 13 others opposing this challenge can speak now. 14 MR. BONIN: That's what I said 15 before. 16 MS. STOHR: Would anyone else like 17 to speak on this category? That concludes 18 testimony for this category. 19 CHAIR SABIR: Does anyone, the 20 commissioners want to make comment on this 21 category before we proceed? 22 MS. DEELEY: Mr. Chairman. 23 CHAIR SABIR: Sure. 24 Mr. Chairman, I would MS. DEELEY:

Page 63 1 just like to state that I believe that we should be counting the two one-voter 2 signature. 3 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. 4 5 Secretary. 6 MR. BLUESTEIN: I have nothing to add. Thank you. CHAIR SABIR: I move that this 9 board rejects challenges and follows staff determination. Is there a second? 10 11 MR. BLUESTEIN: Second. 12 MS. DEELEY: Second. 13 CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein, 14 please call the roll. MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. 15 16 MS. DEELEY: Aye. 17 MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye. 18 Chairman Sabir. 19 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed. 20 MS. STOHR: The next category is 21 voter information missing. This category 22 includes any challenges where some part of an 23 address, a date of birth, a current address, 24 some part of this affidavit was missing

- 1 information.
- 2 In this category, there were 44
- 3 challenges. The staff determined that 22 of
- 4 those ballots should be fully counted, 16
- 5 should be partially counted and six should
- 6 not be counted, one because it had a canceled
- 7 record, one because there was a mail-in
- 8 ballot that was cancelled, and one that's not
- 9 on the spreadsheet. One moment. Love to do
- 10 math while people are watching. Oh, sorry.
- 11 I missed -- okay. I'm just bad at reading a
- 12 spreadsheet. Two because there was one voter
- 13 signature, one because it was registered out
- of county, and one because they voted in
- 15 person.
- Are there any voters in this
- 17 category that would like to speak? We did
- 18 not receive any emails in this category, so
- 19 we'll now proceed to the challengers in this
- 20 category. Would they like to speak?
- 21 MS. KERNS: Yes. Linda Kerns on
- 22 behalf of the McCormick campaign. As I noted
- 23 previously, under 25 P.S. 3050(a.4)(2), this
- 24 information in the affidavit is required by

- 1 the statute, which includes the voter's name,
- 2 date of birth, where they were registered,
- 3 what county they reside in. So we ask that
- 4 these challenges be upheld because these
- 5 ballots were not filled out correctly.
- 6 MS. STOHR: Would anyone else from
- 7 the challengers like to speak? Then we'll
- 8 move to those representing ballots being
- 9 challenged.
- 10 MR. BONIN: Adam Bonin on behalf of
- 11 Bob Casey for Senate. As before, the General
- 12 Assembly set forth the specific reasons for
- 13 which a provisional ballot shall not be
- 14 counted. This is not listed among those
- 15 reasons. And therefore, while the voters may
- 16 have been directed by the forum and by
- 17 statute to provide this information, because
- 18 this is not listed as a reason for the ballot
- 19 to be excluded, the staff recommendation
- 20 should be upheld and the challenges should be
- 21 denied.
- MS. STOHR: Is there anyone else
- 23 who would like to speak on this category?
- 24 That concludes testimony in this category?

1	Page 66 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. I move
2	that the board reject challenges and follow
3	staff determination. Is there a second?
4	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.
5	CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioners
6	have any comments?
7	MS. DEELEY: Mr. Chairman, I would
8	just like to state again that I believe that
9	we should be counting the two one-voter
10	signature ballots. I vote aye.
11	CHAIR SABIR: Thank you.
12	Secretary, please call the roll.
13	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
14	MS. DEELEY: Aye.
15	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.
16	Chairman Sabir.
17	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.
18	MS. STOHR: The next category is
19	already voted. These are voters who voted by
20	some other method. There were three
21	
	challenges in this category. All three of
22	them were determined by staff that they
23	should not be counted, two because they had a
24	mail-in ballot that was counted and one

Page 67 1 because the voter voted in person. Would the 2 challengers like to speak on this category? Yes. We ask that these MS. KERNS: 4 challenges be upheld. The statute is clear that the County Board of Elections must confirm that the individual did not cast any 6 other ballot. It's clear that these three voters did. So we ask that the challenges be 9 upheld. 10 MS. STOHR: Would those 11 representing voters with challenged ballots 12 in this category like to speak? Is there 13 anyone else who would like to speak on this 14 category? That concludes testimony on this 15 category. 16 CHAIR SABIR: I move that this board rejects challenges and follow the staff 17 18 determination. Is there a second? 19 MR. BLUESTEIN: Second. 20 CHAIR SABIR: Is there any comments 21 from any commissioners on this category? 22 MS. DEELEY: I have none. 23 MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, I 24 just want to make it clear for the record

Page 68 1 that the challengers are asking us to not count these ballots. The staff have 2 determined to not count these ballots. So it 3 makes the challenge unnecessary, which is why 4 I believe the motion to reject it makes 6 sense. Thank you. Please call the roll. CHAIR SABIR: MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. 9 MS. DEELEY: I vote aye. 10 MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye. 11 Chairman Sabir. 12 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed. 13 MS. STOHR: The next category is 14 challenges alleging that there was a missing 15 voter signature. There are 34 of these 16 challenges filed, and staff determined that 17 one of those should be a partial count and 33 18 of those should not be counted because they 19 only had -- because they were either not 20 signed by the voter at all or only had one 21 voter signature. Do the commissioners want 22 any more information about the ballots in 23 this category? 24 (No verbal response.)

Page 69 1 MS. STOHR: Great. Are there any 2 voters who would like to speak on this category? The challengers in this category 3 are invited to speak. 4 MS. KERNS: Yes. Linda Kerns on 6 behalf of the McCormick campaign. These challenges were made because the election board workers were not following the 9 procedure and not setting these ballots aside 10 due to the issues with only having one voter 11 signature. So we're asking that these 12 challenges be upheld. 13 There appears to be one that on the 14 chart provided by the law department, it just 15 indicates partial count. It's voter number 16 01 -- well, it's line number 391 in the 17 chart, and it's voter number 014951929-51. 18 And under the reason not to count, it's 19 blank. And the staff determined partial 20 count. 21 MS. STOHR: So this is the ballot, 22 and you can see that there are, in fact, two 23 voters. 24 MS. KERNS: So that was a mistake.

Page 70 1 So that challenge would be withdrawn. Yeah. MS. STOHR: Would someone from the 2 3 challenged voters or voters who had their 4 provisional ballots challenged like to speak? Is there anyone else who would like to speak 6 on this category? That concludes testimony in this category. CHAIR SABIR: So Alison, so since she said she withdrew her challenge, so we 9 10 don't have to vote on that? 11 MS. KERNS: No, just on that one. 12 CHAIR SABIR: So on that one. 13 Okay. 14 MS. STOHR: So yes, you could vote 15 on the 33 ballots alleged to be missing a 16 voter signature. 17 CHAIR SABIR: Okay. I moved that 18 this board rejects the challenges and follow 19 the staff determination. Is there a second? 20 MS. KERNS: Wait. 21 MR. BLUESTEIN: Second. 22 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: They're 23 rejecting them because the staff 24 determination --

	i
Page 1 MR. BLUESTEIN: I would just state	71
2 again	
3 CHAIR SABIR: Excuse me. Got to	
4 keep your voice down, please.	
5 MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, may	
6 I?	
7 CHAIR SABIR: Oh, I was talking to	
8	
9 MR. BLUESTEIN: Just to state again	
10 for the record, the reason that the challenge	
11 is being rejected is because the staff have	
12 determined not to count these ballots. So	
13 the challenge is requesting the ballots to	
14 not be counted, and we are voting to not	
15 count them.	
16 MS. KERNS: So just so I'm clear	
17 because when we challenged them we did not	
18 have the staff determination at the time, but	
19 now we do. Okay, I get it. Okay. Thank	
20 you.	
21 CHAIR SABIR: Does any	
22 commissioners want to make any comments on	
23 the motion?	
MS. DEELEY: No comment.	

1	CHAIR SABIR: Hearing none, please	Page 72
2	proceed to vote.	
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
4	MS. DEELEY: Nay.	
5	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
6	Chairman Sabir.	
7	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed.	
8	MS. STOHR: The next category is	
9	voter signature issues. I think it's easiest	
10	to explain these by just reviewing each one.	
11	So in this one, the challenge was that the	
12	voter did not oh, hey, here we go. Okay.	
13	There are four ballots. This one, the	
14	challenge was that the voter did not sign the	
15	affidavit in the correct area. And you will	
16	see the provisional here that the voter has	
17	signed here and here. And the staff	
18	determination on this ballot was a partial	
19	count.	
20	The next challenge just says	
21	signature. And you will see that the voter	
22	has signed here, and the staff determination	
23	was a full count, which may be a mistake by	
24	the staff. Well, I'm sure we'll be talking	

Page 73

- 1 about it in court in a few days. The next
- 2 challenge is incomplete signature on the
- 3 right. This is the ballot. You will see one
- 4 signature here and another signature here.
- 5 And the staff determination was a full count.
- 6 And finally, we have a challenge,
- 7 the signature was not in the correct
- 8 affidavit spot. You will see similar to the
- 9 first ballot, the voter has signed here and
- 10 here. And the staff determined that this
- 11 should be a partial count. Are there any
- 12 voters in this category that would like to be
- 13 heard? Would someone from the challengers
- 14 like to be heard on this category? Sure.
- 15 Commissioner Deeley.
- 16 MS. DEELEY: Alison, could you pull
- 17 that Matthews envelope up again, please?
- 18 MS. STOHR: Yes.
- 19 MS. DEELEY: So could the signature
- 20 -- I mean, the second line under the X looks
- 21 just like the signature line.
- MR. BLUESTEIN: I think we need
- 23 Kevin to pull it up in shorter to determine
- 24 that.

1	Page 74 MS. DEELEY: Can you pull that for
2	me, please?
3	MS. STOHR: Kevin, can you see the
4	SURE ID? I can read it aloud if that's
5	helpful.
6	MR. RICHARDSON: I can see it.
7	MS. KERNS: Ms. Stohr, can I ask a
8	question?
9	MS. STOHR: Sure.
10	MS. KERNS: With regard to the
11	partial count, is that because there was
12	another issue with the residents of the
13	voter.
14	MS. STOHR: It means that the voter
15	voted in a ward and division different than
16	the ward and division where they're
17	registered. And so their vote can only be
18	counted for races that align between those
19	two divisions.
20	MS. KERNS: So essentially, these
21	ballots have two issues. They have signature
22	issues and potentially didn't vote in their
23	own district?
24	MS. STOHR: That's not an issue.

1	Page 75 That's just a way that we determine what will
2	be counted.
3	MS. KERNS: Okay.
4	MS. DEELEY: Alison.
5	MS. STOHR: Yes.
6	MS. DEELEY: I would just like to
7	state for the record that looking at the SURE
8	record, it does indicate that Mr. Matthews
9	does use printed letters as his signature.
10	It matches.
11	CHAIR SABIR: And I agree with
12	that.
13	MS. STOHR: Noted. Where were we?
14	The challengers were about to talk. Did you
15	talk already, Linda?
16	MS. KERNS: Not yet. So on behalf
17	of the McCormick campaign, Linda Kerns. We
18	would ask that these challenges be upheld and
19	these ballots not be counted because they
20	were not signed correctly.
21	MS. STOHR: Would anyone from the
22	challenged voters like to be heard?
23	MR. BONIN: If I could be heard
24	briefly. I believe I saw on at least one of

Page 76 1 these challenges that they were an observer on behalf of Kennedy Goodwin. I forget which 2 one it was. Yeah. My understanding is that 3 Kennedy Goodwin was a congressional candidate 4 in the fifth congressional district, which within the City of Philadelphia comprises a 6 very small part of South Philadelphia. I would question the standing of the observer on behalf of that candidate to 9 10 challenge anything outside of that district. And I want to make sort of a blanket 11 12 objection to crediting any objection which 13 has been made by an observer on behalf of a 14 candidate who would not be affected in any 15 way by the counting or not counting of that 16 ballot. 17 MS. STOHR: Is there anyone else 18 who would like to be heard on this category? 19 That concludes testimony in this category. 20 MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, can 21 Alison put up number 415 again, please? 22 Oh, gosh. Can you tell MS. STOHR: 23 me the voter name?

I believe that is

MR. BLUESTEIN:

24

1	Kliver.	Page 77
2	MS. STOHR: Sure.	
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: Because I believe	
4	that 414, 416, and 417 all had two	
5	signatures, it looked like, and this one only	
6	has one.	
7	MS. STOHR: Yes, that appears to be	
8	correct.	
9	MR. BLUESTEIN: So is the intention	
10	of the board to vote on this entire category	
11	or by ballot or how do we want to proceed,	
12	Mr. Chairman?	
13	CHAIR SABIR: I'm saying do the	
14	whole category, but if you want to make a	
15	motion to exclude one	
16	MR. BLUESTEIN: Yes, I would like	
17	to make a motion to separate out this ballot	
18	from the other three as I believe that the	
19	staff made a mistake in the determination of	
20	how to count this ballot separate from the	
21	others.	
22	CHAIR SABIR: Okay. So you want to	
23	what's that number for the record? What's	
24	that number	

1	MR. BLUESTEIN: 415.	Page 78
2	CHAIR SABIR: 415. Okay. So I'll	
3	second that. Vice Chair Deeley, do you want	
4	to make a statement on that?	
5	MS. DEELEY: No, I have none.	
6	CHAIR SABIR: You want to proceed	
7	to vote on that?	
8	MR. BLUESTEIN: Yeah. Vice Chair	
9	Deeley.	
10	MS. DEELEY: Nay.	
11	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
12	Chairman Sabir.	
13	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. So just for the	
14	record sakes, we're segregating 415 from this	
15	category. Okay. So for the rest of those	
16	ballots in this category, I move that the	
17	board rejects the challenges and follow the	
18	staff determination for the category. Is	
19	there a second?	
20	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	
21	CHAIR SABIR: Does any	
22	commissioners have any comments? Please	
23	proceed to vote.	
24	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	

1	MS. DEELEY: Aye.	Page 79
2	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
3	Chairman Sabir.	
4	CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Alison, Please	
5	proceed.	
6	MS. STOHR: The next category is	
7	signature mismatch.	
8	MR. BLUESTEIN: Excuse me, Mr.	
9	Chairman. Before we proceed, I think we have	
10	to vote on 415 because we just pulled 415	
11	out.	
12	CHAIR SABIR: That motion was just	
13	to pull it out.	
14	MR. BLUESTEIN: Right. So now we	
15	have to vote on whether to count the ballot	
16	or not. It's a one signature ballot	
17	question.	
18	CHAIR SABIR: I thought we ruled on	
19	that category.	
20		
	MR. BLUESTEIN: So the motion I	
21	made was to pull 415 out separately, to do a	
22	second separate vote. So we just voted on	
23	416 we just voted on 414, 416, and 417.	
24	So now we would just need to vote on 415	

Page 80 1 before Alison proceeds. 2 MS. DEELEY: You want to make a motion? 3 MR. BLUESTEIN: If you'd like, I 4 can make a motion to reject the staff 5 recommendation, to make this a full count 6 upholding the challenge, and to not count this ballot. 9 CHAIR SABIR: Second. Any commissioners want to make a comment? 10 11 Hearing none, please call the roll. 12 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. 13 MS. DEELEY: Nay. 14 MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye. 15 Chairman Sabir. 16 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. 17 MR. BLUESTEIN: Thank you, 18 Chairman. 19 CHAIR SABIR: Alison, please 20 proceed. 21 MS. STOHR: The next category is a 22 very fun one. It is signature mismatch. 23 There were 29 ballots in this category. staff determined that 18 of these should be 24

Page 81

- 1 full counts, seven of them should be partial
- 2 counts, and four of them should not be
- 3 counted because there was indeed a signature
- 4 mismatch.
- 5 I think the easiest way to proceed
- 6 this category is to go through each one
- 7 individually, and Kevin can look up the SURE
- 8 system ID. And if that voter is here, they
- 9 are welcome to make comments. And then we
- 10 will have universal comments by the attorneys
- 11 at the end. So the first signature mismatch
- 12 challenge is here. It says the signatures
- don't match SURE system. This is the ballot
- 14 of the voter. And Kevin will pull up the
- 15 SURE system ID.
- 16 MS. SNYDER: Since the SURE system
- 17 thing isn't over there and I'd like to
- 18 possibly address these, can I just look over
- 19 Kevin's shoulder? Are we okay with that?
- 20 And Kevin, is that okay with you?
- MS. STOHR: He's used to having
- 22 people look over his shoulder. The staff
- 23 determination on this ballot was don't count,
- and the reason given was signature mismatch.

		Page	82
1	CHAIR SABIR: So Counselor.		
2	MS. STOHR: Yes.		
3	CHAIR SABIR: So we're going to		
4	vote on each		
5	MS. STOHR: I mean, it may make		
6	sense to vote on each of these individually.		
7	Yes.		
8	CHAIR SABIR: Individually. Okay.		
9	MS. STOHR: Yes.		
10	MS. SNYDER: We ask		
11	MS. STOHR: Oh, yes. Is the voter		
12	here? If not, would someone from the		
13	challenger like to speak? The challenger was		
14	Goodwin.		
15	MS. KERNS: Right. And I would		
16	just like to note on behalf of the McCormick		
17	campaign that on the chart provided by the		
18	law department where it notes challenger, all		
19	of the Republican candidates were bound by		
20	the procedures of the city commissioner's		
21	office, in that we submitted lists of		
22	observers and then we submitted lists of our		
23	authorized representatives who would be		
24	challenging.		

Page 83 And the staff is the one who 1 2 basically assigned us to the individual candidates. So we really had no control over 3 what candidate we were observing for. 4 just had observers on behalf of all of our candidates so this would go quicker so that 6 we could have 10 observers in there rather than just one on behalf of McCormick. 9 just wanted to note that to begin with. 10 And then we agree with the determination of the worker that this should 11 12 not be -- that this ballot should not be counted because it is a signature mismatch. 13 14 And the statute is clear that when the 15 signature does not appear genuine or not executed by the voter, it should not be 16 counted under (a.4)(5)(ii)(b). 17 18 MS. STOHR: Would anyone 19 representing voters being challenged like to 20 And you need to do so into a speak? 21 microphone. 22 Commissioners, I would MS. SNYDER: 23 ask you to consider the fact that the 24 signature on the SURE system is such that it

Page 84

1	shows initials and that it certainly can be
2	taken that this could be a match. We don't
3	know or I don't have in front of me the date
4	that this person registered to vote, how they
5	did so, whether they did so on a screen
6	versus on paper, but certainly that mark from
7	that voter doesn't show that it's different.
8	For example, had that voter written
9	out their whole name and the signature was
10	substantially different, then we might say
11	that there are material errors. But where
12	someone has made their mark as initials,
13	they've shown an intention to make their
14	mark. And here they've written out a full
15	signature. This absolutely could be the same
16	person. There's no evidence otherwise, and
17	therefore this voter should be enfranchised.
18	MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, I
19	would just say, for Counsel's knowledge, when
20	you're looking at the SURE screen, the second
21	box on the center left will show how the
22	person was registered. And then to the top
23	or the right, it'll show when he's had

Page 85 1 MS. STOHR: Can that be read into 2 the -- Kevin, can you read when the voter registered and how they voted registered into 3 4 the transcript? MR. RICHARDSON: Sure. It was a 6 paper application on a registration drive at 10/16/2020. MS. STOHR: Thank you. 9 MS. SNYDER: You know what? 10 maintain my argument and just note for the record that a registration drive is when 11 12 people are moving quickly and you often have 13 clipboards. But other than that, I think 14 that the argument is that there's no evidence 15 that this isn't the same human being. 16 MS. STOHR: Is there anyone else 17 who would like to be heard on this ballot? 18 MS. DEELEY: Kevin? I'm sorry. 19 there anything else -- do you have anything 20 else in the file for Shamina that might have 21 a signature? 22 MR. RICHARDSON: Can you see that, 23 Commissioner? I can blow it up. This is the actual scan of her document. 24

1		je 86
1	MS. DEELEY: Thank you, Kevin.	
2	CHAIR SABIR: Did you see it?	
3	MS. SNYDER: No. I rest on my	
4	argument. I trust your vision.	
5	MS. STOHR: That concludes comments	
6	on this ballot.	
7	CHAIR SABIR: So just for the	
8	record, staff determination was not to count	
9	this?	
10	MS. STOHR: Correct. The staff	
11	determination was don't count because of a	
12	signature mismatch.	
13	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	
14	board rejects the challenge and follow the	
15	staff determination. Is there a second?	
16	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	
17	CHAIR SABIR: Does any commissioner	
18	want to comment on this before we proceed to	
19	vote? Hearing none, Secretary, please call	
20	the roll.	
21	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
22	MS. DEELEY: Nay.	
23	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
24	Chairman Sabir.	

1	Page 87 CHAIR SABIR: Aye.
2	MS. DEELEY: I'm sorry.
3	
	CHAIR SABIR: Please proceed.
4	MS. DEELEY: I'm sorry.
5	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley,
6	would you like to change your vote?
7	MS. DEELEY: Yeah. I'm sorry. I
8	vote aye.
9	MR. BLUESTEIN: So it's unanimous
10	to follow staff determination and not count
11	that ballot.
12	MS. STOHR: Only 28 more to go.
13	This next one is another signature mismatch
14	by the Republican party. The ballot
15	signatures are here, and Kevin will pull them
16	up for the SURE system. Are y'all done? Are
17	you ready? Okay. Is there a voter on this
18	ballot who would like to be heard? Will the
19	challengers on this ballot like to be heard?
20	MR. BLUESTEIN: What was the staff
21	determination?
22	MS. STOHR: Sorry. The staff
23	determination was full count. Full count.
24	MS. DEELEY: Kevin, is there any

Page 88 1 other document with an example of a 2 signature? Can you go back to the envelope, please? 3 MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of 4 his registration from 2018. 5 6 MS. DEELEY: Thank you. MS. STOHR: What part are we on? 8 Any other questions from the commissioners? 9 MR. BLUESTEIN: Kevin, I think you 10 need to reclip that affidavit and use that signature for the future. 11 12 MR. RICHARDSON: Excuse me. 13 Commissioner, he had a later registration 14 come in from one of those people to go around 15 with the iPads, and that's how we signed that 16 one. 17 MR. BLUESTEIN: The problem is with 18 the registration drives using the tablets, 19 people are not signing their signatures 20 properly. 21 MR. RICHARDSON: That's correct. 22 MR. BLUESTEIN: And that's a huge And it seems clear to me that the 23 problem. 24 paper application from prior to that date, a

Page 89 1 year prior, shows an accurate signature. MS. STOHR: Yeah. We'll withdraw 2 3 the challenge to this one. So it will be 4 line 419. CHAIR SABIR: So how's --6 MS. STOHR: Yes. So that will be marked as withdrawn. The next challenge was 7 from the Candidate Gill, signatures do not 8 9 match. Here's the ballot. 10 MR. BLUESTEIN: Kevin, can you bring up the document? 11 12 MR. RICHARDSON: Sure. 13 MR. BLUESTEIN: Kevin, can you bring up additional documents? 14 15 MR. RICHARDSON: And this is a copy of her mail-in ballot application. And this 16 17 would be her signature. And you can see 18 where the hands cover. 19 MS. STOHR: Any further questions 20 from commissioners? Is the voter in this 21 category like to speak? Will the challenger 22 on this --23 MS. KERNS: Challenger will 24 withdraw.

Page 90 1 MS. STOHR: Challenge is withdrawn. 2 I'm putting up the number. Kevin, if you want to go ahead and look up the -- yeah, I'm 3 4 easy. You got it. Okay. Well, how am I 5 supposed to know that? All right. 6 challenge is from the Republican party, and it says signature mismatch. These are the ballot signatures. The staff determination 8 9 was a full count. Any questions from the commissioners? 10 11 I have none. CHAIR SABIR: 12 MS. STOHR: Will the challenger on 13 this like to speak? First, I would 14 MS. KERNS: Yes. 15 like to note that when the observers are 16 reviewing these, we're only shown the one 17 screen. We are not shown multiple examples 18 of signatures on different applications. 19 I want to make the record clear on that. And 20 we ask that this ballot not be counted 21 because the signature on the ballot envelope 22 does not match the signature in the SURE 23 system.

MS. STOHR:

Would anyone

24

1	representing challenged ballot like to speak?	Page 91
2	MS. SNYDER: I'd like to	
3	incorporate prior arguments of Counsel and	
4	then note that Nicole Brown Talley signed her	
5	name as Nicole Brown Talley. And in the	
6	system, it's Nicole Talley. That signature	
7	clearly matches. Thanks.	
8	MS. STOHR: Would anyone else like	
9	to be heard on this category? That concludes	
10	testimony, excuse me, on this ballot.	
11	CHAIR SABIR: I move that the board	
12	rejects challenges and follows staff	
13	determination. Is there a second?	
14	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	
15	CHAIR SABIR: Commissioners, do you	
16	have any comments?	
17	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have none.	
18	MS. DEELEY: I have none.	
19	CHAIR SABIR: Hearing none, we'll	
20	proceed to vote. Secretary Bluestein, please	
21	call the roll.	
22	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
23	MS. DEELEY: Aye.	
24	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	

Chairman Sabir. CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed. MS. STOHR: The next signature, mismatch challenge from the Candidate Bashir. Signature mismatch. These are the signatures, and the staff determination was a full count. CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, do you have any additional documents on this one? MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of a registration from 2008. MS. STOHR: Any additional questions from commissioners? Is the voter here would like to speak? The challengers like to speak?
MS. STOHR: The next signature, mismatch challenge from the Candidate Bashir. Signature mismatch. These are the signatures, and the staff determination was a full count. CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, do you have any additional documents on this one? MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of a registration from 2008. MS. STOHR: Any additional questions from commissioners? Is the voter here would like to speak? The challengers like to speak?
mismatch challenge from the Candidate Bashir. Signature mismatch. These are the signatures, and the staff determination was a full count. CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, do you have any additional documents on this one? MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of a registration from 2008. MS. STOHR: Any additional questions from commissioners? Is the voter here would like to speak? The challengers like to speak?
Signature mismatch. These are the signatures, and the staff determination was a full count. CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, do you have any additional documents on this one? MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of a registration from 2008. MS. STOHR: Any additional questions from commissioners? Is the voter here would like to speak? The challengers like to speak?
signatures, and the staff determination was a full count. CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, do you have any additional documents on this one? MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of a registration from 2008. MS. STOHR: Any additional questions from commissioners? Is the voter here would like to speak? The challengers like to speak?
full count. CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, do you have any additional documents on this one? MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of a registration from 2008. MS. STOHR: Any additional questions from commissioners? Is the voter here would like to speak? The challengers like to speak?
8 CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, do you have 9 any additional documents on this one? 10 MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of 11 a registration from 2008. 12 MS. STOHR: Any additional 13 questions from commissioners? Is the voter 14 here would like to speak? The challengers 15 like to speak?
9 any additional documents on this one? 10 MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of 11 a registration from 2008. 12 MS. STOHR: Any additional 13 questions from commissioners? Is the voter 14 here would like to speak? The challengers 15 like to speak?
10 MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of 11 a registration from 2008. 12 MS. STOHR: Any additional 13 questions from commissioners? Is the voter 14 here would like to speak? The challengers 15 like to speak?
a registration from 2008. MS. STOHR: Any additional questions from commissioners? Is the voter here would like to speak? The challengers like to speak?
MS. STOHR: Any additional questions from commissioners? Is the voter here would like to speak? The challengers like to speak?
questions from commissioners? Is the voter here would like to speak? The challengers like to speak?
14 here would like to speak? The challengers 15 like to speak?
15 like to speak?
-
16 MS. KERNS: I just want to make
17 sure that these SURE records are part of this
18 record for purposes of appeal. So I just
19 want to note that for the record. And in
20 light of the additional document that the
21 challengers did not have access to when they
22 were reviewing these signatures, we'll
23 withdraw this challenge.
MS. STOHR: The challenge is

Page 93

- 1 withdrawn. The next challenge is mismatch
- 2 signature by the McCormick campaign. The
- 3 staff determined it should be a full count.
- 4 This is the provisional ballot. Yeah, it's
- 5 on the screen.
- 6 MR. BLUESTEIN: Are there other
- 7 documents, Kevin?
- 8 MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of
- 9 her application from 2012.
- 10 MS. STOHR: Any additional
- 11 questions from commissioners? Is a voter
- 12 here that would like to speak? Challengers?
- MS. KERNS: I'd like to note just
- 14 for the record that this is raising a little
- 15 bit of concern that there are such different
- 16 signatures on some of these applications and
- 17 voter records, but now that we've seen the
- 18 second one, which we did not have access to
- 19 when we were observing, we'll withdraw this
- 20 challenge.
- 21 MS. STOHR: Challenge is withdrawn.
- MR. BLUESTEIN: Mr. Chairman, may I
- 23 speak before the next category, before the
- 24 next ballot?

Page 94

- 1 CHAIR SABIR: Well, one second.
- 2 Yes. The lefts want to say something too.
- 3 Did y'all want to -- the challengers, did
- 4 y'all want to look at those other documents
- 5 and see? Did you want to withdraw any more
- 6 of them?
- 7 MS. KERNS: I'm sorry. I didn't
- 8 hear.
- 9 CHAIR SABIR: Do we want to take
- 10 maybe a five-minute recess or so, view the
- 11 documents, and then withdraw whatever ones
- 12 you want to withdraw?
- MS. KERNS: Oh, sure.
- 14 CHAIR SABIR: So we'll take a five-
- 15 minute recess, let them go through each one
- 16 that they may withdraw.
- 17 (Off the record.)
- MS. STOHR: We can resume the
- 19 signature mismatch category. 15 of the
- 20 signature mismatch challenges were withdrawn,
- 21 and so we will proceed with those that were
- 22 not withdrawn. Actually, I need those two
- 23 that I just handed you back. Thank you. Two
- 24 of them were withdrawn, but the staff

Page 95 1 determined that the signatures did not match. 2 So I'll present those for the board to review. Here's the first ballot, Noeltaj Masin. CHAIR SABIR: There's no other 6 documents from Kevin? Just that. And --MS. STOHR: So the second one where the staff also determined that -- where the 8 9 challenge was withdrawn and the staff 10 determined that there was a signature mismatch is this one, Christina Virata. 11 12 MS. DEELEY: Can we bring these 13 together or --14 MS. STOHR: Oh, we can do whatever 15 the board prefers. 16 CHAIR SABIR: This is all 17 individually like we were? 18 MS. STOHR: So we can do first this 19 one, Noeltaj Masin. 20 CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, can you go back to Noeltaj, please? 21 22 MS. STOHR: Sorry, Kevin. 23 MR. RICHARDSON: I didn't -- the 24 number again. I was --

1	Page 96 MS. STOHR: Do you want me to read
2	it to you?
3	MR. RICHARDSON: No
4	MS. STOHR: Did you remember why
5	they were sitting over here? Did
6	CHAIR SABIR: That's it.
7	MS. STOHR: Would anyone like to
8	speak on this challenge or withdrawn
9	challenge? I guess not because it's
10	withdrawn. Go ahead.
11	CHAIR SABIR: So are we voting on
12	this?
13	MS. STOHR: Yes. The signature
14	mismatch, like with Kevin.
15	CHAIR SABIR: So what was the staff
16	determination again? I'm sorry.
17	MS. STOHR: The staff also
18	determined that it was a signature mismatch.
19	CHAIR SABIR: So they said not to
20	count.
21	MS. STOHR: Correct.
22	CHAIR SABIR: Okay. I move that
23	this board so we accept the challenge?
24	MS. STOHR: The challenge has been

Page 97 1 withdrawn, so you're just voting whether or not to count the ballot. 2 CHAIR SABIR: Just the staff 4 determination. Okay. Long day. Got you. All right. I move that this board follows 5 the staff determination for this category. 6 Is there a second? MR. BLUESTEIN: Second. 9 CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioner want 10 to make any comments? 11 MS. DEELEY: Yeah. Thank you, 12 Chairman. I believe in looking at the ballot and the additional document, I believe that 13 14 there is enough match in the signature that 15 this ballot should count. You can see in the 16 drop-down portion at the bottom it seems to 17 have that very same style, in addition to the 18 drag after the C. I don't know. It's my 19 opinion and determination that this is the 20 voter signature and that this ballot should 21 count. 22 CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein, 23 do you want to call the roll? 24 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.

-1	MG DHELEY N	Page 98
1	MS. DEELEY: Nay.	
2	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
3	Chairman Sabir.	
4	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.	
5	MS. STOHR: And this is the next	
6	ballot with a withdrawn signature mismatch	
7	challenge where the staff determined that	
8	there was a signature mismatch and the ballot	
9	should not be counted.	
10	CHAIR SABIR: I move that the board	
11	follows the staff determination. Is there a	
12	second?	
13	MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.	
14	MS. DEELEY: Second.	
15	CHAIR SABIR: Does any commissioner	
16	want to make any comments?	
17	MS. DEELEY: I have none.	
18	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have none.	
19	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein,	
20	please call the roll.	
21	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
22	MS. DEELEY: Aye.	
23	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
24	Chairman Sabir.	

		Pag	— је	99
1	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.			
2	MS. STOHR: Then we'll continue			
3	with the remaining signature mismatch			
4	challenges. This one, the staff determined			
5	there should be a full count for the			
6	signature mismatch.			
7	MS. KERNS: I'm sorry. So what			
8	number on the spreadsheet is this one? Oh, I			
9	got it. I found it.			
10	MS. STOHR: It's a voter, Corey			
11	Drissel.			
12	CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, you got any			
13	other document for this one?			
14	MR. RICHARDSON: No, Chairman, I			
15	don't. This came from PennDOT from another			
16	county, so.			
17	CHAIR SABIR: From PennDOT.			
18	MS. STOHR: Any further questions			
19	from commissioners? Is the voter here would			
20	like to speak? Would challengers like to			
21	speak?			
22	MS. KERNS: Yes. We ask that this			
23	not be counted because the signatures do not			
24	match under 25 P.S. 3030 (a.4)(5) two little			

Page 100 1 i's (b). Thank you. Would those 2 MS. STOHR: 3 representing challenged ballots like to 4 speak? MS. SNYDER: Incorporate prior 6 arguments of Counsel. Signature is similar enough to count it and voters should be enfranchised. 9 MS. STOHR: Would anyone else like 10 to speak on this ballot? That concludes 11 testimony on this ballot. 12 CHAIR SABIR: What's the staff 13 determination again? What's the staff 14 determination? 15 MS. STOHR: The staff determined it 16 should be a full count. 17 CHAIR SABIR: Okay. I move that 18 this board rejects the challenges and follow 19 the staff determination. Is there a second? 20 MS. DEELEY: Second. 21 CHAIR SABIR: Is there any 22 commissioner want any comments before we 23 proceed on this? Hearing none, Secretary Bluestein, please call the roll. 24

1	Page 101 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
2	MS. DEELEY: Aye.
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote nay.
4	Chairman Sabir.
5	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.
6	MS. STOHR: The next ballot is
7	Alexander Rivera Jr. It was challenged as a
8	signature mismatch. The staff determined it
9	should be a full count and noted that the
10	signature matches additional doc attached to
11	voter record. Any questions from
12	commissioners?
13	CHAIR SABIR: Any questions,
14	commissioners?
15	MR. BLUESTEIN: No.
16	MS. DEELEY: None.
17	MS. STOHR: Would the voter like to
18	speak? Challengers?
19	MS. KERNS: The challengers ask
20	that this ballot not be counted based on the
21	signature mismatch under the statute
22	previously cited.
23	MS. STOHR: Representing
24	challenged?

1	Page 102
1	MS. SNYDER: Incorporate prior
2	relevant arguments, Counsel.
3	MS. STOHR: Anyone else want to be
4	heard on this ballot?
5	MR. BLUESTEIN: Kevin, can you put
6	the other document back on the screen,
7	please?
8	MR. RICHARDSON: This is a copy of
9	the voter affirmation record from 2014.
10	CHAIR SABIR: Does that suffice,
11	Secretary?
12	MR. BLUESTEIN: Yes. Thank you.
13	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this
14	board rejects challenges and follow the staff
15	determination for this category. Is there a
16	second?
17	MS. DEELEY: Second.
18	CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioners
19	have any comments? Hearing none, Secretary
20	Bluestein, please call the roll.
21	MR. BLUESTEIN: I'm sorry, Mr.
22	Chairman. I have a question just for Alison
23	clarifying what we're voting on. Is this
24	line 431 or 430? Because they have two
18 19 20 21 22 23	CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioners have any comments? Hearing none, Secretary Bluestein, please call the roll. MR. BLUESTEIN: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman. I have a question just for Alison clarifying what we're voting on. Is this

Page 103

- 1 different determinations by staff, so I want
- 2 to make sure I understand what the staff
- 3 determination was that we're voting on.
- 4 MS. STOHR: This is line 431 with
- 5 the address 6134 Palmetto.
- 6 MR. BLUESTEIN: So the staff
- 7 determined to not count the ballot?
- 8 MS. STOHR: What a fun time this
- 9 is. This is what I have. This is the staff
- 10 determination, and this is the ballot.
- 11 MR. BLUESTEIN: Because the voter
- 12 ID number is identical for lines 430 and 431.
- 13 MS. STOHR: Yes. I think there was
- 14 an -- I cannot explain the error in the
- 15 spreadsheet.
- 16 MR. BLUESTEIN: So the staff
- 17 determined that it should be counted. So
- 18 we're voting on --
- 19 MS. STOHR: Yes.
- 20 MR. BLUESTEIN: The motion that the
- 21 chairman made is to affirm the staff's
- 22 decision to count that ballot?
- MS. STOHR: Correct.
- MR. BLUESTEIN: Thank you.

Page 104 1 MS. STOHR: Yes. Apologize for any confusion. 2 MR. BLUESTEIN: Sorry. Should I 3 4 call a roll, Mr. Chairman? CHAIR SABIR: Yes. 6 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. MS. DEELEY: I vote aye. MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye. 9 Chairman Sabir. 10 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. Please proceed. 11 MS. STOHR: The next ballot is 12 Jessica Larson. 13 MS. KERNS: Mister, did you 14 determine that 431 in its entirety is a 15 mistake, so we're not even addressing that? 16 Is that the issue? 17 MS. STOHR: 430 is a mistake. We 18 voted on 431. 19 MS. KERNS: Okay, got you. 20 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice versa. Line 21 430, it says --22 MS. STOHR: Sorry. I'm looking at the -- I'm looking at the reference numbers, 23 24 not the line numbers. And on my spreadsheet,

Page 105

- 1 reference number 431 is Alexander Rivera Jr.,
- 2 who lives at 6134 Palmetto.
- 3 MR. BLUESTEIN: Yes. But that the
- 4 staff determination was to not count, whereas
- 5 we're voting to count, which is what the
- 6 determination was in 430. So I think this
- 7 should be --
- 8 MS. STOHR: I think we can ignore
- 9 what the spreadsheet says for this one and
- 10 vote on what the piece of paper, challenge
- 11 form, says.
- 12 MS. KERNS: I just want to make
- 13 sure that there's not two votes for the same
- 14 person. But there's not, it was just a --
- 15 okay. Great. Thank you.
- MS. STOHR: Typographic error.
- 17 MR. BLUESTEIN: Which line do we
- 18 eliminate or are we eliminating?
- 19 MS. STOHR: Are we really having
- 20 this discussion? I will send an updated
- 21 spreadsheet to everyone because it seems like
- 22 the two lines need to be merged.
- 23 CHAIR SABIR: Just for the record,
- 24 you voted to count the last category?

1	Page 106 MS. STOHR: The last ballot, yes.
2	CHAIR SABIR: Please proceed.
3	MS. STOHR: The next ballot is
4	Jessica Larson. This was a signature
5	mismatch challenge where the staff determined
6	it should be a full count.
7	MR. RICHARDSON: There is no
8	further documentation on this voter.
9	MS. STOHR: Maybe they just checked
10	what the challenge was. People did not know
11	how to know at that point.
12	CHAIR SABIR: And they voted to
13	count it?
14	MS. STOHR: Correct. Any questions
15	from commissioners?
16	CHAIR SABIR: Any questions?
17	MR. BLUESTEIN: No.
18	MS. STOHR: Challenger?
19	MS. KERNS: Yes. We'll incorporate
20	our previous arguments that this should not
21	be counted due to a signature mismatch.
22	MS. STOHR: Challenged?
23	MS. SNYDER: Incorporate arguments
24	of Counsel, specifically those from the first

Page 107 1 ballot that we did in this category regarding initials and intention to sign. 2 MS. STOHR: Anyone else want to be 4 heard on this ballot? That concludes testimony on this ballot. 5 CHAIR SABIR: So the staff 6 determination was to count this one? MS. STOHR: Yes. 9 CHAIR SABIR: I move that the board 10 accepts the challenge and update determination accordingly. Is there a 11 12 second? 13 MR. BLUESTEIN: Second. 14 CHAIR SABIR: Does any commissioner 15 have any comments? MS. DEELEY: Yes, Mr. Chairman. 16 17 would just like to point out, in my opinion, 18 the J in the signature looks exactly like the 19 J on the provisional ballot envelope. And I 20 would also note for the record that this 21 application source is online, so the voter in 22 all probability used their finger. So that 23 is where we're seeing these shorter versions 24 of signatures. And I vote aye.

1	Page 108 CHAIR SABIR: Please call the roll.
2	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
3	MS. DEELEY: Aye.
4	MR. BLUESTEIN: The motion is to
5	not count the ballot.
6	MS. DEELEY: I apologize. I
7	thought the vote was to accept the board's
8	recommendation, which was full count. So I
9	vote nay. I'm sorry.
10	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.
11	Chairman Sabir.
12	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.
13	MS. STOHR: The next ballot is on
14	the screen, Aljia Lawrence. This was a
15	signature mismatch challenge. The staff
16	determined it should be a partial count.
17	CHAIR SABIR: Kevin, was there any
18	additional documents?
19	MR. RICHARDSON: No, Mr. Chairman,
20	there was not.
21	MS. STOHR: Any questions from
22	commissioners. Is a voter here and would
23	like to testify? Challengers?
24	MS. KERNS: We would request that

Page 109 1 this not be counted due to a signature 2 mismatch incorporating previous arguments. MS. STOHR: Challenged? MS. SNYDER: Same argument. And I'd like to note that doing it this way disenfranchises people specifically who 6 registered by doing so online or a tablet. MS. STOHR: Anyone else? Concludes 9 testimony on this ballot. 10 CHAIR SABIR: Ouestion, was there an ID verification with this one or did it 11 12 reach that or anything for this? 13 MR. RICHARDSON: Well, it did pass 14 the habit check, Commissioner. 15 CHAIR SABIR: Did it pass the habit 16 check? Okay. And --17 MR. RICHARDSON: And it checks 18 Social Security number, driver's license 19 number. It doesn't verify any signatures. 20 CHAIR SABIR: I move that this 21 board accepts the challenge and update 22 determination accordingly. Is there a 23 second? 24 MR. BLUESTEIN: Second.

_	
1	Page 110 CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein,
2	please call the roll.
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
4	MS. DEELEY: Aye.
5	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.
6	Chairman Sabir.
7	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.
8	MS. STOHR: The next ballot is on
9	the screen, Cheryl Morrison. This was a
10	signature mismatch challenge. The staff
11	determined it should be a partial count.
12	Sorry.
13	MR. RICHARDSON: Yeah, there's no
14	further documentation on this voter.
15	MS. STOHR: Is the voter here and
16	would like to speak? Challenger?
17	MS. KERNS: The challengers request
18	that this not be counted due to a signature
19	mismatch. We incorporate prior arguments.
20	MS. STOHR: Challenged.
21	MS. SNYDER: Incorporate arguments
22	and note that it looks similar but for being
23	cut off at the end.
24	MS. STOHR: Anyone else? That

Page 111 1 concludes testimony on this ballot. CHAIR SABIR: And the staff 2 determination was to count? 3 MS. STOHR: Partial count, yes. 4 Partial count. Okay. CHAIR SABIR: I move that this board rejects the challenges 6 and follow the staff determination. Is there a second? 9 MS. DEELEY: Second. 10 CHAIR SABIR: Does any 11 commissioners have any comments? 12 MS. DEELEY: I would like --CHAIR SABIR: Go ahead. I'm sorry. 13 14 MS. DEELEY: I would like to state 15 for the record that the signature on the 16 envelope looks identical to -- I mean, the 17 printed portion of the envelope looks 18 identical to the voter's SURE signature, 19 which is obviously a printed signature. 20 Thank you. 21 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. 22 Secretary, please call the roll. 23 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. 24 MS. DEELEY: Aye.

Page 112 1 MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote nay. Chairman Sabir. 2 CHAIR SABIR: 3 Aye. MS. STOHR: The next ballot is on 4 the screen. It was a signature mismatch challenge, and the staff determination was a 6 partial count. Sorry. The staff determination was a full count. 9 questions from commissioners? 10 MS. KERNS: I'm sorry. Could you tell me the line on the spreadsheet? 11 12 just trying to follow. 13 MS. STOHR: 437. 14 MS. KERNS: Got you. 15 MS. DEELEY: Kevin, can you go back 16 to the other document, please? 17 another document in there. I'm sorry. 18 Thanks. 19 MS. STOHR: Any questions from 20 commissioners? Is the voter here and would 21 like to speak? Challengers? 22 MS. KERNS: The challengers, the 23 McCormick campaign, ask that this not be 24 counted because the signature doesn't match

Page 113 1 and we incorporate prior arguments. 2 MS. STOHR: Challenged? MS. SNYDER: Incorporate and note 3 4 the messiness of the rest of the voter information, either lack of care or being 5 6 rushed. MS. STOHR: Anyone else? That concludes testimony for this ballot. 8 9 CHAIR SABIR: And for the record, the staff determination was to full count? 10 11 MS. STOHR: Yes, full count. 12 CHAIR SABIR: I move that this 13 board rejects the challenge and follow the staff determination. Is there a second? 14 15 MS. DEELEY: Second. 16 CHAIR SABIR: Does any 17 commissioners have any comments? 18 MR. BLUESTEIN: No. 19 CHAIR SABIR: Hearing none, 20 Secretary, please call the roll. 21 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. 22 MS. DEELEY: I vote aye. 23 MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote nay. Chairman Sabir. 24

Page 114 1 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. MS. STOHR: The next ballot is 2 3 Siham Overdan on the screen. The challenge 4 was signatures do not match and the staff determined it should be a full count. Any 5 6 questions from commissioners? Is the voter here and would like to speak? Challengers? MS. KERNS: We ask that this ballot 9 not be counted based on the signature 10 mismatch and we incorporate prior arguments. 11 MS. STOHR: Challenged? 12 MS. SNYDER: Incorporate and note 13 printed signature. 14 MS. STOHR: Anyone else? 15 concludes testimony on this ballot. 16 CHAIR SABIR: The top part. All 17 riaht. So they wrote the top corner and they 18 match the signature. Right? I move that 19 this board rejects challenges and follows 20 staff determination. Is there a second? 21 This motion is not passed. Please proceed. 22 MR. BLUESTEIN: I would make a 23 motion to accept the challenge and change the staff determination to not count the ballot. 24

1	Page 115 MS. DEELEY: Second.
2	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary, please
3	call the roll.
4	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
5	MS. DEELEY: Aye.
6	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.
7	Chairman Sabir.
8	CHAIR SABIR: Nay.
9	MS. STOHR: The next ballot is
10	Anthony Ponzo. Ballot is on the screen. The
11	challenge was signature, and the staff
12	determined it should be a partial count. Any
13	questions from commissioners? Is the voter
14	here and would like to speak? Challengers?
15	MS. KERNS: Challengers ask that
16	this not be counted based on the mismatched
17	signature and incorporate prior arguments.
18	MS. STOHR: Challenged?
19	MS. SNYDER: Incorporate, the same.
20	MS. STOHR: Anyone else? That
21	concludes testimony on this ballot.
22	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this
23	board rejects challenges and file the staff
24	determination. Is there a second?

1	MS. DEELEY: Second.	Page 116
2	CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioners	
3		
	have any comments?	
4	MS. DEELEY: I have none.	
5	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have none.	
6	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary, please	
7	call roll.	
8	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
9	MS. DEELEY: Aye.	
10	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
11	Chairman Sabir.	
12	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.	
13	MS. STOHR: The next ballot is on	
14	the screen. The challenge is signature does	
15	not match. The staff determined it should be	
16	a full count. For the record, this is SURE	
17	ID 014606257-51. Sorry. Any questions from	
18	commissioners?	
19	MS. DEELEY: I would just comment	
20	that the printed line looks like the printed	
21	signature on the SURE file. The N is very	
22	distinct as well as the U and all of it	
23	probably. Thank you.	
24	MS. STOHR: Is the voter here and	

Page 117 1 would like to speak? Challengers? MS. KERNS: Yes. We'd like to keep 2 3 this challenge and ask that this not be 4 counted based on a signature mismatch and 5 incorporate our prior arguments. 6 MS. STOHR: Challenged? MS. SNYDER: Incorporate it, the 8 same, and print it. 9 MS. STOHR: Anyone else? 10 concludes testimony for this ballot. 11 CHAIR SABIR: I move that this 12 board rejects challenges and follow the staff 13 determination. Is there a second? 14 MS. DEELEY: Second. 15 CHAIR SABIR: Does commissioners 16 have any comments? 17 MS. DEELEY: None. 18 MR. BLUESTEIN: I have none. 19 CHAIR SABIR: Hearing none, please 20 call roll. 21 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. 22 MS. STOHR: Aye. 23 MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote nay. Chairman Sabir. 24

	Page 118
1	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.
2	MS. STOHR: The next challenge is
3	Harold Williams. This was a signature
4	mismatch challenge, and the staff determined
5	it should be a partial count. Any questions
6	from commissioners? Is a voter here and
7	would like to speak? Challengers?
8	MS. KERNS: We ask that this not
9	count because of the signature mismatch and
10	incorporate prior arguments.
11	MS. STOHR: Challenged?
12	MS. SNYDER: Incorporate other
13	documents. It's the same.
14	MS. STOHR: Anyone else? That
15	concludes testimony on this ballot.
16	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this
17	board rejects challenges and follow the staff
18	determination. Is there a second?
19	MS. DEELEY: Second.
20	CHAIR SABIR: Anyone have any
21	comments?
22	MS. DEELEY: None.
23	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have none.
24	CHAIR SABIR: Secretary, please

1	call the roll.	Page 119
2	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.	
3	MS. DEELEY: Aye.	
4	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
5	Chairman Sabir.	
6	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.	
7	MS. STOHR: The final ballot in the	
8	signature mismatch category, Latyra	
9	Williamson. So the signature mismatch	
10	challenge. The staff determined it should be	
11	a full count. Any questions from	
12	commissioners? Is a voter here and would	
13	like to speak? Challengers?	
14	MS. KERNS: We ask that this ballot	
15	not count because of the signature mismatch	
16	and incorporate prior arguments.	
17	MS. STOHR: Challenged?	
18	MS. SNYDER: Incorporate.	
19	MS. STOHR: Anyone else? That	
20	concludes testimony on this ballot.	
21	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	
22	board rejects challenges and follows the	
23	staff determination. Is there a second?	
24	MS. DEELEY: Second.	

1	Page 120 CHAIR SABIR: Secretary, please
2	call roll.
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
4	MS. DEELEY: Aye.
5	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote nay.
6	Chairman Sabir.
7	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.
8	MS. STOHR: That concludes the
9	signature mismatch category. I would like to
10	request a brief comfort break. I need to go
11	to the bathroom.
12	CHAIR SABIR: Granted.
13	MS. STOHR: Thank you.
14	(Off the record.)
15	MS. STOHR: Our next category is
16	voter information mismatch. There were 11
17	ballots challenges in this category, six the
18	staff determined should be a full count and
19	five the staff determined should be a partial
20	count. Three of these were withdrawn during
21	our session earlier, number 449, Noreen
22	Campbell, 450 Shawna Coffee, and 452, Jason
23	Carol Lomax Jr.
24	The challenges to those have all

Page 121 1 been withdrawn. That leaves us with eight 2 voter mismatch challenges. The reasons for these are written on the spreadsheet that has 3 4 been shared with the parties and the commissioners, and they are all alleging that certain information on the ballot did not 6 match what is in SURE. Any questions from commissioners? 9 MS. DEELEY: Yes. Kevin, was there 10 our signature on these envelopes? 11 MR. RICHARDSON: Yes. MS. DEELEY: And the staff was able 12 13 to compare that signature to the registered 14 voter in the SURE system?

- 15 MR. RICHARDSON: Yes.
- 16 MS. DEELEY: And in all cases the
- 17 signature was determined to be genuine?
- 18 MR. RICHARDSON: Yes.
- 19 MS. DEELEY: Thank you. Nothing
- 20 further.
- 21 MS. STOHR: Are any voters in this
- 22 category here and would like to be heard??
- 23 Challengers?
- 24 MS. KERNS: So the challengers

Page 122 1 would ask that these not be counted because 2 they were not filled out and completed in compliance with the Statute 25 P.S. 3 4 3050(a.4)(2). So we ask they not be counted. MS. STOHR: Challenged? 6 MS. SNYDER: We ask that these 7 ballots be counted as they are compliant with the rules of what actually needs to be thrown 9 out, what actually needs to be counted, and 10 that you should consider them as a category 11 if you see fit. And we trust your judgment. 12 MS. STOHR: Would anyone else like 13 to be heard on this category? That concludes 14 testimony on this category. 15 CHAIR SABIR: I move that this 16 board rejects the challenge -- one more time. 17 I move that this board rejects the challenges 18 and follow the staff determination. Is there 19 a second? 20 MS. DEELEY: Second. 21 CHAIR SABIR: Any comments? 22 MS. DEELEY: None. 23 MR. BLUESTEIN: No comments. CHAIR SABIR: Secretary Bluestein, 24

Page 123 1 please call the roll. 2 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. MS. DEELEY: 3 Aye. MR. BLUESTEIN: 4 I vote aye. Chairman Sabir. 5 6 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. MS. STOHR: The next category is multiple challenges, meaning a single 8 9 challenger listed multiple reasons that they 10 were challenging a particular ballot. will see those challenges are listed on the 11 12 spreadsheet that has been shared with the 13 parties and the commissioners. And the vast 14 majority of these are reasons that the board 15 has already determined that challenges should 16 be rejected and the staff determination should be followed. 17 18 There are a few that we should talk 19 First, I'll tell you about the about. 20 category in general. Multiple challenges. 21 There were 48 ballots in this category, 48 22 challenges, 21 where the staff determined 23 there should be a full count, 12 where the 24 staff determined there should be a partial

Page 124 count, and 15 where the staff determined that 1 the ballot should not be counted. 2 14 of those were because there was only one voter 3 signature and one was a signature mismatch. 4 So I think we can start with the signature mismatch from the staff. This is 6 voter Jogre Cloudio. I will tell you his reference number in one second. This was a 9 challenge alleging a mismatching signature 10 and that there was no reason for voting provisionally checked. The staff determined 11 that it should not count because it was a 12 13 signature mismatch. I can't find this reference number, but --14 15 MR. RICHARDSON: 470. 16 MS. STOHR: Thank you. 17 Kevin, were you able to pull up a signature? 18 MR. RICHARDSON: Yeah. 19 MS. STOHR: Great. Any questions 20 from commissioners? 21 CHAIR SABIR: No commissioner. 22 There isn't. 23 MS. DEELEY: Thank you. 24 Is the voter here and MS. STOHR:

Page 125 would like to be heard? Challengers? 1 2 MS. KERNS: We agree with the staff's determination not to count this 3 4 ballot and ask that it not be counted. MS. STOHR: Challenged? 6 MS. SNYDER: We incorporate arguments and note that the last name is 7 matching in the signature. 8 9 MS. STOHR: Anyone else on this 10 ballot? That concludes testimony for this 11 particular ballot. 12 CHAIR SABIR: So the staff 13 determination was for this ballot not to be 14 counted? 15 MS. STOHR: Correct, signature 16 mismatch. 17 CHAIR SABIR: I move that the board 18 rejects the challenge and follow the staff 19 determination. Is there a second? 20 MR. BLUESTEIN: Second. 21 CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioners 22 have any comments? Hearing none, please call 23 the roll. 24 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.

1	MS. STOHR: No.	Page 126
2	MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.	
3	Chairman Sabir.	
4	CHAIR SABIR: Aye.	
5	MS. STOHR: And there's one more in	
6	the multiple category where there is a	
7	signature mismatch challenge that has not	
8	been withdrawn. It is for Jemima Edward,	
9	SURE number 110469362. The challenges here	
10	were that the signature doesn't match from	
11	SURE and that the name was printed wrong.	
12	The staff determined it should be a partial	
13	count.	
14	MS. KERNS: Do you know what line	
15	on the spreadsheet this one is?	
16	MS. STOHR: 476.	
17	CHAIR SABIR: And Kevin, so there	
18	was no other documents. Right?	
19	MR. RICHARDSON: There were no	
20	other documents, Mr. Chairman.	
21	CHAIR SABIR: And the staff	
22	determination was to?	
23	MS. STOHR: It's a partial count.	
24	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	

1	board rejects the	Page 127
2	MS. STOHR: Do we want to let the -	
3	- sorry. We have to do our whole rigmarole.	
4	Does anyone want to be heard on this?	
5	MS. KERNS: I think it's a little	
6	more of a rigmarole, but	
7	MS. STOHR: Sorry.	
8	MS. KERNS: I'd like to say	
9	these are valid challenges under the statute,	
10	so I would prefer to refer but our	
11	challenge is that it's a signature mismatch	
12	under the statute and we would incorporate	
13	previous arguments and ask that this not be	
14	counted.	
15	MS. STOHR: Challenged?	
16	MS. SNYDER: Incorporate.	
17	MS. STOHR: Anyone else want to be	
18	heard on this matter? That concludes	
19	testimony for this ballot.	
20	CHAIR SABIR: I move that this	
21	board reject the challenge and follow the	
22	staff determination. Is there a second?	
23	MS. DEELEY: Second.	
24	CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioners	
İ		

Page 128 1 have any comments? 2 MR. BLUESTEIN: I would just say -if you don't mind putting that back up, 3 4 Alison --MS. STOHR: Oh, yeah. 6 MR. BLUESTEIN: -- that the name 7 underneath the signature box is signed and not printed and it does look like it does in 8 9 the SURE system. My opinion. CHAIR SABIR: Please call the roll. 10 11 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. 12 MS. DEELEY: Aye. 13 MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye. 14 Chairman Sabir. 15 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. 16 MS. STOHR: So for the remainder of 17 the multiple category, I believe these are 18 all reasons that the board has already 19 considered and rejected as basically for 20 challenges. We can proceed with the rest as 21 a category if the board has no objection. 22 CHAIR SABIR: Oh, the rest as a 23 category. Okay. 24 MS. STOHR: Would the challengers

Page 129 1 on this category like to be heard? 2 MS. KERNS: I'm sorry. Which 3 category is it? 4 MS. STOHR: Where there are multiple challenges? 5 6 MS. KERNS: Yes. So we would ask these not be counted and incorporate prior 8 arguments. 9 MS. STOHR: Challenged? 10 MS. SNYDER: We have no objection 11 to you treating each category consistently 12 with your prior determinations if you 13 similarly preserve our objections and/or 14 argument incorporate those. 15 MS. STOHR: Would anyone else like 16 to be heard on this category? 17 MS. DEELEY: Yes, please. I would 18 just like to state that I believe that we 19 should be counting the 14 one-voter signature 20 ballots. 21 MS. STOHR: Any other comments on 22 this category? That concludes testimony for 23 this category. 24 CHAIR SABIR: And the staff

Page 130 determination for this was? 1 MS. STOHR: Well, there are 2 3 various, but we would just -- for multiple 4 challenges, 21 were full counts, 12 were 5 partial counts, and 15 were do not counts, 14 6 for one voter signature and one for the signature mismatch that we already heard. I move that this CHAIR SABIR: 9 board rejects the challenges and follow the staff determination. Is there a second? 10 11 MS. DEELEY: Second. 12 CHAIR SABIR: Any commissioners 13 want to make any comments? Hearing none, 14 Secretary, please call the roll. 15 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley. 16 MS. DEELEY: Aye. 17 MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye. 18 Chairman Sabir. 19 CHAIR SABIR: Aye. 20 MS. STOHR: The next category is 21 double challenges. This is where two 22 challenges were filed for a single ballot. In this category, there are 24 challenges. 23 24 So these numbers basically should be in half

- 1 because we did them by challenge rather than
- 2 by ballot. So 24 challenges to 12 ballots.
- 3 That would be six ballots that are fully
- 4 counted, one ballot that is a partial count,
- 5 and five ballots that are do not count, one
- 6 because it has a canceled record and four
- 7 because there is one-voter signature. Would
- 8 the commissioners like to review these
- 9 individually or do you have any questions
- 10 about these categories?
- 11 MR. BLUESTEIN: Is there anything
- 12 else and that's inconsistent from a staff
- 13 determination with what we've already voted
- 14 on?
- MS. STOHR: No.
- 16 CHAIR SABIR: I move that this
- 17 board follows the staff determination. Is
- 18 there a second?
- MS. STOHR: Oh, sorry.
- 20 CHAIR SABIR: -- make a comment.
- 21 I'm sorry.
- MS. STOHR: I apologize. Are any
- 23 of the voters in this category here and would
- 24 like to be heard? Challengers?

Page 132 1 MS. KERNS: Yeah. So if I 2 understand it, the -- I just want to make 3 sure I'm understanding correctly that the 4 staff voted not to count 10 of these 12 ballots. MS. STOHR: The staff determined --6 MS. KERNS: Yeah, determined. 8 Excuse me. 9 MS. STOHR: -- that five ballots 10 relating to 10 different challenges should not be counted. 11 MS. KERNS: 12 So based on the 13 challenges that these ballot envelopes were 14 not filled out correctly, the challengers 15 would ask that these ballots not be counted. 16 MR. BLUESTEIN: Alison, it does 17 look like numbers 508 and 509 are a signature 18 mismatch question. 19 MS. STOHR: We can look at that 20 Can you tell me the name on the ballot? 21 MR. BLUESTEIN: Briana Bello. 22 MS. STOHR: Briana Bello. There were two challenges, one from the Republicans 23 24 with the signature mismatch challenge and

- 1 then the Democrats challenging the challenge
- 2 for the signature. Here is the provisional
- 3 ballot. The staff determined that this
- 4 should be a full count.
- 5 MS. KERNS: We'll withdraw this
- 6 challenge. But again, we note that we don't
- 7 have access to all of these documents when
- 8 we're observing.
- 9 MS. STOHR: So that leaves 11
- 10 ballots to vote on in the double challenge
- 11 category. Right? Yeah.
- 12 CHAIR SABIR: We're just going to
- 13 follow the staff determination. Okay. I
- 14 move that this board follows the staff
- 15 determination. Is there a second?
- MS. DEELEY: Second.
- 17 CHAIR SABIR: Secretary, please
- 18 call the roll.
- 19 MR. BLUESTEIN: Vice Chair Deeley.
- MS. DEELEY: Aye.
- MR. BLUESTEIN: I vote aye.
- 22 Chairman Sabir.
- 23 CHAIR SABIR: Aye.
- MS. STOHR: The next category is

1	incorrect	rejections.	These	are	challenges	

- 2 where the challenger is alleging that the
- 3 staff incorrectly rejected a provisional
- 4 ballot. There are 22 challenges in this
- 5 category and 23 do not count because of a
- 6 canceled record. That must be a adding
- 7 error. I will get those now. The vast
- 8 majority of these, as you can see from your
- 9 spreadsheet, allege that voters were
- 10 incorrectly removed because they did not vote
- 11 into federal election cycles. I think all
- 12 but one of the challenges are from the
- 13 Democrats. Any questions from commissioners?
- 14 MR. BLUESTEIN: I have a question
- 15 for Kevin for line number 535 where it's
- 16 alleging that the operator entered the wrong
- 17 date of birth. Is it possible for you to do
- 18 a look up and see if you can find the person?
- 19 MS. STOHR: Sorry, can you tell
- 20 Kevin what to look up?
- 21 MR. BLUESTEIN: Yashua, Y-A-S-H-U-
- 22 A, middle name John, last name E-M-I-L-E. M.
- MS. DEELEY: M as in Mary.
- 24 MR. BLUESTEIN: Can I give you the

1	address, Kevin?	Page 135
2	MR. RICHARDSON: Sure.	
3	MR. BLUESTEIN: 8135 Frankford	
4	Avenue.	
5	MR. RICHARDSON: There's no one by	
6	that name at that address.	
7	MS. STOHR: Just fold them back up.	
8	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have no further	
9	questions.	
10	MS. STOHR: One moment,	
11	Commissioners. The challengers are	
12	withdrawing certain challenges.	
13	MS. KERNS: Where's the	
14	MS. STOHR: I don't know, but I	
15	guess we're going to find them.	
16	MS. KERNS: (indiscernible).	
17	MS. STOHR: I don't know that. I	
18	put it all in a spreadsheet for people to	
19	look at before they got here.	
20	MS. KERNS: You put it on a sheet?	
21	MS. STOHR: Well, none of you could	
22	have looked at it? Why did I make a	
23	spreadsheet?	
24	MS. KERNS: (indiscernible).	

- 1 MS. STOHR: Well, then why didn't
- 2 you withdraw anything based on what was in
- 3 the information? Okay. All of these
- 4 challenges have been withdrawn. I got it.
- 5 Yeah.
- 6 MS. KERNS: (indiscernible).
- 7 MS. STOHR: No, I got it. Thank
- 8 you. Okay. Our next category is a district
- 9 challenge. So these were based on the fact
- 10 that we counted certain provisionals first,
- 11 and these were not in the district of that
- 12 race. You will note on your spreadsheet that
- 13 each of these was determined to be a partial
- 14 count by the staff. These were all
- 15 challenged by Republicans. I don't know if
- 16 they would like to weigh in on this.
- 17 MS. KERNS: So the challengers will
- 18 withdraw these.
- 19 MS. STOHR: Just for the record,
- 20 there were 15 challenges and all 15 were
- 21 determined by staff to be partial counts.
- 22 Those have been withdrawn. Okay. We're on
- 23 our final category. We're in the other
- 24 category. There are nine ballots in this

1 c	category.	The	staff	determined	that	four	οf
-----	-----------	-----	-------	------------	------	------	----

- 2 them should be a full count, three of them
- 3 should be a partial count, and one of them
- 4 should not count. I think we found our
- 5 adding error somewhere here.
- 6 So these, I think it's easiest to
- 7 just go through them one by one. For the
- 8 first challenge, it is from a Democratic
- 9 candidate, lack of reason to count maybe.
- 10 MS. SNYDER: Withdrawn.
- 11 MS. STOHR: Great. So fun. Okay.
- 12 The next one is from Candidate Gill, inactive
- 13 five years. The staff determined it should
- 14 be a partial count. Here is the provisional
- 15 ballot.
- 16 MS. SNYDER: Withdrawn. Oh, I say
- 17 this, you withdraw, is what I --
- 18 MS. KERNS: Do you mind pulling
- 19 that one up so I can look at the SURE?
- 20 Right. I will withdraw that challenge.
- 21 MS. STOHR: The challenge is
- 22 withdrawn.
- MS. KERNS: The Republicans will.
- MS. STOHR: The next challenge is

- 1 by Candidate Trump, no date on judge of
- 2 election signature, so a little different
- 3 than a missing board worker signature.
- 4 MS. KERNS: We'll withdraw that
- 5 challenge.
- 6 MS. STOHR: The challenge is
- 7 withdrawn. The next challenge is by
- 8 Candidate Gill, voter registration not
- 9 active. This is the provisional.
- 10 MS. KERNS: This is Kia Mclaughn?
- 11 Can you pull --
- 12 MS. STOHR: Yes, Kia Mclaughn.
- MS. KERNS: Yeah, we'll withdraw
- 14 that challenge.
- 15 MS. STOHR: Challenge is withdrawn.
- 16 The next is for a challenge brought by
- 17 Candidate Kahn.
- MS. SNYDER: Withdraw.
- 19 MS. STOHR: It is withdrawn, and it
- 20 was determined to be out of county, which was
- 21 the basis for the challenge. The next
- 22 challenge was filed by the Republican party.
- 23 It stated that there was no county or
- 24 municipality. Here's the provisional. The

- 1 staff determined it should be a full count.
- 2 So it probably should have been in our voter
- 3 information missing category.
- 4 MS. KERNS: Do you know what line
- 5 this is on the spreadsheet?
- 6 MR. BLUESTEIN: 574.
- 7 MS. STOHR: This is line 574 on the
- 8 spreadsheet. Jacklyn Lindsey.
- 9 MR. RICHARDSON: Actually it's for
- 10 Marilyn Ross.
- 11 MS. KERNS: Yeah.
- 12 MS. STOHR: Oh. So this is
- 13 correctly categorized on the spreadsheet as
- 14 voter information missing. So we have
- 15 already voted on this one. I apologize.
- MR. BLUESTEIN: 351.
- MS. STOHR: 351, already voted on.
- 18 Okay. The next challenge is from Candidate
- 19 Bashir stating that this person already voted
- 20 on 11/5/24. Here is the provisional ballot
- 21 for Denroy Myrie.
- MS. KERNS: I'm sorry. Can you
- 23 tell me the line on this spreadsheet?
- MR. BLUESTEIN: 378.

Page 140 1 MS. STOHR: 378. Sorry. We have 2 already voted on this one. I apologize. 3 There were some sorting errors. The next one 4 is minority inspector date missing, similar to the one that we voted on earlier. staff determined it should be a full count. 6 This is Marilyn Ross. MS. KERNS: So the challengers will 9 withdraw that challenge. 10 MS. STOHR: The challenge has been 11 withdrawn. 12 MS. KERNS: The Republicans 13 withdraw. 14 MS. STOHR: The next challenge 15 states that the registration deadline has 16 passed, from Candidate Martina White. 17 is the provisional, and the staff determined 18 it should be a partial count. 19 MS. KERNS: What is that 20 challenging? 21 MS. STOHR: This is number 575. 22 MS. KERNS: Yeah. The Republicans 23 will withdraw that challenge. 24 MS. STOHR: The challenge is

- 1 withdrawn. And our final ballot, a challenge
- 2 from Candidate Trump, no date on judge of
- 3 election's signature.
- 4 MS. KERNS: And the Republicans
- 5 will withdraw that challenge.
- 6 MS. STOHR: The challenge for
- 7 Rachel Winchester is withdrawn. That
- 8 concludes our provisional challenge hearing.
- 9 CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. Thank
- 10 you, everybody. Appreciate y'all. Vice
- 11 Chair Deeley, do you have any other business
- 12 to be raised at this meeting?
- MS. DEELEY: Yes, Mr. Chairman, if
- 14 I may.
- 15 CHAIR SABIR: Proceed.
- 16 MS. DEELEY: I would like to amend
- 17 my vote on the blank form challenge. That
- 18 was the first category. I would like to be
- 19 recorded as voting in the affirmative while
- 20 stating for the record that I believe that we
- 21 should be counting those two one-signature
- 22 votes. In addition to that, on the motion
- 23 for the multiple challenge categories, I
- 24 would like to state that I believe that we

1	should be counting the one-vote signature	Page 142
2	ballots on those four ballots. Thank you.	
3	CHAIR SABIR: Thank you. Secretary	
4	Bluestein, do you have any other business to	
5	be raised at this meeting?	
6	MR. BLUESTEIN: I have no other	
7	business. Thank you, Chairman.	
8	CHAIR SABIR: Thank you,	
9	commissioners.	
10	(Meeting adjourned at 3:57 p.m.)	
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
1		

1	Page 143 CERTIFICATE OF DIGITAL REPORTER
2	
3	I, AYANNA BETHEA THORPE, a Digital Reporter
4	for the State of Pennsylvania, do hereby certify:
5	
6	That the foregoing proceeding hereinbefore
7	set forth was accurately captured with annotations
8	by me during the proceeding.
9	
10	I further certify that I am not related to
11	any of the parties to this action by blood or
12	marriage, and that I am in no way interested in
13	the outcome of this matter.
14	
15	IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my
16	hand this 15th day of November, 2024.
17	
18	MAR 100
19	ANNORSE.
20	Ayanna Bethea Thorpe Digital Reporter
21	
22	
23	
24	

1	Page 144 CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIPTIONIST
2	
3	I, SAM TINEGA, Legal Transcriptionist, do
4	hereby certify:
5	That the foregoing is a complete and true
6	transcription of the original digital audio
7	recording of the testimony and proceedings
8	captured in the above-entitled matter. As the
9	transcriptionist, I have reviewed and transcribed
10	the entirety of the original digital audio
11	recording of the proceeding to ensure a verbatim
12	record to the best of my ability.
13	I further certify that I am neither attorney
14	for nor a relative or employee of any of the
15	parties to the action; further, that I am not a
16	relative or employee of any attorney employed by
17	the parties hereto, nor financially or otherwise
18	interested in the outcome of this matter.
19	
20	IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my
21	hand this 16th day of November, 2024.
22	inge
23	
24	Sam Tinega

	1	<u> </u>	1		1
	10/16/	1813	123:22	3050	77:4
(2020	31:22	130:4	6:14	79:23
(b)	85:7	1904	22	7:1,5	415
100:1	11	7:6	31:22	21:17	76:21
	120:16	14:17	64:3	33:7	78:1,2,
0	133:9	1905	134:4	38:2	14
	11046936	7:6	229	41:10	79:10,
01	2	14:17	53:1	3050(a.	21,24
69:16	126:9	1951	23	4)	416
01460625	12	4:9	134:5	14:8	77:4
7-51	123:23		24	3050(a.	79:23
116:17	130:4	2	130:23	4)(2)	417
01495192	131:2		131:2	62:2	77:4
9-51	132:4	2	25	64:23	79:23
69:17	13	18:8	6:13	122:4	419
	12:16	32:12	7:1,5	3050(a.	89:4
1	14	20	14:8,17	4)(3)	428
1	124:2	31:23	21:17	26:16	22:23
8:17	129:19	20-	38:1	3050(a.	430
18:7	130:5	minute	62:2	4)(5)(102:24
32:12	15	8:18	64:23	ii)(c)	103:12
49:1,2,	8:18	2008	99:24	26:11	104:17,
10 57:6	94:19	92:11	122:3	3053	21
1,000	124:1	2012	28	24:19	105:6
12:19	130:5	93:9	31:21	33	431
1,084	136:20	2014	59:17	68:17	102:24
17:4	15th	102:9	87:12	70:15	103:4,
21:13	3:11	2018	29	3312	12
1,200	16	88:5	80:23	31:22	104:14,
35:11	9:11	2024		34	18
1,270	64:4	3:11	3	68:15	105:1
29:24	163	17:16,	3		437
10	53:2	17	18:11	391	112:13
83:7	1711	19:10	3,007	69:16	44
132:4,	4:2	21:10	10:20		64:2
10		36:5		4	449
10-	1799	38:8	30	4	120:21
49:4	4:6	21	18:17	18:13	450
17.1	18	31:23	3030	414	120:22
	80:24		99:24		
	1	I	1	I	I

452	67	50:15	actions	addition	16
120:22	35:5	absent	41:18	ally	37:12
470	68	39:18	active	14:12	56:12
124:15,	22:5	absentee	138:9	36:10	62:3
16	59:16	22:22	activity	address	63:24
476		23:2	37:13	60:10	64:24
126:16	7	absolute	actual	63:23	72:15
48			42:10	81:18	73:8
123:21	7,329	ly	85:24	103:5	88:10
	6:6	11:21		135:1,6	affidav
4912	743	12:5	Adam	addressi	ts
31:20	23:18	35:2	17:13	ng	42:7
4:00	7:05	84:15	19:2	104:15	affirm
19:15	34:5	accept	25:18		37:7
		96:23	51:22	administ	103:21
5	8	108:7	65:10	er	
_		114:23	add	3:21	affirma
5	8135	accepts	20:16	administ	ion
41:12	135:3	107:10	28:13	ratively	102:9
508	841	109:21	45:14	18:20	afterno
132:17	16:9	access	63:7	administ	n
509		92:21	adding	rator	3:4,5,
132:17	9	93:18	134:6	10:12	6,7
535	9	133:7	137:5	adoption	9:3,5,
134:15	40:23	accordan	addition	4:8	10:13,
564	46:3	ce	21:8		14
41:3		3:23	41:5	advise	19:15
	99		97:17	61:15	50:23
5707	59:15	accurate	addition	advocate	51:2
31:23		89:1		s	60:8,2
59	A	acknowle	al 53:24	11:4	agenda
44:9,10	A-L-I-S-	dge	58:14	affected	4:21
53:3,5	O-N	19:23	89:14	76:14	5:8
	49:17	Act	92:9,	affidavi	8:23
6	a.4	3:13	12,20	t	46:3
61	24:19	5:3	93:10	24:7	agree
29:7	41:12	27:21	97:13	28:1	39:10
6134		28:8	101:10	31:7	75:11
103:5	ability	action	108:18	32:15	83:10
103:5	35:1 38:11	39:18	100.10	33:9	125:2
	. ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	_	i l		

ahead	16	89:16	114:10	attestin	14,16
11:18	allowing	93:9	115:17	g	52:16,
34:3	13:18	107:21	117:5	36:12	18
45:2		applicat	118:10	attorney	59:4,5,
90:3	aloud	ions	119:16	_	7
96:10	74:4	90:18	125:7	S	63:16,
111:13	Amber	93:16	127:13	49:9	17,19
Alexande	60:14		129:8	50:11,	66:10,
	America	applied	Ariadnay	12	14,15,
101:7	27:21	57:16	55:5,6	81:10	17
	28:8	apply	_	authoriz	68:9,
105:1	Amir	25:11	arrived	ed	10,12
Alfonzon	55:10	approxim	34:4	82:23	72:5,7
8:1		ately	Ashley	automati	78:11,
align	Amy	6:6	8:2	cally	13
74:18	8:2	12:19	Assembly	18:12	79:1,2,
Alison	and/or		4:2		4
46:5	129:13	area	21:4	Avenue	80:14,
49:17	Ann	52:22	25:3,6,	135:4	16
51:1	7:16	72:15	12	aware	86:23
70:8	53:17	argument	26:19	38:1	87:1,8
73:16	55:3	6:15	33:11	57:9	91:23,
75:4		13:23	41:22	aye	24 92:2
76:21	Anthony	85:10,	42:16	10:2,3,	98:2,4,
79:4	115:10	14 86:4	56:16	5 16:2,	22,23
	apologiz	109:4	65:12	3,5,22,	99:1
80:1,19 102:22	е	129:14		23 17:1	
	104:1	argument	assess	21:24	101:2,5
128:4	108:6	s	37:10	22:1,3,	104:7,
132:16	131:22	11:5	assigned	17,18,	8,10
Aljia	appeal	21:3	83:2	20	107:24
108:14	92:18	41:6	assist	23:12,	108:3,
allege		57:7	35:20	13,15	10,12
134:9	appealed	91:3	attached	29:2,4,	110:4,
alleged	39:16	100:6		18,19,	5,7
32:22	appears	100:6	101:10	21	111:24
70:15	69:13		attacks	40:6,8	112:3
	77:7	106:20,	5:1	44:3,4,	113:22
alleging	applicat	23	attentio	5	114:1
68:14	ion	109:2	n	45:18,	115:5,6
121:5	85:6	110:19,	61:16	19,21	116:9,
124:9	88:24	21		48:13,	10,12
134:2,		113:1		10.13,	117:22

			,		
118:1	14:10	18	109:9	22:7	72:13
119:3,	15:13	66:24	110:8	23:1	74:21
4,6	18:6	67:7	111:1	24:10	75:19
120:4,7	22:22	69:21	112:4	25:5,6,	78:16
123:3,	23:2	72:18	113:8	9,10,17	80:23
4,6	24:21,	73:3,9	114:2,	26:12,	100:3
126:2,4	23,24	76:16	8,15,24	23	120:17
128:12,	25:4,16	77:11,	115:9,	27:11,	122:7
13,15	26:17	17,20	10,21	20	123:21
130:16,	27:7,15	79:15,	116:13	28:11,	129:20
17,19	28:5	16 80:8	117:10	15,16,	131:2,
133:20,	29:6	81:13,	118:15	21 29:9	3,5
21,23	31:21	23	119:7,	32:9	132:5,
	32:17	83:12	14,20	33:6,19	9,15
В	34:9,15	85:17	121:6	36:4	133:10
	36:9,12	86:6	123:10	37:13	136:24
back	37:1	87:11,	124:2	38:8	based
15:8	41:11,	14,18,	125:4,	39:22	17:18,
34:19,	21	19	10,11,	41:23	20
23	44:15	89:9,16	13	42:1,9,	101:20
40:18,	45:7	90:8,	127:19	20	114:9
22 46:1	46:6	20,21	130:22	43:4,	115:16
49:12	52:22,	91:1,10	131:2,4	11,20	117:4
56:22	24	93:4,24	132:13,	44:15,	132:12
88:2	53:8,19	95:3	20	20 48:5	136:2,9
94:23	54:1,	97:2,	133:3	49:24	Bashir
95:21	10,21,	12,15,	134:4	50:13,	92:4
102:6	22,23	20	137:15	19 51:4	
112:15	55:7,8,	98:6,8	ballots	53:2	basicall
128:3	13	100:10,	6:7,19	56:14,	У
135:7	56:22	11	7:2	20	83:2
bad	57:1,2,	101:6,	9:14	59:15	128:19
64:11	3,12	20	10:20,	62:6,12	130:24
ballot	59:10,	102:4	22	64:4	basis
5:9,10,	14	103:7,	15:16	65:5,8	25:16
13 6:4	60:4,	10,22	16:11	66:10	44:17
7:14	16,19,	104:11	17:6,	67:11	51:24
8:24	23	106:1,3	16,18	68:2,3,	138:21
10:10	61:3,4	107:1,	18:23	22 69:9	bathroom
11:10,	62:9	4,5,19	19:10	70:4,15	120:11
12	64:8	108:5,	21:10	71:12,	
	65:13,	13		13	
			l		

bearing	134:17	28:12,	78:1,8,	108:2,	10:22
28:6	bit	24	11,20,	4,10	11:5
beat	12:2	29:2,	24	109:24	13:10
55:12	32:7	15,17,	79:2,8,	110:1,	16:11
	55:24	19	14,20	3,5	17:6,17
begin	93:15	30:16	80:4,	111:23	18:4,22
8:22		39:6	12,14,	112:1	21:7
49:13	blank	40:1,2,	17	113:18,	22:7
83:9	35:22	4,6,12	84:18	21,23	23:1
beginnin	51:4,5,	43:7,	86:16,	114:22	25:21
g	13	10,15,	21,23	115:4,6	26:23
4:11	69:19	24	87:5,9,	116:5,	29:9
begun	blanket	44:2,4,	20	8,10	33:18
38:19	76:11	23	88:9,	117:18,	37:15
behalf	blow	45:13,	17,22	21,23	39:22
	85:23	17,19	89:10,	118:23	41:2
6:1	Bluestei	46:16,	13	119:2,4	42:6,9,
17:14		19	91:14,	120:3,5	14,17,
21:1,15	n l	47:3,16	17,20,	122:23,	21
26:9	3:5	48:10,	22,24	24	43:19,
51:22	7:10,12	12,14	93:6,22	123:2,4	21
55:19	9:5,22,	52:9,	97:8,	125:20,	44:19
61:21,	23	12,14,	22,24	24	45:5,8,
24	10:1,3,	16	98:2,	126:2	10 48:5
64:22	24	58:24	13,18,	128:2,	49:19
65:10	13:16	59:1,3,	19,21,	6,11,13	52:6
69:6	15:10,	5 63:6,	23	130:15,	57:15
75:16	23	11,13,	100:24	17	58:22
76:2,9,	16:3,	15,17	101:1,	131:11	59:9
13	14,19,	66:4,	3,15	132:16,	60:5,17
82:16	21,23	13,15	102:5,	21	61:11
83:5,8	17:9	67:19,	12,20,	133:19,	63:9
Bello	20:12,	23	21	21	66:2
132:21,	16	68:8,10	103:6,	134:14,	67:5,17
22	21:22,	70:21	11,16,	21,24	69:8
bipartis	23	71:1,5,	20,24	135:3,8	70:18
an	22:1,9,		104:3,		
3:14	13,14,	9 72:3, 5 73:22	6,8,20	board	77:10 78:17
	16,18	76:20,		3:10,14	86:14
birth	23:4,9,		105:3,	6:10,	
63:23	11,13	24	17	17,18	91:11
65:2	27:4	77:3,9,	106:17	9:14	95:2,15
		16	107:13		96:23
		'			

97:5	13	120:10	44:1	26:10	candida
98:10	19:3,	Briana	48:11	33:4	es
100:18	12,24	132:21,	49:10	55:20	82:19
102:14	20:3,8,	22	50:24	62:1	83:3,6
107:9	11		52:13	64:22	
109:21	24:17	briefing	59:2	69:6	canvass 6:8
111:6	25:19	32:14	63:14	75:17	
113:13	30:18,	briefly	66:12	82:17	17:15
114:19	21	75:24	68:7	93:2	19:10
115:23	32:24	bring	80:11	112:23	21:9
117:12	41:4	89:11,	86:19		36:4
118:17	44:11	14	91:21	Campbell	38:7
119:22	51:21,	95:12	97:23	120:22	canvass
122:16,	22		98:20	Campion	ng
17	56:21	brought	100:24	53:14	43:3
123:14	62:14	138:16	100:24	cancel	care
		Brown		54:10	113:5
125:17	65:10	91:4,5	104:4	canceled	
127:1,	75:23	business	108:1		Carol
21	book	8:16,	110:2	14:15,	120:23
128:18,	54:19	21,23	111:22	16	Carson
21	55:2	10:9	113:20	16:8,12	8:3
130:9	border		115:3	53:7	case
131:17	3:23	buzzword	116:7	54:3,14	6:24
133:14		s	117:20	64:6	7:4
138:3	bottom	38:12	119:1	131:6	38:22
board's	97:16		120:2	134:6	
108:7	bound	С	123:1	cancelle	43:3
Bob	33:5		125:22	d	44:17
	39:14,	C.S.A.	128:10	64:8	cases
17:14	19	7:5	130:14		30:11
55:10,	82:19	14:17	133:18	candidat	31:13
12	box	call	called	е	33:14
65:11	34:6,21	3:8	47:6	76:4,9,	121:16
Bonay	37:3	9:1,24	54:4	14 83:4	Casey
53:17	84:21	15:22		89:8	17:14
55:3	128:7	16:20	camera	92:4	21:3
Bonin		21:22	31:16	137:9,	51:22
11:3,9,	boxes	22:15	56:23	12	55:11,
21	36:3	23:10	campaign	138:1,	13
12:3,5	38:23	28:22	6:1	8,17	
13:9,13	break	29:16	21:2,3,		65:11
13:9,13	8:19	40:3	16		cast
17.10,		10.5			

			•		
26:17	40:9,	72:8	23,24	23	47:8,
67:6	23,24	73:12,	137:1	22:3,6,	13,24
casting	41:1	14	center	10,14,	48:4,
56:13	42:5	76:18,	53:16	16,20,	10,12,
	43:20	19	84:21	24	16,20,
Catch	44:7,20	77:10,		23:6,	21,23
34:7	45:22	14	centurie	10,11,	49:8,14
categori	46:1,2	78:15,	s	15,19,	50:23
es	48:6	16,18	4:4	20,21	52:5,
10:11	49:23	79:6,19	Chadwick	24:1,15	10,14,
19:14	50:1,2,	80:21,	61:11	25:18,	18
20:24	4,9,12,	23 81:6	chain	20,24	57:24
41:14	19	89:21	43:12	26:2,8,	58:2,9,
48:19,	51:3,15	91:9	Chair	22	13,19
22 56:4	52:4,19	93:23	3:4,8	27:3,5	59:1,3,
57:17	53:1,5,	94:19	5:16,20	28:22,	7
131:10	11,12	97:6	7:7	24	62:19,
category	55:16,	102:15	8:8,14	29:4,8,	23
6:16	18	105:24	9:6,8,	12,16,	63:4,8,
9:9	57:21,	107:1	13,18,	17,21	13,15,
10:17,	22	119:8	23	30:3,	19
19,23	59:8,	120:9,	10:1,5,	15,20	66:1,5,
11:5	10,15,	15,17	8,16,21	32:23	11,13,
13:5,	23 60:1	121:22	11:1,	33:17	17
11,19	61:18	122:10,	15,18,	34:2	67:16,
14:5	62:17,	13,14	23 12:4	35:14,	20
16:8,12	18,21	123:7,	13:12,	18,19	68:7,8,
17:2,7	63:20,	20,21	15	39:5,	12
22:4,8,	21	126:6	14:3,23	10,21	70:8,
21	64:2,	128:17,	15:4,	40:2,4,	12,17
23:2,	17,18,	21,23	21,23	8,14,22	71:3,7,
16,24	20	129:1,	16:5,	42:2	21
24:1	65:23,	3,11,	10,16,	43:6,9,	72:1,3,
26:11,	24	16,22,	20,21	16,19,	7 75:11
24	66:18,	23	17:1,5,	24	77:13,
29:5,	21	130:20,	12	44:2,5,	22
10,22	67:2,	23	19:2,6,	10,19	78:2,3,
30:2	12,14,	131:23	21	45:2,	6,8,13,
32:8	15,21	133:11,	20:1,7,	11,15,	21,24
33:19	68:13,	24	10,15	17,21,	79:4,
39:23	23 69:3	134:5	21:21,	24	12,18
	70:6,7	136:8,	,	46:18	80:9,

		11/15			
12,16,	109:10,	22	48:15,	120:6	107:10
19	15,20	129:24	19,22	123:5	108:15
82:1,3,	110:1,	130:8,	49:10	126:3,	109:21
8 86:2,	3,7	12,15,	51:22	20	110:10
7,13,	111:2,	19	52:17	128:14	112:6
17,21	5,10,	131:16,	57:23	130:18	113:13
87:1,3,	13,21,	20	59:6	133:22	114:3,
5 89:5	23	133:12,	62:22,	challeng	23
90:11	112:3	17,19,	24	e	115:11
91:11,	113:9,	23	63:18	5:11	116:14
15,19,	12,16,	chair's	66:7,16	49:13,	117:3
22	19,21	19:22	67:23	20,23	118:2,4
92:2,8	114:1,		68:11	50:14,	119:10
94:1,9,	16	chairman	71:5	21 51:4	122:16
14	115:2,	7:13	72:6	52:1,2	124:9
95:5,	4,8,22	10:4	76:20	54:22	125:18
16,20	116:2,	11:3,22	77:12	62:13	126:7
96:6,	6,8,12	13:14,	78:12	68:4	127:11,
11,15,	117:11,	16	79:3,9	70:1,9	21
19,22	15,19,	15:2,11	80:15,	70:1,9	131:1
97:3,9,	21	16:4,24	18	13	132:24
22,24	118:1,	17:10	84:18	72:11,	133:1,
98:4,	16,20,	19:4	86:24	14,20	6,10
10,15,	24	20:12	92:1	73:2,6	136:9
19,21	119:2,	22:2,19	93:22	76:10	137:8,
99:1,	6,21	23:14,	97:12	80:7	20,21,
12,17	120:1,	23	98:3,24	81:12	24
100:12,	3,7,12	24:14,	99:14	86:14	138:5,
17,21	122:15,	18 27:2	101:4	89:3,7	6,7,14,
101:1,	21,24	28:12	102:22	90:1,6	15,16,
5,13	123:2,6	29:3,20	103:21	92:4,	21,22
102:10,	124:21	30:1,18	104:4,9	23,24	challeng
13,18	125:12,	33:1	107:16	93:1,	ed
104:5,	17,21,	39:7	108:11,	20,21	50:4,
6,10	24	40:7	19	95:9	14,19
105:23	126:4,	41:4	110:6	96:8,9,	51:19
106:2,	17,21,	43:7	112:2	23,24	56:6,20
12,16	24	44:5,11	113:24	98:7	60:4,
107:6,	127:20,	45:20	115:7	105:10	17,24
9,14	24	46:16	116:11	106:5,	62:12
108:1,	128:10,	47:16,	117:24	100.3,	65:9
2,12,17	11,15,	22	119:5	± 0	

67:11	61:19	49:6	130:4,	Charter	city's
70:3,4	62:11	51:13	9,21,	4:9	54:9
71:17	64:19	52:6,20	22,23	check	Claiborn
75:22	65:7	53:19	131:2	18:7,9	60:22
83:19	67:2	56:10	132:10,	38:16	clarifyi
91:1	68:1	58:22	13,23	52:23	_
100:3	69:3	62:5	134:1,	56:12	ng
101:7,	73:13	63:9,22	4,12	109:14,	102:23
24	75:14	64:3	135:12	16	clear
106:22	87:19	65:4,20	136:4,	checked	14:8
109:3	92:14,	66:2,21	20	54:23	26:12
110:20	21	67:4,8,	challeng	106:9	30:22
113:2	93:12	17	ing	124:11	33:4,
114:11	94:3	68:14,	12:11		11,15
115:18	99:20	16	82:24	checking	41:17,
117:6	101:18,	69:7,12	123:10	18:5	22 42:5
118:11	19	70:18	133:1	32:20	56:2,24
119:17	108:23	75:18	chance	checks	67:4,7,
122:5	110:17	76:1	4:17	109:17	24
125:5	112:21,	78:17		Cherry	71:16
127:15	22	91:12	change	61:10	83:14
129:9	114:7	94:20	21:4,5	Cheryl	88:23
136:15	115:14,	99:4	87:6	110:9	90:19
challeng	15	100:18	114:23	Chris	clearer
er	117:1	102:14	changed		55:24
82:13,	118:7	111:6	47:1	34:1 39:7	clerk
18	119:13	114:19	chaos		53:15
89:21,	121:23,	115:23	34:13	Christin	clipboar
23	24	117:12	characte	a	ds
90:12	125:1	118:17	rizes	95:11	85:13
106:18	128:24	119:22	36:14	cited	
110:16	131:24	120:17,		101:22	close
123:9	132:14	24	charge	city	49:1
134:2	135:11	121:2	3:15	3:9,13,	61:8
challeng	136:17	122:17	chart	16,20	closer
ers	challeng	123:8,	31:15	4:1	33:3
50:10,	es	11,15,	55:22	34:8	Cloudio
11	5:9,10	20,22	56:8	49:18	124:7
51:17	11:14,	126:9	69:14,	54:2	clusters
55:17	16	127:9	17	76:6	31:14,
56:18	28:10	128:20	82:17	82:20	20
		129:5			
	ı l	ļ		I	I

		·	•		
32:12	86:18	107:15	commissi	115:13	17,20
code	116:19	111:11	oners	116:2,	122:2
7:4	131:20	113:17	3:13	18	complian
14:12,	commente	116:3	4:1 8:4	117:15	ce
22 37:1	r	117:16	9:4,19	118:6	3:12
38:4	20:13	118:21	10:15	119:12	9:2
44:14		122:21,	12:7,24	121:5,8	122:3
57:10	commente	23	16:7,17	123:13	complian
62:7	rs	125:22	22:10	124:20	_
Coffee	4:12	128:1	23:6	125:21	t
120:22	comments	129:21	25:11	127:24	122:7
	4:11	130:13	29:13	130:12	comprise
coincide	5:7	Commissi	31:13,	131:8	ន
S	7:10,	on	17	134:13	76:6
3:18	11,14	16:5	50:18	135:11	computat
colleagu	9:19	commissi	51:3	Commissi	ion
е	11:7,	oner	62:20	oners'	15:12
57:3	12,22	3:17,20	66:5	46:15	concern
comfort	12:1,6	4:5	67:21	Committe	4:20
120:10	13:10 16:17	7:10	68:21	e	93:15
comment		13:14	71:22	6:2	concerne
4:15,	20:6 22:11	19:13	78:22	communic	d
16,20	23:7	35:15	80:10		53:21
5:12	35:16	46:23	83:22	ate 38:20	
11:2,7	50:6	47:12	88:8	47:10,	concerns
13:18,	51:16	52:10	89:20	13	20:24
22 14:1	52:11	73:15	90:10		conclude
20:14	55:16	85:23	91:15 92:13	compare	s
23:22	60:1	86:17	93:11	30:8	48:18,
24:16,	61:17	88:13	99:19	37:8,24	21 52:3
18	66:6	97:9	101:12,	121:13	57:22
25:23	67:20	98:15	14	compelli	62:17
26:3,6	71:22	100:22	102:18	ng	65:24
29:13	78:22	107:14	106:15	38:13	67:14
33:21	81:9,10	109:14	108:22	39:11	70:6
45:12,	86:5	124:21	111:11	complete	76:19
13	91:16	commissi	112:9,	38:15	86:5
47:17	97:10	oner's	20	complete	91:9 100:10
62:20	98:16	3:10	113:17	đ	100:10
71:24	100:22	82:20	114:6	54:9,	107:4
80:10	102:19				109.0

		11/15	, 2021		
111:1	consider	correct	19:7,21	87:10,	132:4
113:8	ed	24:7,8,	32:23	23 90:9	133:4
114:15	128:19	11,12	42:3	92:7	134:5
115:21	consiste	56:5	49:19	93:3	136:14
117:10		58:15	82:1	96:20	137:2,
118:15	nt	72:15	count	97:2,	3,4,9,
119:20	18:24	73:7	9:14	15,21	14
120:8	consiste	77:8	10:22	99:5	counted
122:13	ntly	86:10	15:6,16	100:7,	14:11,
125:10	129:11	88:21	16:11	16	21
127:18	contact	96:21	17:6	101:9	15:15
129:22	55:4	103:23	18:16	103:7,	21:16
conclusi	60:13	106:14	21:20	22	22:23
on	contacti	125:15	22:7	105:4,	23:3
38:6	ng	correcte	23:1	5,24	24:24
conduct	61:15	đ	25:21	106:6,	26:13
3:22	containe	54:15	26:23	13	33:6
	d	correctl	28:3,	107:7	41:11,
confirm	24:21		11,20	108:5,	23 42:1
12:12		У 65:5	29:9	8,16	43:5
61:3	continue	75:20	33:18	110:11	44:16
67:6	13:18		35:9	111:3,	51:8
confirme	99:2	132:3, 14	39:22	4,5	53:7
d	contrary		51:7	112:7,8	56:3,10
54:8,13	57:2	Corridin	53:3,6	113:10,	59:18
conflict	control	е	55:13	11	60:19
28:8	83:3	8:1	68:2,3,	114:5,	61:8
confusio	сору	council	17	24	62:6
n	88:4	3:20	69:15,	115:12	64:4,5,
61:14	89:15	counsel	18,20	116:16	6 65:14
104:2	92:10	21:8	71:12,	118:5,9	66:23,
	93:8	91:3	15	119:11,	24
congress	102:8	100:6	72:19,	15	68:18
ional	core	102:2	23	120:18,	71:14
76:4,5	35:24	106:24	73:5,11	20	74:18
conjunct		Counsel'	74:11	123:23	75:2,19
ion	Corey	s	77:20	124:1,	81:3
26:15	99:10	84:19	79:15	12	83:13,
conseque	corner	counselo	80:6,7	125:3	17
nces	114:17		81:23	126:13,	90:20
41:17		r	86:8,11	23	98:9
				131:4,5	
l		1		ı I	

99:23	county	current	11,20	22	15,16
101:20	17:3,7	4:8	97:4	19:4,7	66:7,
103:17	18:6,10	63:23	days	20:9	13,14
106:21	19:9	custody	6:9	21:23,	67:22
109:1	38:22	43:12	18:18	24	68:8,9
110:18	61:11		73:1	22:12,	71:24
112:24	64:14	cut		16,17	72:3,4
114:9	65:3	110:23	days'	23:5,8,	73:15,
115:16	67:5	cycle	20:21	11,12,	16,19
117:4	99:16	3:19	dealing	20,23	74:1
122:1,	138:20,	38:18	34:14	24:3,6,	75:4,6
4,7,9	23	cycles	dealt	9,13	78:3,5,
124:2		134:11	21:11	27:2,6	9,10,24
125:4,	court		34:14	28:24	79:1
14	17:23,			29:11,	80:2,
127:14	24 28:9	D	Deborah	14,17,	12,13
127:14	32:8,13	Dana	7:20	18	85:18
131:4	33:13	7:16	decides	30:1,4,	86:1,
	36:6	9:2,6	39:16		
132:11,	38:7	10:6	decision	7,11,14	21,22
15	39:15,	Daniel	17:17	35:17,	87:2,4,
136:10	16,18	7:24	36:21	20	5,7,24
counties	41:16		38:7,17	40:4,5,	88:6
12:14	73:1	date	103:22	18	91:18,
13:7	Court's	63:23		43:18,	22,23
counting	17:15	65:2	deck	23	95:12
28:15	18:24	84:3	35:23	44:2,3,	97:11,
58:4,5	courts	88:24	declarat	24	24
63:2	28:19	134:17	ion	45:3,	98:1,
66:9		138:1	44:8	17,18	14,17,
76:15	cover	Dave	59:11	46:12	21,22
129:19	89:18	21:2	decorum	47:22	100:20
	created	David	4:23	48:1,9,	101:1,
counts	4:1	21:15		12,13	2,16
25:4	creditin	62:1	Deeley	52:14,	102:17
43:20			3:7	15	104:6,7
44:20	g 76:12	day	8:11	57:23	107:16
48:5		14:19	9:17,21	58:1,3,	108:2,
59:17	cross	18:18	10:1,2	11,16	3,6
81:1,2	32:19	38:12	15:2,5,	59:3,4	110:3,4
130:4,5	curated	39:9	23,24	62:22,	111:9,
136:21	31:8	53:15	16:15,	24	12,14,
	i l	54:1,	18,21,	63:12,	23,24

		11/13			
112:15	Democrat	77:19	131:13,	93:3	dialogue
113:15,	s	78:18	17	95:1,8,	4:16
21,22	133:1	81:23	133:13,	10	differen
115:1,	134:13	83:11	15	96:18	ce
4,5	denied	86:8,	determin	98:7	27:19
116:1,	65:21	11,15	ations	99:4	
4,8,9,		87:10,	5:14	100:15	differen
19	departme	21,23	6:5	101:8	tly
117:14,	nt	90:8	7:15	103:7,	39:17
17,21	30:21	91:13	8:24	17	directed
118:19,	49:19	92:6	10:10	106:5	60:8
22	69:14	96:16	20:22	108:16	65:16
119:2,	82:18	97:4,6,	50:3	110:11	director
3,24	departme	19	103:1	114:5	9:1
120:3,4	nt's	98:11	129:12	115:12	discreti
121:9,	38:11	100:13,		116:15	on
12,16,	departme	14,19	determin	118:4	4:20
19	ntal	102:15	е	119:10	
122:20,	3:21	103:3,	13:1	120:18,	discrimi
22		10	15:12	19	natory
123:2,3	depends	105:4,6	27:24	121:17	5:1
124:23	26:5	107:7,	37:24	123:15,	discuss
125:24	deputies	11	73:23	22,24	5:9
127:23	8:4	109:22	75:1	124:1,	discussi
128:11,	deputy	111:3,7	104:14	11	on
12	9:1	112:6,8	determin	126:12	105:20
129:17	49:18	113:10,	ed	132:6,7	
130:11,	determin	14	15:14	133:3	disenfra
15,16	ation	114:20,	21:18	136:13,	nchised
133:16,	13:20	24	24:4	21	32:4
19,20	52:7	115:24	30:12	137:1,	41:8
134:23	56:7	117:13	46:21	13	45:4
delay	58:23	118:18	51:6	138:20	disenfra
11:12	63:10	119:23	53:2	determin	nchises
	66:3	122:18	59:16	es	38:5
Demetriu	67:18	123:16	64:3	27:23	109:6
S	70:19,	125:3,	66:22		disenfra
7:21,24	24	13,19	68:3,16	determin	nchising
Democrat	71:18	126:22	69:19	ing	57:8
ic	72:18,	127:22	71:12	27:8	
20:19	22 73:5	130:1,	73:10	Devin	display
137:8		10	80:24	7:23	35:22

distinct	110:14	106:21	19	eligible	end
116:22	document	109:1	27:10,	27:23	21:6
distinct	s	110:18	22	eliminat	81:11
ive	89:14	Dwayne	31:12	е	110:23
48:2	92:9	7:19	34:7,10	105:18	enforced
distinct	93:7		36:5,13	eliminat	3:21
ly	94:4,11		37:1,15	ing	enfranch
54:24	95:6	_	38:4,9	105:18	ised
	108:18	E-M-I-L-	39:9		84:17
district	118:13	E	42:6,8,	email	100:8
21:19	126:18,	134:22	17,21	7:9,11,	
74:23	20	earlier	43:4,13	13	Enrique 8:2
76:5,10	133:7	32:9	44:14	12:17	
136:8,	DOS	120:21	45:5,8,	55:5	ensure
11	17:20	easiest	10	60:3,9,	30:23
diving	double	72:9	53:15	14,15,	31:2,5
36:22	24:20	81:5	54:2,7,	21 61:10	entered
division	130:21	137:6	11,12,		134:16
44:8,21	133:10	easy	15,20,	emailed	entire
45:5		12:12	24	31:17	20:20
74:15,	drag	90:4	57:4,10	51:16	77:10
16	97:18	Eckroade	60:24	55:15	entirety
division	Drissel	9:2,3,	61:5,9,	59:24	104:14
s	99:11	7,10	12 62:7 69:7	61:17	
74:19	drive	10:7	134:11	emails	enumerat ed
doc	85:6,11		134:11	7:16	ea 41:24
101:10	driver's	Edward 126:8		8:3	57:11
document	109:18		election	50:8	
85:24	drives	efforts	S	53:12	envelope
88:1	88:18	31:12	3:15,22	64:18	6:11
89:11		elected	6:11	emerge	23:17
92:20	drop-	3:14,17	27:14	4:7	24:11,
97:13	down	election	31:4,6	emphasiz	22,24
99:13	97:16	3:19,24	37:19	es	25:1,3,
102:6	dropped	4:6 7:4	42:13	36:11	15
112:16,	34:20	14:12,	49:20	enacted	26:13,
17	Duboy	19	59:13 61:12	56:16	14,19 27:1 7
	55:6	18:14,	61:12		27:1,7, 16 28:5
document	due	18,21	62:4,8 67:5	enclosed	30:5
		10.11	0/.5	23:17	30.3
ation 106:8	60:4	19:11			32:17,

22	32:11	132:8		138:22	21
33:10	41:9	executed	F	files	floor's
35:23	84:11	36:11	fact	9:15	35:18
36:2,	Esha	37:11	12:15	filled	
14,19	7:18	83:16	36:6	45:8	focus 4:3
37:1,5,			69:22		
9 44:9,	essentia	executiv	83:23	65:5	fold
21 45:7	11y	е	136:9	122:2	135:7
57:1	74:20	9:1		132:14	folks
61:6	establis	exhibit	factual	filling	50:17
73:17	hed	12:18	25:16	27:11	follow
88:2	21:11	55:21	Fair	37:21	28:17
90:21	Eva	expected	12:4	final	39:19
107:19	7:22	31:10	faith	56:7	42:17
111:16,	everybod	experien	38:10	61:10	43:12
17	y's	ce	fall	119:7	49:21
envelope	_	19:9	50:1	136:23	52:7
s	11:24	39:9	59:22	finally	56:15
28:14	evidence			4:22	66:2
37:21	19:8,19	experien	falls	55:9	67:17
38:23	20:4	ces	49:23	73:6	70:18
59:11	84:16	19:17	federal		78:17
62:9	85:14	explain	3:23	find	86:14
121:10	examples	72:10	27:21,	12:9	87:10
132:13	90:17	103:14	22	38:12	100:18
	exclude	explaine	134:11	124:13	102:14
Eric	44:15	đ	Felton	134:18	111:7
60:14	57:12	32:14	7:19	135:15	112:12
erred	77:15		fields	finger	113:13
36:6	excluded	explanat	30:24	107:22	117:12
38:7	25:17	ion		fit	118:17
error	65:19	50:2	file	122:11	122:18
27:16		extend	9:12	five-	125:18
32:5,10	excludes	4:19	12:23	94:14	127:21
54:8	41:20	extent	14:18		130:9
103:14	excuse	6:18	46:10	five-	133:13
105:16	19:24	extra	85:20	minute	
134:7	33:20	28:4	115:23	94:10	foot
137:5	71:3		116:21	fix	34:21
	79:8	extrapol	filed	14:16	forget
errors 31:14	88:12	ate	68:16	floor	76:2
21.14	91:10	21:12	130:22	34:20,	

form	84:3	137:11	134:24	15	73:13,
4:8	full	future	good	half	14
54:10	38:9	88:11	3:4,5,	130:24	75:22,
105:11	51:7		6,7		23
formal	53:3		9:3,5,6	hand 5:4	76:18
6:13	55:2	G	10:13,		85:17
	59:16	game	14	handed	87:18,
forms	60:10	21:7	48:24	34:19	19 91:
48:17	72:23	Garrett	50:23	94:23	102:4
51:5,9,	73:5	7:16	51:2	handing	107:4
12	80:6		60:22	34:11	121:22
forum	81:1	gather 19:18		hands	122:13
65:16	84:14		Goodwin	89:18	125:1
forward	87:23	general	76:2,4		127:4,
5:14	90:9	21:4	82:14	happen	18
61:14	90:9	25:3,6,	gosh	31:24	129:1,
found		12	76:22	34:7	16
99:9	93:3	26:19	governme	happenin	130:7
	99:5	28:17	nt	g	131:24
137:4	100:16	33:11	38:13	15:18	
four-	101:9	41:22		37:14	hearing
year	106:6	42:15	Granted	42:12	5:11
3:18	108:8	56:16	120:12	harder	6:13
Frankfor	112:8	65:11	Great	39:2	8:17
d	113:10,	123:20	69:1		11:12
135:3	11	genuine	105:15	Harold	15:20
	114:5	30:12	124:19	118:3	49:21
Frankinf	116:16	37:10	137:11	Harry	50:5,2
ield	119:11	38:1	Green	7:18	52:11
7:17	120:18	83:15	8:2	hear	57:14
frankly	123:23	121:17		47:12	58:20
19:12	130:4		guess	56:19	60:7
32:6	133:4	Gerrrali	42:12,	57:18	61:1
fraud	137:2	ne	15 96:9	94:8	72:1
42:8	fully	7:22	135:15		80:11
	36:11	Gill	guidance	heard	86:19
Friday	38:20	89:8	17:21	6:21	91:19
3:10	64:4	137:12	30:24	11:11	100:23
front	131:3	138:8		17:11	102:19
33:10		give	Н	20:14	113:19
36:24	fun	49:11		30:19	117:19
37:5,14	80:22	50:1	habit	37:22	125:22
	103:8	20.T	109:14,	49:3	

	 	 [
130:13	hurdles	improper	106:19,	67:6	62:4,8
hearings	28:4	ly	23	83:2	instruc
6:19	hurts	54:3,14	110:19,	individu	28:19
49:13	55:12	inabilit	21	ally	32:3
50:24		У	113:1,3	13:1	instruc
held	I	12:9	114:10,	81:7	ed
4:3	i's	inactive	12	82:6,8	34:18
hell		137:12	115:17,	95:17	39:20
35:8	100:1		19	131:9	instruc
	ID	inapprop	117:5,7	informat	
helpful	9:11,14	riately	118:10,	ion	ing
74:5	74:4	15:13	12	15:7	27:14
hey	81:8,15	inches	119:16,	45:6	instruc
35:1	103:12	36:3	18	53:24	ions
72:12	109:11	include	125:6	55:4	11:10
Hogger	116:17	7:15	127:12,	57:10	intenti
34:1,4	identica	13:5	16	60:9,	n
hold	1	included	129:7,	12,13	77:9
6:19	103:12	26:20,	14	63:21	84:13
49:3,4	111:16,	24	incorpor	64:1,24	107:2
	18	53:20	ating	65:17	interes
Home	identifi	includes	109:2	68:22	38:13
4:9	ed	63:22	incorrec	113:5	39:12
Homna	12:20	65:1	t	120:16	
7:18	18:2		134:1	121:6	invalid
hope		includin	incorrec	136:3	52:6
61:7	ignore	g		initials	invite
hotline	105:8	6:24	tly	84:1,12	51:14
53:21	II	7:5	134:3,	107:2	invited
54:4	41:12	incomple	10		69:4
hour	immediat	te	indiscer	initiati	involve
12:7,19	ely	73:2	nible	ve	59:10
	54:16	inconsis	135:16,	6:10	
how's	importan	tent	24	inside	ipads 88:15
89:5	ce	131:12	136:6	24:11,	
huge	38:20		individu	21	issue
88:22		incorpor	al	25:15	7:2
Hughes	importan	ate	20:23	inspecto	30:19
7:16	t	91:3	21:18	r	35:24
human	61:8	100:5	26:18	31:4,6	54:15
85:15		102:1	27:9	59:13	74:12,
00.10					

24	8:1	29:1	127:5,8	95:6,	language
104:16	Jr	33:2	129:2,6	20,22	31:1
issues	101:7	42:4	132:1,	96:14	Larson
69:10	105:1	44:17	7,12	99:12	104:12
72:9	120:23	55:19	133:5	102:5	106:4
74:21,		56:2,9	135:13,	108:17	
22	judge	61:20,	16,20,	112:15	late
	27:14	21,24	24	121:9	19:13
item	31:3,5	64:21	136:6,	124:17	38:18
5:8	34:10	67:3	17	126:17	Latyra
8:23	37:19	69:5,24	137:18,	134:15,	119:8
10:9	42:13	70:11,	23	20	law
	54:24	20	138:4,	135:1	6:24
J	59:12	71:16	10,13		7:4
Jameal	62:3,7	74:7,		Kevin's	27:9,
46:7,8,	138:1	10,20	Kerns's	81:19	21,22
20,21,	judges	75:3,	13:21	Kia	28:4,7,
20,21,	61:12	16,17	Kevin	138:10,	17
47:5,6,	judgment	82:15	10:12,	12	31:24
	122:11	89:23	13	Kimberly	32:2
14,18	122,11	90:14	23:24	7:17	33:15
Janice		92:16	24:3	kitchen	38:10
7:16	K	93:13	30:2,4	27:12	49:19
Jason	K-E-R-N-	93:13	37:22		56:15
120:22	s		40:12	Kliver	69:14
Jemima	5:19,23	99:7,22 101:19	43:8,10	77:1	82:18
126:8	Kahn		46:10,	knowledg	
	138:17	104:13,	17,19	е	Lawrence
Jerry		19	47:8	20:2,3	108:14
8:1	Kamala	105:12	48:23	84:19	laws
Jessica	55:12	106:19	73:23		3:24
104:12	Kennedy	108:24	74:3	L	21:5
106:4	76:2,4	110:17	81:7,		learn
job	Kerns	112:10,	14,20	labeled	19:17
32:1,3	5:15,	14,22	85:2,18	15:13	learned
42:22	18,22	114:8	86:1	lack	54:2
Jogre	14:1,4	115:15	87:15,	35:24	
124:7	15:19	117:2	24 88:9	60:24	57 : 2
	21:1	118:8	89:10,	113:5	leaves
John	25:22	119:14	13 90:2	137:9	121:1
134:22	26:1,5,	121:24	92:8	Lane	133:9
Joshua	9,10	125:2	93:7	7:23	
		126:14		-	
	1		ı	ı	

36:18 37:6,17 38:24 84:21 lefts 94:2 legislat ure 28:19 letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	ines 103:12 105:22 ist 19:14 20:17 53:18, 20 57:12 isted	Lomax 120:23 long 7:17 8:16 25:3 97:4 long-	103:21 Mahalia 7:18 mail 5:13 7:14 8:23	26:2,3 29:12 33:20 35:16 42:8 47:17 52:11	mark 84:6, 12,14 marked 18:6
37:6,17 38:24 84:21 lefts 94:2 legislat ure 28:19 letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	105:22 ist 19:14 20:17 53:18, 20 57:12 isted	1ong 7:17 8:16 25:3 97:4 1ong-	7:18 mail 5:13 7:14	33:20 35:16 42:8 47:17	12,14 marked 18:6
38:24 84:21 lefts 94:2 legislat ure 28:19 letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	ist 19:14 20:17 53:18, 20 57:12 isted	7:17 8:16 25:3 97:4	7:18 mail 5:13 7:14	35:16 42:8 47:17	marked 18:6
84:21 lefts 94:2 legislat ure 28:19 letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	19:14 20:17 53:18, 20 57:12 isted	7:17 8:16 25:3 97:4	mail 5:13 7:14	42:8 47:17	18:6
84:21 lefts 94:2 legislat ure 28:19 letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	19:14 20:17 53:18, 20 57:12 isted	8:16 25:3 97:4 long-	5:13 7:14	47:17	18:6
lefts 94:2 legislat ure 28:19 letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	20:17 53:18, 20 57:12 isted	25:3 97:4 long-	7:14		
94:2 legislat ure 28:19 letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	53:18, 20 57:12 isted	97:4 long-		52:11	89:7
legislat ure 28:19 1: letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	20 57:12 isted	long-	0.43	22,11	Marlon
ure 28:19 1: letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	57:12 isted		9:2	55:21	7:24
28:19 1: letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license		term	27:10	61:1,22	
letter 12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license		28:13	28:16	62:20	Marshall
12:18 17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	41:15		54:10	67:24	7:22
17:20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	44:13	looked		71:22	Mary
17.20 32:7 letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	54:21	77:5	mail-in	76:11	134:23
letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	56:8	135:22	22:22	77:14,	Masin
letters 75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	65:14,	lot	23:2	17 78:4	95:4,19
75:9 level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	18	19:18	25:5,9	80:2,5,	match
level 18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	123:9,	Love	55:8	6,10	9:11,15
18:5 Lewis 7:21 license	11	64:9	61:4	81:9	40:10
Lewis 7:21 license		Luzerne	64:7	82:5	46:2
7:21 license	ists	38:22	66:24	84:13	48:7
license	4:5	30.22	89:16	90:19	81:13
	41:10,		maintain	92:16	84:2
109:18	13,17,	M	85:10	97:10	89:9
	19 46:7	machine	maintain	98:16	90:22
119110	60:12,	35:7	ing	103:2	95:1
94.40	19	machines	4:5	105:12	97:14
Linda	82:21,	34:23	majority	114:22	99:24
5:18,22	22	Maddox	36:10	130:13	112:24
7:21	iterall		123:14	131:20	114:4,
21:1 Y		46:7,	134:8	132:2	18
26:10	31:1	20,22		135:22	116:15
55:19 1 :	ive	47:1,6	make	makes	121:7
61:20,	4:12	made	5:2	39:2	126:10
23,24	ives	14:24	6:15	68:4,5	
64.21	105:2	20:22	11:2,4,	making	matches
69:5		30:22	6 13:20	12:1	75:10
/5:15.	ocated	32:10	14:1	13:23	91:7
17	12:21	69:7	16:17	24:15	101:10
Timelan	13:6	76:13	22:11	38:14	matching
7.22	45:6	77:19	23:22	58:9,	125:8
, 23	53:18	79:21	24:16		material
		84:12	25:22	11,13	,

		11/13	,		
27:8	123:8	minute	124:4,	104:15,	29:8
84:11	means	49:5	6,13	17	33:17
math	26:21	94:15	125:16	mistakes	39:21
64:10	41:20	minutes	126:7	45:4,10	43:19
Matrice	74:14	4:18	127:11	Mister	44:19
7:23	meeting	11:20	130:7	104:13	48:4
	3:9,11	mismatch	132:18,		52:5
matter	4:21	79:7	24	moment	58:21
32:14	5:11	80:22	mismatch	64:9	61:14
61:16			ed	135:10	63:8
127:18	8:5	81:4,	47:20	morning	65:8
matters	meetings	11,24	115:16	60:15	66:1
4:21	4:24	83:13		Morrison	67:16
Matthews	Megan	86:12	mismatch	110:9	78:16
73:17	60:21	87:13	ing		86:13
75:8	mention	90:7	124:9	motion	91:11
	37:3	92:4,5	misplace	14:24	96:22
mayor		93:1	đ	23:21	97:5
3:19	merged	94:19,	55:9	24:16	98:10
Mccormic	105:22	20	61:4	58:10,	100:17
k	messines	95:11	misquote	12,20	102:13
6:1	s	96:14,	_	68:5	107:9
21:2,15	113:4	18	S	71:23	109:20
26:10	method	98:6,8	21:9	77:15,	111:6
33:3	66:20	99:3,6	missed	17	113:12
55:20		101:8,	64:11	79:12,	114:18
62:1	micropho	21	missing	20	115:22
64:22	ne	106:5,	31:18	80:3,5	117:11
69:6	5:21	21	57:15,	103:20	118:16
75:17	51:20	108:15	17	108:4	119:21
82:16	61:23	109:2	59:9,	114:21,	122:15,
83:8	83:21	110:10,	14,19	23	17
93:2	middle	19	60:5	move	125:17
112:23	134:22	112:5	63:21,	7:8 8:9	126:24
Mckensy	mind	114:10	24	9:13	127:20
60:2	19:8	117:4	68:14	10:8,21	130:8
	128:3	118:4,9	70:15	16:10	131:16
Mclaughn	137:18	119:8,	138:3	17:5	133:14
138:10,	minority	9,15	mistake	22:6,24	
12	31:4,6	120:9,	69:24	23:19	moved
meaning	59:13	16	72:23	25:20	8:6,9,
36:22	62:4,8	121:2	77:19	26:22	12
	02.4,0		,,,,,,		
			•	•	•

		·			
17:22	108:9	92:19	20	observer	129:19
18:17	112:1	93:13	69:15,	76:1,9,	131:7
70:17	113:23	107:20	16,17	13	online
moving	115:8	109:5	76:21	observer	107:21
85:12	117:23	110:22	77:23,	s	109:7
	120:5	113:3	24 90:2	15:24	
multiple	needed	114:12	95:24	20:20	operator
90:17	53:23	125:7	99:8	82:22	134:16
123:8,		133:6	103:12	83:5,7	opinion
9,20	Nelly	136:12	105:1	90:15	36:10
126:6	7:21	noted	109:18,		97:19
128:17	Nesmith	15:21	19	observin	107:17
129:5	7:19	64:22	120:21	g	128:9
130:3	newfound	75:13	124:8,	83:4	opportun
municipa	38:20	101:9	14	93:19	ity
1	Nick		126:9	133:8	4:15
3:19	46:15	notes	134:15	occur	6:20
municipa	Nicole	82:18	numbers	32:12	11:4
lity		notice	104:23,	occurrin	14:16
138:24	91:4,5,	39:3	24	g	20:21
Mysterio	6	51:24	130:24	37:16	opposing
usly	night	notifyin	132:17	offer	50:14
34:5	43:13	g	132 1,	5:12	62:13
34.5	NIS	47:2			
	15:6	noting	0	office	option
N	Noeltaj	6:21	objectio	54:6,8,	34:9
names	95:3,		n	13	order
46:7	19,21	November	5:3	82:21	3:9
Napoleon	Noreen	3:11	6:22,23	official	4:23
7:23	120:21	Nuelia	13:21	60:24	original
		7:19	15:11	61:6	13:21
National	note	number	76:12	official	originat
6:2	12:11	7:13	128:21	s	ed
nay	13:21	9:9,10	129:10	3:15	38:22
40:5	37:12	10:17	objectio	57:4	
52:15	38:17	18:7,8,	ns	61:13	Osani
72:4	41:9	11,13	6:15	one-	55:10
78:10	82:16	32:12	7:3		out-of-
80:13	83:9	46:3	129:13	voter	19:8
86:22	85:10	49:24		34:16	Outburst
98:1	90:15	57:6	observed	63:2	s
101:3	91:4	60:10,	17:23	66:9	

5:5	88:24	parties	people	personal	places
outlined	105:10	6:14,20	35:5,11	ly	31:20
27:20	part	20:18	37:20	61:5	32:20
	26:15	32:14	56:19	perspect	39:3
Overdan 114:3	54:9	121:4	64:10	ive	plain
	55:21	123:13	81:22	47:21	36:7
overview	63:22,	party	85:12		
49:11	24 76:7	6:3	88:14,	Pete	point 106:11
	88:7	18:1	19	53:14	100:11
P	92:17	20:19	106:10	petition	
p.m.	114:16	87:14	109:6	14:18	policies
19:16	partial	90:6	135:18	Philadel	3:21
49:10	53:6	138:22	perceive	phia	poll
	59:17		đ	3:9,13,	27:16
P.S.	68:17	pass 109:13,	5:3	16 4:9,	30:22
6:13	69:15,	109:13,		13,14	31:2,5
7:1,5	19		percent	5:23,24	9,13
14:8	72:18	passed	12:16	18:8,	32:2,4
21:17		114:21	performe	17,19	34:13
38:1	73:11	passes	d	49:18	38:18
62:2	74:11	16:6	19:1	53:18,	41:7,14
64:23	81:1	patterns	period	21 54:6	52:23
99:24	108:16	31:14	11:8	76:6,7	54:18
122:3	110:11	Peck	person	phone	55:2
PA	111:4,5	8:1	14:9	60:6	57:7
7:5	112:7		22:5,8		polling
14:17	115:12	penalize	35:6	picture	27:13
28:4,7	118:5	đ	37:11,	38:10	31:20
54:4	120:19	45:9	16,18	piece	34:5
package	123:24	Penndot	46:21	36:17	37:14
25:4	126:12,	17:23	54:11	38:14	
pages	23	18:12,	59:21	105:10	Ponzo 115:10
36:22	130:5	20	64:15	place	
	131:4	99:15,	67:1	26:18	portion
Palmetto	136:13,	17	84:4,	27:13,	5:11
103:5	21	Pennsylv	16,22	15 34:5	97:16
105:2	137:3,	ania	10,22	36:23	111:17
paper	14	3:12	134:18	37:14	position
36:18	partiall	4:2		42:7	6:12
38:14	У	6:3,24	personal	57:9	28:13
	C 1 . F	0.2,44	5:1	I	
84:6	64:5	7:3		61:7	33:3

				1 1	
position	preservi	19	9:20	proceedi	6 7:1
s	ng	114:13	11:2	ng	10:9,22
6:16	6:23	116:20	13:17,	42:19	11:10,
possibly	7:2	126:11	24 16:6	PROCEEDI	11,14,
81:18	Prester	128:8	17:1	NGS	15
potentia	7:20	prior	22:3,20	3:2	14:10
11y	presuppo	6:16	23:15	proceeds	16:11
74:22	se	57:14	24:2	80:1	17:6,16
	33:12	88:24	27:5		19:10
powers		89:1	29:4,21	process	21:9
4:4	pretty	91:3	40:8,23	6:8	22:7
precedin	41:5	100:5	44:6	27:13	23:1
g	48:2,24	102:1	45:15,	31:8	24:21,
14:19	prevent	110:19	21	41:7	23,24
preclude	42:7	113:1	52:12,	49:12,	25:10,
15:17	previous	114:10	18	21	15,21
prefer	57:7	115:17	55:17	produced	26:17,
127:10	106:20	117:5	58:21	20:17	23
	109:2	118:10	59:7	profane	27:20
prefers	127:13	119:16	62:21	4:24	28:16
95:15	previous	129:7,	63:19	proper	29:9
prepare	ly	12	64:19	43:12	33:10,
20:4	54:9	probabil	66:17		18 34:8
prepared	64:23	ity	68:12	properly 54:16	35:23
26:4	101:22	107:22	72:2,7	88:20	36:4,24
31:15		problem	77:11		37:5,
presence	<pre>primary 17:16</pre>	88:17,	78:6,23	provide	13,21
31:3	19:11	23	79:5,9	50:6	38:8
present	21:10		80:20	57:4,5	39:22
20:20	36:5	procedur	81:5	59:23	41:11,
49:22	38:8	е	86:18	65:17	23 42:9
95:2	43:3	6:13,22	87:3	provided	43:20
		14:13	91:20	36:11	44:20
presente	principl	69:9	92:2	51:23	45:7
d	е	procedur	94:21	52:24	46:6
10:11	39:11	es	100:23	69:14	48:5 49:20,
38:9	print	21:6	104:10 106:2	82:17	49:20, 24
preserve	117:8	33:8	114:21	provisio	50:19
4:23	printed	82:20	128:20	nal	50:19
6:15	75:9	proceed	120.20	5:8,10,	51·4 52:20,
129:13	111:17,	8:15,21		13 6:4,	22,24
					22,24

			/ 2024		
53:1,19	50:5	28:5	99:18	109:12	41:10,
54:1,	pull	90:2	101:11,	read	22,24
21,23	46:10	128:3	13	9:8	57:12
55:7	73:16,		106:14,	10:16	65:12,
56:13	23 74:1		16	26:14	15
59:10,	79:13,	Q	108:21	49:22,	121:2
14	21	Q&a	112:9,	24 50:7	123:9,
60:4,	81:14	4:16	19	53:13	14
16,23	87:15	qualifie	114:6	74:4	128:18
61:3	124:17	đ	115:13	85:1,2	reassess
62:9	138:11	27:9	116:17	96:1	17:18
65:13		28:7	118:5		
70:4	pulled	question	119:11	reading	reassign
72:16	58:17	13:17	121:7	36:4	ed
93:4	79:10	19:5,22	124:19	64:11	18:12,
107:19	pulling	23:24	131:9	ready	20
133:2	137:18	25:14	134:13	35:10,	reassign
134:3	punishin	32:19	135:9	11	ment
137:14	g	43:8	quicker	87:17	18:14,
138:9,	27:17	46:17	quicker 83:6	reason	22
24		74:8		28:14	receive
provisio	pure 33:14	76:8	quickly	41:21	7:13
_		79:17	85:12	42:14	53:12
nally	purpose	102:22	Quoting	43:11	59:24
124:11	32:22	102:22	36:9	44:14	64:18
provisio	purposes	132:18		51:10,	
nals	92:18	134:14	R	12,23	received
136:10	put			52:21,	19:13
psi	23:21	question	race	23	50:8
24:19	34:23	able	136:12	54:21,	51:16
public	37:19	18:1,3	races	22	60:3,15
4:10,	40:14	question	74:18	55:1,14	receivin
15,16,	42:16	s	raise	56:13	g
20 5:2,	45:3	11:11	5:4	57:1,3	55:8
7,12	46:12	30:2,17	raising	65:18	recent
7:9,11,	56:22	43:17	93:14	69:18	19:1
14	76:21	50:20	Ramone	71:10	28:9
8:10,13	102:5	88:8	7:23	81:24	39:15
11:7	135:18,	89:19		124:10	recently
13:22	20	90:9	reach	137:9	17:22
エコ・ハハ コ		00.10	19:16		
15:22	putting	92:13	20:23	reasons	

		11/15	7 202 1		
recess	105:23	14,15	reject	127:1	represen
8:18	107:20	17:3,7	66:2	130:9	ting
49:5	111:15	18:8,	68:5	related	50:11,
94:10,	113:9	16,19	80:5	4:6	13
15	116:16	21:19	127:21	7:14	51:18
reclip	120:14	24:4	rejected		56:19
88:10	131:6	27:24	12:14	relating	61:18
	134:6	30:8	13:3	132:10	62:12
recogniz	136:19	46:20	52:2	relevant	65:8
e	records	54:17	71:11	6:23	67:11
5:5	8:10	64:13	123:16	7:4	83:19
recogniz	12:22	65:2	128:19	102:2	91:1
ed	13:1	74:17	134:3	remain	100:3
12:20	92:17	84:4,22		53:20	101:23
recommen	93:17	85:3	rejectin	remainde	Republic
dation		109:7	a	r	_
65:19	refer	121:13	70:23	128:16	an
80:6	127:10	registra	rejectio		6:2,3
108:8	referenc	_	ns	remainin	20:19
	е	tion	134:1	g	82:19
record	104:23	3:16,	rejects	99:3	87:14
8:7,13	105:1	22,24	52:6	remedy	90:6
33:24	124:8,	10:12	58:22	60:18	138:22
37:10	14	16:12	63:9	remember	Republic
49:16	referred	17:24	67:17	54:24	ans
50:22	36:8	18:10	70:18	96:4	132:23
53:8,13		54:3,14	78:17		136:15
64:7	refers	60:10,	86:14	removed	137:23
67:24	37:2	20	91:12	134:10	request
71:10	regard	85:6,11	100:18	repeat	54:10
75:7,8	6:3	88:5,	102:14	57:18	58:11
77:23	14:4,13	13,18	111:6	report	108:24
78:14	26:10	92:11	113:13	7:9	110:17
85:11	42:4,23	138:8	114:19	represen	120:10
86:8	56:9	registra	115:23	tatives	requesti
90:19	74:10	tions	117:12	82:23	_
92:18,	register	14:14	118:17		ng
19	ed	16:8	119:22	represen	71:13
93:14	5:24	regulato	122:16,	ted	require
94:17	12:15	ry	17	53:10	24:20
101:11	13:2,6	4:3	125:18		39:12
102:9	14:9,		173.10		

required	responsi	Richards	17	86:20	rushed
26:21	bilities	7:21	110:13	91:21	113:6
33:8,9	4:7	Richards	121:11,	97:23	
56:11,			15,18	98:20	s
14	responsi	on	124:15,	100:24	b
57:11	bility	3:6	18	102:20	S-T-O-H-
64:24	4:22	10:12,	126:19	104:4	R
	30:23	14,18	135:2,5	108:1	49:17
requirem	rest	16:7		110:2	Sabir
ent	78:15	17:2	right-	111:22	3:4,8
36:15	86:3	22:4,21	side	113:20	5:16,20
44:13	113:4	23:16	37:2	115:3	7:7
requires	128:20,	24:5,8,	rigmarol	116:7	8:8,14
62:2,7	22	12	е	117:20	9:6,8,
rereview	resume	29:5,22	127:3,6	119:1	13,18,
12:24	50:24	30:6,	Rivera	120:2	23
rogorijo	94:18	10,13	101:7	123:1	10:4,5,
reserve 13:10		40:9,	105:1	125:23	8,16,21
	return	16,20		128:10	11:1,
reside	3:10	41:1	Rivken		15,18,
5:19,23	22:22	43:14	7:22	130:14	23 12:4
65:3	23:2	44:7	Rodrigue	133:18	
residenc	returned	45:22	z	Rollins	13:12, 15
е	43:13	46:23	7:20	53:17	
21:12,	review	47:5,	roll	55:3	14:3,23
14	18:23	11,15	9:24	rule	15:4,21
resident	56:7	48:18	15:22	4:9	16:4,5,
4:13	95:3	74:6	16:20	25:8,9,	10,16,
	131:8	85:5,22	21:22	11	20,24
resident	reviewed	88:4,	22:15	ruled	17:1,5,
s		12,21	23:10	32:8	12
74:12	8:6,8,	89:12,	28:23	79:18	19:2,6,
Respectf	11	15	29:16		21
ully	34:19	92:10	40:3	rules	20:1,7,
61:7	56:6	93:8	44:1	21:5	10,15
respond	reviewin	95:23	48:11	122:8	21:21
50:16	g	96:3	52:13	ruling	22:2,3,
	6:11	99:14	59:2	17:15	6,10,
response	72:10	102:8	63:14	19:1	14,19,
13:8	90:16	106:7		39:15	20,24
68:24	92:22	108:19	66:12	rulings	23:6,
		109:13,	68:7 80:11	17:19	10,14,

21	10,17,	91:11,	12,16,	sakes	secrecy
24:1,15	18	15,19	19,24	78:14	23:17
25:18,	57:24	92:1,2,	114:1,	sample	24:11,
20,24	58:2,9,	8 94:1,	16	56:22	22
26:2,8,	13,19	9,14	115:2,		25:1,1
22	59:1,6,	95:5,	7,8,22	Samuel	26:14,
27:3,5	7	16,20	116:2,	7:19	18,24
28:22	62:19,	96:6,	6,11,12	satellit	27:7,1
29:3,4,	23	11,15,	117:11,	e	28:5,1
8,12,	63:4,8,	19,22	15,19,	54:6,7	secreta
16,20,	13,18,	97:3,9,	24	scan	
21	19	22	118:1,	85:24	Y
30:3,	66:1,5,	98:3,4,	16,20,	scrambli	7:9
15,20	11,16,	10,15,	24		8:15
32:23	17	19,24	119:5,	ng	9:23
33:17	67:16,	99:1,	6,21	19:16	14:24
34:2	20	12,17	120:1,	screen	21:21
35:14,	68:7,	100:12,	6,7,12	31:16	22:14
18	11,12	17,21	122:15,	36:20	28:23
39:5,21	70:8,	101:4,	21,24	40:15	30:15
40:2,7,	12,17	5,13	123:5,6	41:13	39:5
8,14,22	71:3,7,	102:10,	124:21	46:5,6,	40:2
42:2	21	13,18	125:12,	13	43:24
43:6,9,	72:1,6,	104:5,	17,21	56:23	45:11
16,19,	7 75:11	9,10	126:3,	84:5,20	48:10
24	77:13,	105:23	4,17,	90:17	52:12
44:5,	22	106:2,	21,24	93:5	59:1
10,19	78:2,6,	12,16	127:20,	102:6	63:5,1
45:2,	12,13,	107:6,	24	108:14	66:12
11,15,	21	9,14	128:10,	110:9	86:19
20,21,	79:3,4,	108:1,	14,15,	112:5	91:20
24	12,18	11,12,	22	114:3	97:22
46:18	80:9,	17	129:24	115:10	98:19
47:8,	15,16,	109:10,	130:8,	116:14	100:23
13,24	19	15,20	12,18,	screens	102:11
48:4,	82:1,3,	110:1,	19	46:15	19
10,15,	8 86:2,	6,7	131:16,	seat	110:1
16,20,	7,13,	111:2,	20	5:21	111:22
21,23	17,24	5,10,	133:12,	33:3	113:20
49:8,14	87:1,3	13,21	17,22,		115:2
50:23	89:5	112:2,3	23	seconded	116:6
20 20		,	20	14:24	118:24

			, = = = =		
120:1	20	8:2	36:2	70:16	111:15,
122:24	79:22	short	38:14	72:9,21	18,19
130:14	separate	50:2	39:1,4	73:2,4,	112:5,
133:17	ly		42:6	7,19,21	24
section	58:18	shorter	60:18	74:21	114:9,
13:22	79:21	73:23	61:6	75:9	13,18
24:19	79.21	107:23	62:8	79:7,16	115:11,
45:6	serve	shoulder	72:14	80:22	17
	3:18	81:19,	107:2	81:3,	116:14,
Security	session	22	signatur	11,24	21
109:18	120:21	show		83:13,	117:4
Segal	set	34:6	e 29:23	15,24	118:3,9
7:18	3:20	51:9	30:5,8,	84:9,15	119:8,
segregat	6:7	84:7,	12	85:21	9,15
ing	17:20	21,23	31:22	86:12	120:9
78:14	25:8	showing	32:15,	87:13	121:10,
selected	65:12	35:21	17	88:2,11	13,17
52:21	setting		33:19	89:1,17	124:4,
55:10	69:9	shown	34:16	90:7,	6,9,13,
		84:13	36:2,9,	21,22	17
selectin	Shaffer	90:16,	15,18,	91:6	125:8,
g	60:2,3	17	24	92:3,5	15
55:1	Shamina	shows	37:2,4,	93:2	126:7,
Senate	85:20	84:1	8 39:23	94:19,	10
17:14	shared	89:1	40:10	20	127:11
51:23	8:3	side	46:1	95:10	128:7
65:11	121:4	36:19	47:20	96:13,	129:19
send	123:12	37:6,	48:3,6	18	130:6,7
60:9	Sharon	17,18	51:9	97:14,	131:7
105:20	7:17	39:2	53:9	20	132:17,
sense	Sharper	sides	58:6,8,	98:6,8	24
28:17	7:24	13:23	17	99:3,6	133:2
68:6		20:18	59:9,20	100:6	138:2,3
82:6	Shawna	38:21,	60:5	101:8,	signatur
	120:22	24	61:1	10,21	es
sentence	sheet	sign	63:3	106:4,	31:18
36:23	135:20	28:1	64:13	21	32:21
37:2	Shephard	30:23	66:10	107:18	37:23
51:21	7:17	31:1,6	68:15,	108:15	38:2
separate	Shisterm	33:8,9	21	109:1	39:13
58:7		34:18	69:11	110:10,	46:9
77:17,	en	74.10		18	10.7

			, -		
48:7	Siham	81:16	speak	speaker	103:15
57:15	114:3	82:10	4:18	4:18	104:24
59:12	similar	83:22	50:12,	70:22	105:9,
77:5	19:9	84:24	15	speaks	21
81:12	32:8	85:9	51:15,	20:13	112:11
87:15	73:8	86:3	17,19		121:3
88:19	100:6	91:2	53:11	specific	123:12
89:8	110:22	100:5	55:18	14:13	126:15
90:8,18		102:1	56:18	33:7	134:9
92:6,22	similarl	106:23	57:21	42:20	135:18,
93:16	У	109:4	61:19	65:12	23
95:1	47:19	110:21	62:11,	specific	136:12
99:23	129:13	113:3	13,17	ally	staff
107:24	Simply	114:12	64:17,	26:20	12:24
109:19	45:3	115:19	20	34:22	14:5
114:4	single	117:7	65:7,23	106:24	15:7,14
signed	123:8	118:12	67:2,	109:6	30:7
24:6	130:22	119:18	12,13	speculat	37:8,22
29:6,10	sir	122:6	69:2,4	е	46:8,20
33:7	33:21,	125:6	70:4,5	21:13	50:3
37:11	22	127:16	82:13	speculat	51:6
41:2,14	35:14	129:10	83:20	ion	52:7
43:21	sit	137:10,	89:21	33:15	53:2
47:19		16	90:13		56:7
62:3	5:21	138:18	91:1	spends	58:22
68:20	33:12	Social	92:14,	36:21	59:15
72:17,	sitting	109:18	15	split	63:9
22 73:9	96:5	solicito	93:12,	55:11	64:3
75:20	situatio		23 96:8	spoke	65:19
88:15	n	r	99:20,	47:8,9	66:3,22
91:4	20:6	49:18	21	53:22	67:17
128:7	37:16	sort	100:4,	54:7,12	68:2,16
	slandero	19:19	10	60:5	69:19
signing	us	76:11	101:18	spoken	70:19,
37:13,	4:24	sounds	110:16	25:6	23
17,18		35:4	112:21		71:11,
38:21	Slow	58:19	114:7	spot	18
42:11	49:3	source	115:14	73:8	72:17,
88:19	small	107:21	117:1	spreadsh	22,24
signs	76:7		118:7	eet	73:5,10
31:2	SNYDER	South	119:13	64:9,12	77:19
56:12		76:7		99:8	

			, 2021		
78:18	118:4,	state	statutes	73:18	102:3
80:5,24	17	3:23	6:24	74:3,7,	103:4,
81:22	119:10,	4:12	Stenogra	9,14,24	8,13,
83:1	23	17:15	pher	75:5,	19,23
86:8,	120:18,	18:24	8:19	13,21	104:1,
10,15	19	27:9,22		76:17,	11,17,
87:10,	121:12	30:21	step	22	22
20,22	122:18	63:1	5:14,16	77:2,7	105:8,
90:8	123:16,	66:8	steps	79:6	16,19
91:12	22,24	71:1,9	14:6	80:21	106:1,
92:6	124:1,	75:7	49:22	81:21	3,9,14,
93:3	6,11	111:14	Stevens	82:2,5,	18,22
94:24	125:12,	129:18	46:8,21	9,11	107:3,8
95:8,9	18	stated	47:1,7	83:18	108:13,
96:15,	126:12,	41:6	stick	85:1,8,	21
17	21	60:3	11:19	16	109:3,8
97:3,6	127:22	138:23	19:22	86:5,10	110:8,
98:7,11	129:24	statemen	Stohr	87:12,	15,20,
99:4	130:10			22 88:7	24
100:12,	131:12,	t 70.4	11:6,	89:2,6,	111:4
13,15,	17	78:4	14,17 46:4,5,	19	112:4,
19	132:4,6	statute	14	90:1,	13,19
101:8	133:3,	24:20,	49:7,9,	12,24	113:2,
102:14	13,14	22	16,17	91:8	7,11
103:1,	134:3	26:15	51:2	92:3,	114:2,
2,6,9,	136:14,	33:4,5	52:3,19	12,24	11,14
16	21	39:14	56:1,4,	93:10,	115:9,
105:4	137:1,	41:9,17	5,17	21	18,20
106:5	13	42:5,	57:20	94:18	116:13,
107:6	staff's	16,18	59:8	95:7,	24
108:15	103:21	43:1	61:22	14,18,	117:6,
110:10	125:3	44:13	62:10,	22	9,22
111:2,7	standing	56:11,	16	96:1,4,	118:2,
112:6,7	44:12	15	63:20	7,13,	11,14
113:10,	76:8	65:1,17	65:6,22	17,21,	119:7,
14		67:4	66:18	24 98:5	17,19
114:4,	start	83:14	67:10	99:2,	120:8,
20,24	4:10	101:21	68:13	10,18	13,15
115:11,	36:8	122:3	69:1,21	100:2,	121:21
23	124:5	127:9,	70:2,14	9,15	122:5,
116:15	started	12	70:2,14	101:6,	12
117:12	4:5		, 2 - 0	17,23	123:7
	1				

124:16,	striking	suited	81:8,	tenth	81:17
19,24	18:5	21:4	13,15,	14:19	Thomas
125:5,	stupid	summaril	16	term	7:20
9,15	55:14	У	83:24	3:18	thought
126:1,	style	52:2	87:16	34:16	33:13,
5,16,23	97:17	summariz	90:23	terms	14
127:2,			91:6	34:12	79:18
7,15,17	subject	e 12:8	121:14		108:7
128:5,	6:12		128:9	testify	
16,24	28:9	summary		108:23	three-
129:4,	submitte	50:3	T	testimon	member
9,15,21	d	Sunshine	table	У	3:14
130:2,	12:6,17	3:12	27:12	50:9	threw
20	20:5	5:3		52:4	35:5
131:15,	36:13	superflu	tablet	57:22	throw
19,22	50:9	ous	109:7	59:24	35:10,
132:6,	55:7,9	36:16	tablets	62:18	12
9,19,22	61:3		88:18	65:24	41:21
133:9,	82:21,	supposed	talk	67:14	thrown
24	22	32:21	51:20	70:6	38:4
134:19	subsecti	90:5	75:14,	76:19	122:8
135:7,	on	Supreme	15	91:10	
10,14,	41:12	17:15,	123:18	100:11	ticket
17,21		22		107:5	55:11
136:1,	substant	18:24	talking	109:9	time
7,19	ially	32:8	35:21	111:1	4:19
137:11,	84:10	33:13	36:17	113:8	14:20
21,24	subsumed	39:15,	71:7	114:15	19:18
138:6,	57:6	16	72:24	115:21	20:20
12,15,	suffice	41:16	Talley	117:10	26:3
19	39:13	switched	91:4,5,	118:15	54:18
stop	102:10	18:10	6	119:20	61:16
13:5	sufficie	system	Tarae	122:14	71:18
37:20	ncy	10:19	7:18	125:10	103:8
	5:13	12:10,	taxation	127:19	122:16
story 39:8	6:4	11,13,	4:3	129:22	times
	7:15	15,21		thing	54:5
Street	8:24	14:6,7	taxpayer	24:9	today
34:7	10:10	15:14,	4:14	38:3	5:7
strike	13:19	17 30:9	telling	47:6	5·/ 60:6
18:23	13.13	37:24	39:8	57:5	00.0

		 _			
today's	49:5	understa	upholdin	21:23	130:15
4:21	treating	nding	g	22:16	133:19
5:11	129:11	14:5	80:7	23:11	view
Todd	Trump	36:1	urge	27:5	44:12
7:21	55:11	76:3	18:22	28:24	94:10
told	138:1	132:3	25:10	29:17	violati
35:2,7		understo		35:19	n
53:22	trust	od		39:10	5:4
	86:4	11:9		40:4	
tolerate	122:11	47:3	valid	43:16	Virata
đ	Typograp		127:9	44:2	95:11
5:2,6	hic	unfairly	validity	45:17	vision
tomorrow	105:16	38:5	18:1,3	48:12	86:4
60:8		UNIDENTI	vast	52:14	visuali
61:2	U	FIED	123:13	59:3	ation
top		70:22	134:7	63:15	47:17
84:22	ultimate	universa		66:13	voice
114:16,	1y	1	verbal	68:8	
17	54:5	81:10	13:8	72:3	6:15
topic	unable	universe	68:24	78:3,8,	71:4
17:11	38:19	6:6,19	verifica	24	vote
1/•11	60:7		tion	80:12	5:24
town	61:1	unlike	9:11	86:21	6:17
61:2	unanimou	27:10	109:11	87:5	9:2,20
train	s	unnecess	verify	91:22	10:2,3
31:13	87:9	ary	14:6	97:24	11:2
training	undernea	36:15	109:19	98:21	15:6
38:19		68:4	versa	101:1	16:2,3
42:23,	th	unsigned	104:20	104:6,	22,23
24 43:2	128:7	36:9		20	18:15
transcri	understa		versions	108:2	21:20
	nd	update	107:23	110:3	22:1,
pt	6:5	107:10	versus	111:23	17,18
50:8	8:16	109:21	84:6	113:21	23:12,
55:22,	13:3	updated	vet	115:4	13
23 85:4	28:18	105:20	18:2	116:8	27:10,
transfer	31:24	upheld	vice	117:21	21,23
red	32:2,	62:5	10:1	119:2	28:7,8
54:5	11,13	65:4,20		120:3	29:2,
transiti	103:2	67:4,9	15:23	123:2	18,19
	132:2	69:12	16:21 19:22	125:24	34:24
on					i

40:6	9,10	13:1	16,21	voter's	73:12
44:4	110:5	14:9,18	73:9	65:1	75:22
45:16,	112:1	17:24	74:13,	111:18	83:19
19	113:22,	18:6,7,	14	voters	100:7
48:14	23	8,9,11,	76:23	9:12	121:21
50:18	115:6	13,16,	81:8,14	12:10,	131:23
52:12,	116:10	17,18,	82:11	12,14,	134:9
16	117:23	19 19:9	83:16	19 13:6	votes
54:11,	119:4	21:11	84:7,8,	14:7,	9:9
17	120:5	27:17	17 85:2	14,15	10:17
58:14,	123:4	29:6,	87:17	17:21	14:21
17 59:5	126:2	10,23	89:20	19:14,	35:6
61:7	128:13	30:9	92:13	17	58:4,7
63:17	130:17	31:1,2,	93:11,	20:5,23	105:13
66:10,	133:10,	18	17	20:3,23	
15	21	32:10	97:20	24:4,6	voting
68:9,10	134:10	33:8,19	99:10,	27:11,	6:21
70:10,	voted	37:4,9	19	12,24	15:16
14	18:13,	38:24	101:11,	30:23	53:16
72:2,5	21	39:3,23	17	31:10,	71:14
74:17,	22:5,8	42:10	102:9	21,24	96:11
22	28:2	45:9	103:11	32:3	97:1
77:10	35:2	46:11	106:8	36:1	102:23
78:7,	58:12	51:8,	107:21	38:5,14	103:3,
11,23	59:21	16,24	108:22	41:7	18
79:2,	64:14	53:9	110:14,	45:3	105:5
10,15,	66:19	54:4	15	50:4,8,	124:10
22,24	67:1	56:12	112:20	13,15	·
80:14	74:15	58:5,7	113:4	51:14,	W
82:4,6	79:22,	59:20	114:6	18	Wagner
84:4	23 85:3	60:10,	115:13	53:10	36:11
86:19,	104:18	20	116:24	55:16	wait
23	105:24	63:21	118:6	56:19	
87:6,8	106:12	64:12	119:12	57:5,8	50:20 70:20
91:20,	131:13	67:1	120:16	59:22	70:20
24	132:4	68:15,	121:2,	64:16	Walley
98:2,23		20,21	14	65:15	7:24
101:3	voter	69:10,	124:3,	66:19	Walsh
104:7,8	3:15,22	15,17	7,24	67:8,11	36:10,
105:10	4:5	70:16	130:6	69:2,23	14
107:24	10:11	72:9,	138:8	70:3	wanted
108:7,	12:22	12,14,		70.3	
		. ,			

		11/15	,
83:9	11,12,	worker	46:8
ward	16	27:16	84:8,14
44:8,21	133:5	32:4	121:3
74:15,	136:2,	38:18	wrong
16	18	41:15	24:10
	137:17,	45:8	126:11
warden 45:5	20	52:23	134:16
	138:4,	53:22	
watch	13,18	54:7,	wrote
16:1	withdraw	12,15	47:5
watched	ing	57:8	53:14,
61:5	135:12	59:9	17
watching		60:5,17	55:10
16:2	withdraw	83:11	114:17
64:10	n	138:3	
website	70:1	workers	Y
	89:7	6:10	y'all
53:18	90:1	31:2,5,	47:9
Wednesda	93:1,21	9,14	87:16
У	94:20,	32:2	94:3,4
19:15	22,24	37:15	Y-A-S-H-
20:17	95:9	41:2,7	
weigh	96:8,10	42:6,9,	U-
136:16	97:1	14,17,	134:21
Williams	98:6	21	Yashua
118:3	120:20	43:21	134:21
	121:1	45:5,10	year
Williams	126:8	69:8	32:9
on	136:4,		89:1
119:9	22	workers'	years
wishes	137:10,	30:22	137:13
56:18	16,22	working	
wishing	138:7,	53:15	York
5:12	15,19	worth	12:16
Wishop	withdrew	20:21	Yvonne
7:22	70:9	writes	7:20
	word	61:11	
withdraw	26:20		Z
89:2,24	36:22	writing	
92:23		12:7	ZOOM
93:19	words	written	51:11
94:5,	25:2	20:5	